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TECO Electric & Machinery Co., Ltd.
General Shareholders Meeting 2017
Agenda

Time: 09:00am, June 16, 2017(Friday)
Place: 11 An Dong Road, Industrial Zone, Chung-Li, Taoyuan City
(TECO Chung-Li Plant)

1. Meeting called to order
2. Addresses by the Chairman.

3. Reports

3.1 Business Report for 2016

3.2 Inspection Report of Audit Committee for 2016

3.3 Remuneration distribution to employees and directors for 2016

3.4 Amendment to Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles

3.5 Amendment to Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles
3.6 Amendment to Corporate Social Responsibility Best Practice Principles

4. Ratification
4.1 Business Report and Financial Statements for 2016
4.2 Distribution of 2016 Profits

5. Discussion
5.1 Amendment to Procedure for Acquisition or Disposal of Assets

% After being discussed case by case, voting for the Ratification and Discussion will
take place at the same time. Vote counting will be conducted separately.

6. Extempore motion(s)

7. Meeting adjourned



REEOI’tS

1.

2.

Business report for 2016 (pages 10-12)

Inspection Report of Audit Committee for 2016 (page 13)

Remuneration distribution to employees and directors for 2016

Explanatory note:

In 2016, income before tax is NT$ 3,622,424 thousands, and remuneration to
employees is proposed to be NT$ 283,999 thousands, whilst remuneration to
directors is proposed to be NT$ 125,333 thousands. The remuneration would
be distributed in cash.

Amendment to Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles (page 75-92)

Amendment to Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles (page
93-98)

Amendment to Corporate Social Responsibility Best Practice Principles (page
99-105)



Ratification

Proposal 1:
Business Report and Financial Statements for 2016 (proposed by the board of

directors)

Explanatory note:

1.

The Board of Directors entrusted certified public accountants Audrey Tseng and
Dexter Chang with Pricewaterhouse Coopers to audit and certify the Business
Report and Financial Statements (includes Consolidated Financial Statements)
for 2016, both of which were subsequently inspected by Audit Committee and are
hereby submitted for ratification.

Please see pages 10-12 for the business report and pages 14-42 for the Auditors’
Report and the Financial Statements.

Proposal 2:
Distribution of 2016 profits (proposed by the board of directors)

Explanatory note:

1.

3.

The board of directors plans to appropriate NT$1,762,369,740 from distributable
earnings in 2016 for dividend payout, capable of paying NT$0.88 of cash
dividend per share, which, though, will be rounded off, leaving out decimal
fraction.

Subject to the approval by the General Shareholders Meeting, it is proposed that
the ex-dividend date and the distribution date shall be determined by the Board
of Directors authorized to do so.

Please see page 43 for the detailed profit distribution plan.



Discussion

Proposal 1:
Amendment to Procedure for Acquisition or Disposal of Assets (proposed by the

board of directors)

Explanatory note:

1. According to Financial Supervisory Commission No. 1060001296, February 9,
2017, the company propose to revise the related measures of Procedure for
Acquisition or Disposal of Assets.

2. For the comparison between the revision and the original, please refer to pages
44-59 and 106-125.



Extempore Motion(s)

Meeting Adjourned




Attachments

1. Business Report for 2016 on pages 10-12.

2. Inspection Report of Audit Committee for 2016 on page 13.

3. Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report for 2016 on pages 14-42.
4. Distribution of 2016 Profits on page 43.

5. The comparison between the revision and the original of Procedure for

Acquisition or Disposal of Assets on pages 44-59.



Business Report

Dear Shareholders,

Stuck in "low-growth" trap, the global economy declined by 2.4% in 2016, the worst
performance since the global financial tsunami. Strength of recovery in the U.S.,
Japan, and Europe failed to meet expectation and growth in China and emerging
economies slowed down, which, plus uncertainty resulting from Brexit, dampened
demand on the electric-machinery market. However, thanks to years of effort in
energy conservation, carbon abatement, smart application, and automation, the
company still managed to take advantage of new business opportunities, thereby
retaining steady profits.

A. Review of Business Performance in 2016
Analysis of the company’s business performance in 2016 follows:
a. Parent Company
Unit: NT$ thousand

2016 2015 Change
Sales revenue 20,274,047 21,809,717 (7.04%)
Operating profit 1,615,152 1,617,491 (0.14%)
Profit for the year 3,481,480 3,177,291 9.57%

Regarding revenue, benefited from replacement demand and energy-performance
subsidies, sales of air conditioner expanded further in 2016, when revenue of power
business also grew substantially, thanks to income listed quarterly, in line with
progress in the construction, from major engineering projects. Revenues from other
businesses, though, dropped, due to decline in global demand for infrastructural
projects, shrinking investments in oil- and mineral-related lines, insufficient orders
and languid sales of electric-machinery products. The company's overall revenue
dropped by 7% in 2016.

Due to increased shares of higher-margin custom products and variable-frequency
products, the company's gross margin advanced by one percentage point in the year.
Meanwhile, operating expense decreased by NT$100 million, thanks to continuous
rationalization of personnel and other expenses. As a result, operating income only
dropped slightly. As for non-operating income and expense, the company saw
investment returns, thanks to increased investment returns from the merger of
Century Development Corp. and the company's Italian subsidiary Motovario, plus
income from disposal of stakes in Straits Construction Investment (Holdings) and
Hangzhou Xizi-lUK Parking System Co.,Ltd. Overall net profit grew by 9.57%.

As for R&D, the company successfully developed a number of new products,
including large-scale water-recycling pump motor, medium-voltage
variable-frequency motor for industry-grade chiller, IE4 motor for Japan and China,
anti-dust blast motor, netcom inverter, cloud-end EMS, and R32-coolant series
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models. Thanks to its heavy R&D investments, the company won Taiwan Excellent
Award for six items and 23 domestic and foreign patents.

b. Consolidated Financial Statements
Unit: NT$ thousand

2016 2015 Change
Sales revenue 49,923,836 48,598,573 3%
Operating profit 4,189,481 3,787,627 11%
Profit for the year 4,036,998 3,514,116 15%
Total comprehensive 4,360,290 560,158 678%
income for the year

Consolidated sales revenue grew by 3% in 2016, due to the acquisition of Century
Development and Motovario, while Operating profit grew by 11%. The growth of
Unrealized gain on valuation of available-for-sale financial assets resulted into higher
Total comprehensive income for the year. Overall, Profit for the year grew by 15% and
Total comprehensive income for the year grew by 678%.

B. Outline of 2017 Business Plan

Major domestic and foreign forecast bodies predict that the global economy will grow
by 2.4-3.3% in 2017, higher than 2016. International prices of raw materials,
including oil and metal, have stabilized, helping oil/gas and mineral customers to
attain steady revenue growth, which will benefit the company's sales. Taiwan's
economy will also perform better than 2016, with growth forecast reaching 1.5-1.8%.
In addition, the government is pushing "accelerated transformation of industrial
structure” and "expansion of infrastructural investments" programs, boosting
domestic investments and growth, which will benefit the company's business for
electric-machinery products and engineering projects.

In 2017, the company will develop around a number of axes, including sales of
systematic products, simplification and improvement of existing product lines, and
continuing dedication to smart products, automated production equipment, and other
related products, such as G2-servo electric machinery, so as to enhance the
company's overall product competitiveness. In addition, the company will step into
the realm of PV ESCO, installing PV panels on the roofs of the group's factories, on
top of micro grids and smart energy management system, key applications for smart
city, which have been developed by the company. Regarding electric machinery, the
company will roll out IP66 water- and dust-proof anti-blast motor and E510s 1P20
inverters, which have obtained EU functional-safety certification. As for home
appliances, the company will launch air conditioners featuring CSPF-grade energy
performance. The aforementioned new products will inject fresh growth momentum
for the group. Meanwhile, the company will invest further in India, Africa, and ASEAN,
consolidating overseas business network and expanding global deployment.

The company has been granted the golden award of Taiwan Corporate Sustainability
Awards (TCSA) for the TOP50 category for three years in a row, and the corporate
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citizen award by Commonwealth magazine, in addition to top 5% in
corporate-governance evaluation. As an advocate for sustainable development in the
electric-machinery industry, the company will, in adherence to its integrity-based
management concept and conformance to the global current of energy conservation
and carbon abatement, dedicate to the development of smart environment-friendly
products and march towards the goal of becoming a global corporate guidepost,
thereby creating maximum benefits for shareholders and paying back our
shareholders and investing public, in return for their long-term support and
patronage.

TECO Electric & Machinery Co., Ltd
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Inspection Report of Audit Committee
(This English version is only a translation of the Chinese version.)

The Audit Committee has duly inspected and approved the financial statements for 2016
(include consolidated financial statements), the business report and proposed profit
distribution plan prepared and proposed by the Board of Directors, with the financial
statements having been audited and certified by Pricewaterhouse Coopers, hereby submit
this report pursuant to Article 14 of Securities and Exchange Act and Article 219 of the
Company Act.

To

General Shareholders Meeting 2017

TECO Electric & Machinery Co., Ltd

Audit Committee Convener : Ting-Wong, Cheng

Date: March 24, 2017
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS TRANSLATED FROM CHINESE

To TECO Electne & Machmery Co., Ltd.

Opinion

We have andited the zccompanymg parent company only balance sheets of Teco Elecine & Machinery
Co., Ltd as at December 31, 2016 and 2013, and the related parent commpany only statements of
comprehensive income, of changes m equity and of cash flows for the vears then ended. and notes to the
parent company only financial statements, meluding 3 swmmary of sigmficant accounting policies.

In our opimion, based on our audits and the reports of other mdependent accountants, the parent conmpany
only financal statements present fairly, m all matenal respects, the financial postion of Teco Elecinc
& Machimery Co., Ltd. as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and ther financial performance and cash
Tlovws for the vears then ended, in conformuty with the “"Rules Governing the Preparation of Financial
Slalements by Securities Issuers” and the Infernafionz] Fimancial Beportmz Standards, Infernational
Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and 5IC Interpretations as endorsed by the Finamcial
Supervizory Commussion

Basis for opinion

W conducted our awdits in accordance with the “Regulations Governing Audiling and Allestation of
Fimancial Statements by Certified Public Accountant=" and generally accepied auditing standards in the
Eepublic of China (ROC GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are fivther described in the
Auditor 5 Responsibilities for the Audir of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
Ve are mdependent of the Company m accordance with the Code of Professional Ethies for Cerified
Public Accountants in the Republic of China (the “Code™), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilifies in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 15
sufficient and approprate to provide a basis for our opumon.

Key audit matters

Eev audtt matters are those matters that, in our professional judsment, were of most sipnaficance In our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current penod. These matters were addressed m the
context of owr audit of the parent company only financial statements as a2 whole and, 1 formmg our
opimon thereon, we do not provide a separate opmion on these matters.
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Revenue recogninion of export sales of motor division

Descrinti
Please refer to MNote 4(32) of the parent company only financial statements for the accounting poheles
on reveme recogmtion Motor dmasion handles the mamifactwing and sales of varnous machimery,
equipment and motors. The chents of motor division are from Chma Amenca, Sowth-East Asia and
Europe and the sales terms vary for different chents, and it exist m subsidianes(hsted as mvestments
accounted for under equuty method). Thns, we consider the reverme recognihion of motor dinasion a key
adit matter.

How our ands addressed the matter

We performed the following audit procedures on the above key andit muatter:

1. Checkmg the mternal controls over sales revenue recogmifion of motor division to assess the
effectivensss of the internal control process.

2. Selected sammples of export sales reverme transactions of motor dvision to examine whether the
export sales recogmized actually existed.

Investments accounted for under equity method-impairment asseszment of preminm generated

from the acquizition of subsidiaries

Descrinti
Motovano 5. p. A 1 located m Italy, and 15 engaged 1n the manufactunng and sales of gear reducers and
other power transfer equpment. Motovano 5 p A, 15 considered a munimum cash-generating unit of Teco
Electne & Machimery Co., Ltd . As of December 31, 2016, the balance of mvestments accounted for
under equity method was $5,012,878.000. Please refer to Note 4(19) of the parent company only
financial statements for the accounting pohicy on the mpanment assessment of goodwnll and Note 5(2)
for the uncertamty of the accounting estimate regarding imparment of mvestment m premmm. TECO
Electne & Machinery Co_, Ltd. assesses the imparment of mvestment m premmim using the recoverable
amount generated from the cash flow forecast discounted of reasonable discount rate.
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The aforesad recoverable amount meludes several assumptions such as the discount rate used and
the preparation of financial projections to estimate the cash flows for the next five years. The dizcount
rates and financial projections relating to the future operations of Motovaro 5p A are subject to
manzgement dgment which have a sizmficant mpact on the measurement of the recoverable amount,
thus affecting the results of the impairment assessment. Accordingly, we consider management’s
impaiment assessment of iInvestments accounted for under equity method -impatrment zssessment of
premimm generated from the acquisition of subsidianes a kevit matter.

How our audd addressed the matter and
We performed the following audit procedures on the above key audit matters:
1. Imspecting whether the valuation model use in the entitv's industry and environment

2. Inspecting whether the future cash flows of valustion model 15 in accordance with Motovario S.p.A's

operation phn, and reviewmg the resulis of operahon plan prepared by manapement in the past.

3. Exvaluating the reasomableness of major assumptions (mcludmg the expected growth rate and
discount rate) nsed in the model

4, Aszseszing the sensitvity amalvsis of management's fubure cash flows for the above sigmficant
assumptions and confomme whether manzgement has adequately addressed the possible mmpact of
the estimated uncertamty of the mpapment assessment.

Busines: combmation - acqguisition of Century Development Corporation

D .
Please refer to Note 4{33) for accountmg policies on business combmation. As stated m Note 6(32) of
the parent company only financial statements, the TECO Electne & Machinery Co., Lid. acqumed
12.12% of the ordmary shares of Century Development Corporation for cash of $462.233.000 m
February 201 6. Includmg the previously keld 40.63% stake m the TECO Electne & Machmery Co., Lid.,
the total holdmgs of the Company imncreased to 52.73% and accordmgly, the Company obtamed contiol
over Ceptury Development Corporation. Centory Development Corporation 1s engaged m domestic and
foretgn mdustrial areas and sife myvestment and development meluding of consulting, plannmg,
development management and leasme usmess. In deternunmyg the fair vahlie of the real property and
land nght held from the busmess combmation, menzagement has commmissioned a2 valiation expert to
evaluate the fawr valie and prepare a fair value allocation report, which 1= measured and assessed on the
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acquisition The dentifiable assets of the Company and the habilites assumed, which will be completed
within ope wvear affer the business combmation. In addibon, the fransaction 15 a2 phased merger of
enterprises. The Company m accordance with the far value of the acqgmsmion date to measure i=
previously beld by the acquirer's mierest. As Century Development Corporetion’s common stock 15 not
quoted m active market, the management department of the Department of external experts to evaluate
the assessmenf of the fan value of the way, The evaluation of the fair value of the common stock 1 the
absence of the actmve market quotation invekbres the judzment results and the evaluation results have a
sigmficant effect on the valuaton of the business combimation. Thus, we consider the valiation of sad
acquisifion a key andit matter.

How our audd addressed the mafter

Ve performed the following audit procedures on the zbove kev audit matters:

1. Checking acquisition confract and certificate of proceeds paid to ascertam acouwracy of counter
whether the party and cash amount details.

2. Checking the record process for the acourzey of accounting process of acgmethon that divided mto
saveral steps.

3. Assessmg the acowrzey of parameter and caleulation, and the approach that menagement used m
evaluating the fair value of Cenbury Development Corporzhon.

4. Aszezsmg the quabifications of the nonazement commrttes 1n appoimting the valuation experts, and
evaluating the appropriatensss of the parameters and models used.

Other matter — audit of other independent acconuntants

As deseribed in Mote 6(8) to the parent company only financizl statements, we did not audit the finaneial
statements of certam imvestes compames accounfed for under the equity method. These myvestments
amounted to § 4,037,283 000 and § 8,265,099 000, constitutmg 6% and 12% of the related total assets
as of December 31, 2016 and 2013, respectrvely, and the comprehensive mmcome amounting to $
60,193,000 and 5 290,337.000, constiutmg 2% and 81% of the total comprehensive income for the vears
ended then ended. The financial statements of these myvestes compames were audited by other anditors
whose reports thereon have been finmushed to us and ouwr opimion expressed herein, insofer as it relates
to the amount= melnded in these financial statements and the information disclosed m Mote 13 are based
solely on the audits of the other Independent accountants.
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Responsibihines of management and the Board of Directors for the parent company
only financral statements

Manapement 1= responsible for the preparation and far presentation of the parent company only financial
statemenis in accordance with the “Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securitica lssuers” and the International Financial Reporting Standards, Intermational Accounting
Standards, IFRIC Inferpretations, and SIC Inferpretzhons as endorsed by the Fimancial Supervisory
Copmw=sion, and for such mtemal contol a5 menagement defermmnes 1= necessary fo enable the
preparztion of consohdated financial statemments that are free from mater] msstatement, whether due
to fraud or ermor

In preparing the parent company only financal statements, management 15 responsible for assessme the
Company’s ability 1o continue as & going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accountme unless management ether mfends to haqudate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realiste alternatme but to do so.

The Board of Dectors, mncluding audil commiltes, are responsible for overseeing the Company s
financizl reporfing process.

Auditor s responsibifities for the audit of the parent company only financiof

sfarem ents

Chur objectives are to obtain reaszonzble asswrance about whether the parent company only financial

statements 25 3 whole are free from materi] msstatement, whether due to fraud or enor, and to 1ssuwe an

awditor’s report that includes our opinion, Reasonable asswance 15 2 hagh level of asswrance, but 1= not

a puarantes that an audit conducted m accordance with ROC GAAS will abrays detect 2 motersal

msstatement when ot esasts. Misstaterwents can anse from fraud or eror and are consdered material if

mdnidually or m the aggregate, they could reasonably be expeacted to mfluence the aconomic dacisions
of users taken on the basis of these consobdated finaneial statements.

Az part of an audit m accordance with ROC GAAS we exercize professional mdement and mamtam

professional skepticism throughout the amdit. We alsa:

1. Identify and assess the mcks of matenal musstaterment of the parent company cnly financial
statements, whether due to fraud or emror, desien and perform audit procedures resporsmne to those
n=ks, and obtain audtt evidence that 15 sufficient and appropriate to provide a bases for our opimon.
The r=k of not detecting 3 matenal misstatement resulting from fraud 15 higher than for one
resulting from emor, a2 fasd Doy molve collesion forpery, mbentional  ormssons,
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misrepresentafions. or the overnde of infernal control.

Obtain an understanding of mternal control relevant to the auddt n order to desizn audit procedures
that are appropriate 1n the crcumestances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opimon on the
elfectiveness of the Company's internal control,

Evaluate the appropriatensss of accouniing pobotes used and the reasonsbleness of acoountins
Conclode on the appropriafeness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtamed, whether a matenal uncerfamty esasts related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a2 gomg
concern. If we conclude that 2 meterial uncertamty exists, we are required to draw attention 1n our
auditor’'s report to the nelated disclosures in the consolidated financial statemems or, if such
disclosures are madequate. to modify owr opmon. Our conclesions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Conpany to cease to cophmie as 3 going COnCEITL

Evaluate the overall presentation structure and content of the parent company only financial
statemments, mcludmy the disclosures, and whether the consobdated financial staterments represent
the underhymg transactions and events in a marmer that acheves far presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropnate audit evidence regardmg the financial mformetion of the entites or
simess actnties withn the Company to express an opmon on the parent conmpany only financial
statemments, We are responsible for the doection, superision and performence of the group awdit.
We remain solely responmble for our audst opmmon.

We comommcate with the Board of Directors regardme, among other matiers, the planned scope and
tmnmg of the auds and sipmficant audit findmes, meludmg any sigmficant deficiencies m miermal
control that we dentify durmyg our audit.

We also provide the Board of Drectors wath a statemsent that we have comphed with relevant ethical
requirements regarding mdependence, and to commmmicate with them all relaonships and other matters
that may reasonzbly be thought to bear on owr mdependence. and where apphicable, related safeguards.
From the matters commmmicated with the Board of Directors, we determume those matters that were of
most sigmficance 1 the audnt of the consohdated financial statements of the owrent penod and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation

prechides pubhe disclosure about the matter or when, m extremsly rare corounetances, we deterrmme
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that a matter should not be conmmwmcated 1m our report because the adverse consequences of domg =o
would rezsonably be expected to ouwtwerzh the public mterest benefits of such commmmcation.

PricewaterhouseC oopers, Tarwan
Miarch 24, 2017

The accompanying financial statements ars pot miended to present the Snancal positon and resol= of operations and cash
flows in accordance with accounting principles senerally accepted in cmmeries and jorisdictions other than the Pepublic of
China  The standards, procedmes mdmrﬁcﬁmmeﬁmﬁcnfmgmm the audit of such fnancial saf=mentz
may differ from those geneally acospied n counmies and junisdictons other than the Fepublic of China. Acoordingly, the
aocompanying fnandal statements and repart of independent accoumiants are mot miended for use by these who are oot
mﬁrmaimu;st-mﬂlea::mmmgmplsummuEmmﬂ'fa:cs;-tedmﬂleRs;-ubhc-afChma.mdtﬂ:
app in

Ag the financial statements are the responsibelity of the management, PricenaterhonseCoopers cannot accept amy liabdsy for
the use of or relimce on, the English oamslaton or for any emors o mismderstandmzs that may derive from the manslaton.
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TECO ELECTRIC & MACHIMERY C0., LTD
PARENT COMPANY ONLY BATANCE SHEETS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBEE. 31
(Expressed in thousands of Wew Taiwan deollars, except as otherwize indicared)
Diecember 31, 20145 Decemher 31, 2015
Aszats Hotes AT (s Ta ASIOTHET =
Current assets

1104 Cash and cazh equvalents &(1) amd 8 $ TH0 582 1 1,111,218 i
1m0 Financial assets at fir value ORI TEY]

thmouzh proft o loss - current 30,832 - - -
1150 Motes receivable, net LT 355,078 1 308, 109 1
1160 Motes receivable - related parties 7 535 482 - 179,145 -
1170 Arcounts raceivable, net 63 1,541,337 3 1,576,044 i
1180 Accounts recefvable - relased 6(%) and 7

parties 1,474,155 2 1,556,391 2
1180 Baceivables fom customers oo &(7)

constraction confracts 1,112,235 2 130,164 1
1204 Otther receivablas 58,077 - 47,622 -
12140 Otther receivables - related panties  6(F) and 7 1,250,437 2 1,216,378 2
1303 Inventory & 2,993 682 4 1,941,725 4
1410 Preparyments 25,954 - 0,063 -
1470 Otther cumment assets &(1) and B 259,162 - 319,424 1
1IIXX Total corrent assets 10,559,153 15 10,117,285 15

Non-¢urrent assets

1533 Available-for-sale financial assets &)

- Iom-Carrent 5,723,592 . 4,217,547 i
1550 Investments accounted for mder  G{E) and 7

equity methed 46,963 812 67 b, 1, 595 69
1504 Property, plant and equipment &%) and 7 5,643 481 5 3,877,206 fr
1760 Investment propery - net G100 2,209,428 3 1,059,317 3
1840 Dieferred income fx% assets a7 733,286 1 424,028 1
190 Other pop-cimrent assets &(11) 311,555 1 302,935 -
1533 Total non-current assets 50, 585,477 85 57,450,479 85
13300 Total assets § 70,184,630 100 67,597,714 100

(Continued)
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TECO ELECTRIC & MACHMERY CO.. LTD.
PARENT COMPANY ONLY HALANCE SHEETS

IEAES ENDED DECEMEEE 3]
(Expressed m thousands of Wew Taiwan dollars, except as otherwise indicatsd)

Diepempber 31, 2014 December 31, 2015
Liabalities and Equity Notas AMCUNT e AMOTUNT S
Current liabiliies
2100 Shor-ferm bomowings (1) 5 477,670 1 % 3,354,685 5
21X Firancial liabdlities af fair valne ~ S§{13(23)
thmonsh prodit or loss - ooment - - 1,542
2150 Notzs payable 141 - 14,267
21640 Not=s payable - related parfies 7 169, 722 - 134,663
2170 Accounts payable 3,406,202 5 2659470 4
2180 Accounts payable - related parties 7 1,258,472 2 1,159,348 i
218 Payahles to customsrs oo 8N
consinichon conmacts 182, 78 - 343,133
200 Cither payables &0 2,595,904 4 1.485,186 4
11H) Other payatdes - related partiss 7 36,7146 l 119,214
23 Curment ncome tax [ibkizes (27 7,153 - 343,526
235) Provisions for liabilifies - omrent 71,778 - 41,265
2300 Crther oorrent liabdlities G(14) 184,135 - 1.719,616 3
2153 Total corrent liabilstes 9,020, 583 13 12,436 &35 13
Non-current Babilities
2530 Corpomaie bonds payable &(14) 3,000,000 4 3,000,000 5
2540 Long-term bomowings §(15) 5,690,558 i 2058, 706 3
2570 Diafzmred income tax Eabilies  &(27) 1,011,652 l 830,197
2600 Cither noo-curment liabdlides &(18) 1,721,230 3 1 816,834 3
25X Total mop-current abilities 11,423, 48] 16 7. 706,837 2
OO Toial Babilities 20453, 063 i) 0,133,672 H
Equity
Share capital &(17)
3110 Share capital - conmwn stock 20,026, %29 m 0,026,520 i
Capital sorplus &(1%)
3200 Capiial swphas 7,671,889 10 T.638,417 11
Fetaiped earnings G192
3310 Legal resemve 5,730,071 i §.402,342 g
EER.I Special resamve 5,640,779 5 3,640,770 5
3350 TUnappropriated retamed sammings 11.816,689 17 10,310,158 15
Oriher equity imberest &30
3400 Cither equity imberest 1,166,773 2 156,580
5500 Treasury stocks SR { 321, 563) - 321,563
oo Total equity 45,731, 567 7l 47 464 041 T
Commitments and Contingent a
Liabalsties
Sobeequent Event: 1
JXIX Toial Babilities and equity 5 70,184 630 100 3 67,357,714 1 K]

The accompanying notes are an miegral part of these financial statements.
Sew repont of indspendent accoumtants daned March 34, 2007,

22



[ECO ELECTRIC & MACHINERY 00 LTD
PAREHRT COMPANY QLY STATEMENTS (OF [NCOME

U THE VEARS ENDEL) DECEMEER 51
| Expezssed in thous ands of New Tarwes dollars, exce [ 5 oiberwise sdicsied)

‘e emded December 31

206 013
1= Boles AMORINT ) AMCLINT o ]
HHID falew revenae G2} nd T ¥ 274,47 m § 11 B9, 71T 104
Mo (hperalang cois GEN BN 26  md T | 15 500, %89} | T 16,971 4530 781
2500 PRl o L, i 4,773,058 3 4,83 2% 11
3410 Linfealized prodin oo soles 7 l 34, 335y B N 30,8130 i) ]
a0 Healized peofic fom sl 150, B33 3 k3 L] 3
450 Mt e ralisg marngin 4,739, 556 i 4,046,551 12
[hpreraliong eapenses o] DG 25 205 o T
G100 Sellmg expenies l 1,B5Z, 294} o 1,930,790 | 7
&200 Cereral and sdminbErasve expe e i 5TT7,374) I 565, ML 3
E300 R I wmd develog P { 534, T36) £ 7325020 o 3
000 Wil et by & Apeciises | 3,134, 404} 156 3,229,0610 o 15}
0 (hperatang prslfit 1,605,153 i 1,617,491 i
Ton-aperaling iniomee sl ¢1penas
THID Uit i & 2 DOW 13622} and T 514,376 3 44, 3% z
s Ciser gaures aned livises 3N I3) wnd T l 464, 0900 | I 66,4150 { ]
b= Finmnee eoets {24) md T { 127, 5800 In o 135, B06) 1}
L] Share of profis of submdory, assccnie LR A
] poami veriiunes oo counted for under
equay method 2,084, 556 12 1,186,383 10
0 Total nom-opersting incamns sl
e 2,007,272 o 1,863,953 9
IO Profit before inc i ax 3,627,434 13 3,506 44 16
TS0 lssiounse Lan expense 2T i 140, 344y Iv 33,1530 o 1)
n2m Prefil fer the year 5 3,431,430 17T ¥ 3,177,291 15
(b ¢omigp rolsengi ve | nosme
Comy of sther ¢ omprekensive
ingome chat will s be feclasalied 1o
prulin or less
=501 [hher compeshentive inoome, before tex, & 10)
et ol beses on defined bens s plans (5 0, TTL) - 0% 56, 36TH -
1330 Share of ocher comprelersive inoomes of
MES0C eS80 jousl VERTPEs e ounied
for using equity metod, compoaency of
oer coim prehersive incomes that wall soc
b e licmafied i profit o ks { 4, 295) - 16 -
310 Cinin ol other ¢ omprehensive
bicis i will st be Feclidsaliad Lo
prlit o lass | 35, 066) - 35 6410 -
Comy of sther ¢ omprebensive lass
that will be reclasslied (o profic or bes
136l Cxber comipesleniive inooine, belfone te, & 205
exchimge differenes on rmslasm { 1,164, 215) G o R, 1500 ]
fxi (xher compeshensive inoome, before tax, &3 20}
intlable-forsabe fmansal mses 1,.651,E72 i 103 005 1
2340 Share of ocher comprelensive inoome af & 21
subsidury, ssociaes and poaml ventunes
acpounied For under equiy method I 17T, 296) | I i I.524 6ET) 12}
fxb ] Imcome pay relabmg io ke componenes of  G{HNIT)
T oM el Ve |Bonme 99,432 1 3248 -
2360 Camy of ather comprebensive
[hasis) o har will be roclaisilaed
tis pealit o liss 405, 759 T I, ME. BN 131
1300 Cnhieer oot ridernnii v | 1868 ) sbome Bor the
year i 14 737 i 3 R 131
3500 Toital o hensive o lar the year 5 3, E36, 20 19 § 359,066 1
Earmings jer share (in dollarsy i 28
Erk ] Batse earnigs per e 5 L. § 1,60
S50 Dt esrnings per shase £ L7 5 LG

The socommpunying soles e o imsgral ot of e financial saismeis
Beee report of independent sccountats daged March 24, 2007,
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Ratained Farnings {ther squity intamst

Fmancal
shatarant Unrsalived gain or
translaticn Jow on available-
Share capifal - Total capital Unappoopriasd difsrences of for-sale fnancal
Noms common sock smplms Lam! resers Special Teserve  _ wimined eamings  _ Sorweisn operations Awbals Tmamry stods Total eguity
013
Balaxce at January 1, 2015 § 20,026,920 § 0.600,552 § 5008, 650 § 3.TETRG § 9. M0.058 1 351,951 1 366,632 (F 32083 ) 5402007
Appropaiations of 2014 net income (MHots) 819
Fermmal of specal mvers - - - 7,007 ) 91,007 - - - -
Lapl msers - - A0, 652 - A0, 3 ) - - - -
Cash dridends - - - - 0 203,962 ) - - - 3,202,962 )
v B e o s gy g o et i 10,005 - . . - - . 10,005
Differencas betwesn the price for scquisition or disposal of mbddiades  6()
and carrying ameunt - 27860 - - - - - - 27 .86
Crther pompreherince Joss for the pear 60 - - - -0 56,367 o 339,902 » 102,005 - 1 204,264 )
_— 4o . ..
mﬂ?ﬂmm ﬁer-nn.i::r]x: &T}'mﬂz‘dmmus et s - - - - TG - 2,524,687 » -0 2,513,961
Mat mooe for the wear - - - - 3.077.E - - - 31700
Balazce at Ducamber 31, 201 3 20,026,020 3 0.658.417 5 54302 5 3.M0.TH 310,310,158 5 13.030 ] 143,050 0F 3563 ) 547042
har 2005
Balanca ot Jammary 1, 2016 § 20,006,020 § 7658417 b3 § 3.0.TW § 10,310,158 1 13,080 5 143,950 @F ISR ) 547404042
Mew [em 6(19)
Hew [em - - nr.ne - 1 T TR - - - -
Mew [em - - - - i 1602, 154 ) - - -0 1,602,154
Mew [em - 3.4 - - - - - - 3An
Hew [em G{20) - - - - M, Ty A 1.064, 783 » 1,651,872 - 566,318
Mew [em 610 - - - - i M5 - 177, 2046 » - 211,591)
Proft (Joss) - - - - .40, 450 - - - 3,481 480
Balace at Decembaer 31, 2016 § 20,026,020 § 7,671,080 § 5.730.071 § 3.640.7% § 1181689 (8 1.061,753 ) % 2085 8 321,563 ) §49,751 567

Mote: For the yeam ended Decambar 31, 2014 and 2013, dimcton’ and supemision” momessrtion amoenting to 5126,209 and £133,3 35, mapecteeraly, and amployees’ boams amemting to £329.421 and 8304, 550, mspacthvely, had beon dedwected
from the statements of comprehansne moome.

The acconpamying notes o an imegral past of thews financial staieowends.
Sea eport of independent accountmnts dated Manch 24, 2017,
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TR ELECTRIC & MACHINERY OfF LTI
PAREMT CCHIFANY (OMLY STATERIEMTS OF CASE FLOMWS
FOE THE YEARS EMDED DECEMEER 31
{Ex jeresioed in thenadands of Mew Tawan dallars, cxeepl ad clhereise indicatad)

25

Pl & 015
CASH FLOWSE FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES
Fradil befire Lin 3 3.622.424 i 3,506 444
Adjusisents
Adjeimenls ko rooncile prafil (kas)
Hel gain on Gaencial avets o Bur value teoogh prafil o ke IS i FERT) | 33,672 )
Mt L | grain) om Francial abebiaes al i vakee erough pealil Y FE)

o i 1.316 ) 1 .52
Provaimen: Nt desabilul sexasunts w30 1.005 1.663
Provasmia T (eeveral o) da:hne in vaue ol invenlanes R 107605 35,755
lmleresl imsome 2T} i .66 1 o 18640 )
Imierest expense T4} 125,462 115,647
Dhvvidamnl insme I} i 197377 ) o 84,084 )
I puiremen L i E323) 3. 190 8 3B
Lisich o zigainal ol mvestenonts I} { 23971 ) 31,878
[l ess i wnrealized (gain) ik fom diwnilsem sl T | 8,283 )
Prol of kes recloeafind om other aom prehens ve income ol

iswciley arl joml venurs accounied G under sgoly malhad

i reangnissd praor b oblasiag coatral - i1, M7
Share of prof of aseciaes and joml venloess sciounied for under the  &E)

ity method { 2,084.566 ) 1,186,385 )
Deproziation, smonsrslion s nel gain o bk on dispossl of propesty,  &EN10NIINLS)

plant and equipmend, net 416,926 416,374
Feseggn cumcy exchasge (gain) ks on bonds pavalle 1.600 | 29,10 )

(arges: in operaling pses ond babedbes
[l i operaling issels

Fisancisl ssscts al faer vales thiough prof of loss - cufeent - 54,678

Hiles pedxsivahle g L1 T 55,818 )

Hirkes peceivahie - relaa] paeties i 53T ) 133.244

A nis recenalkie i M 165 ) 1B5.B35

Avnasungs reeenable - relatad partiss B2.136 374,897

Recenalles Fom cuslomen on Sofslncison Sonrac i IRZ.06% | I8 127

b= revenakle i 10455 | 44

iha retealle: - relaal mises { 45.825 ) 12,17 )

Inveris i 159,566 ) 36,265

Frepaymenta { 3090 5,402 )

[her currenl assel 5. 080 61,116
Chergess i operaing liskiline:

Fiseasazisl lishilities sl G vales thiough proSe of e curnl { G | -

Hiskes puryable { 5.126 ) 5,803 )

Hiles pryable - reliied partses { 14.941 ) 1.4

A pnsunts THHBEL 8191 ]

Acunts payahle - relaied pares Lo s 331,835 )

Payshlss bo customess on ommirmson sonped { 160,535 ) 84,024

thha 132180 29,412 )

[her payshles - relaind parties { .48 ) o 13,307 )

Provasens fiw lighilities 513 2,357 )

(har currenl labilitiss { 36861 ) o 53.674 )

[her nem-aerent liglildey i T I 11,167}

Cash milow genaalol om dope i 1.749.374 1, %36, 515
Itlevesd reesvnd HIT) 19.661 18,640
Dividemals e vad T21.221 965,887
Payrond of imlo= { 156677 ) o 89489 )
Pryment ol income pax { 16188 1 133.447 ]

Mt gl Dows Fom oparalng activilics 1.337. 391 2,710,116




JECOD ELECTRIC & MACEHINERY DGk, LTD
PARENT DOMPANY OMLY STATEMRIENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE ¥EARS ENDED DECEMBER 31
(Ex jresised in e of Mew Tawan dallarg, cxsepl ai clhermise inhcaad)

CASH FLOWS PRI NV ESTIRG ACTIWTTIES
Ineresme in ofher poocivables - ickalnl pEelico
Dreis in pledged fined deperdl E
Pressacds from dispecial of avickadbdeFoe-ale Neamzl sl - non-urienl
[mersaie 1a gvalabd e-lur-sale Nnsacial v - aen-cumenl
Incresie in invesimenls scoomnied fr under oty malhol
Frexszeabs frinm dispenad of priopaty, plent end sjegrmen

Anguisition of progsiy, plast asl Sqepnen e e |
Enercaie 1a Sclomal o paisss

[lmeresss) decresde in refundshle depsils
Incteae in atker min-currenl auaets
Mt sl ows waed in irveslingg aali vilics
Fraszacds from sl Seim Do
(Do) imxae @ ofker pavalles - reliod patics Mmaaciag
Frocoeds fom reusnse ol bonds payshls
Foewliem
(Dietroios) i i ling-iarm |
Cash dividends pusd & 19]
Mt i Mews {usald =) Hom lnancing s v
Mol decreme in cash and caih squivalants
i and cash equnalens ol begiming of yex

Crrhy el cnsh, euervalents ol end af ye

Pl il ] s

.M 0F PN |
4.81% ] o
111,241 95,87
#6.557 1 37,560 )
IATL ) | 4,063,076 )
1.852 4.0
E551 ) o 9,740 )
11.040 3 o 1,340 1
L 34,397 )
19,45 ) 69,486 ]
G630 ) o 4,444,087 ]
1,877.015 ) 3,705,954
50000 o 43,460 ]

- 3,000,000

1. 500,130 ) -
3.630.89 o 3,589,876 )
160215 1 1,008 562 ]
2,06E.397 ) 49,616
350636 ) o 1 634,365 ]
1,111.21& 1,795,583
. SE1 ) 1.111.218

The sooom parmymg aolss are an mlogral pael of ihese finsncial slalemcnli
e fepail ol indejendent ssccunlanls dalal Mach 14, 7017
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REPORT OF INDEFENDENT ACCOUNTANTS TRANSLATED FROM CHINESE

To TECO Electric & Machinery Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries.

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying consclidated balance sheets of TECO Electric & Machinery Co,
Ltd. a {the “Group™) as at December 31, 2006 and 2015, and the related conselidated

statements of comprehensive income, of changes in equity and of cash flows for the years then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, inchiding a summary of significant accountmg
policies.

In our opiion based on our audits and the reports of other independent accountants, the conschdated
financial statements present famly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Group as of
December 31, 2016 and 2015, and thewr financial performance and cash flows for the vears then ended,
in conformity with the “Rules Governing the Preparation of Financial Statements by Securities Issuers”
and the International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, IFRIC
Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations as endorsed by the Financial Supervisery Commussion.

Basis for opinion

We conducted owr andits in accordance with the “Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of
Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants” and generally accepted auditing standards in the
Republic of China (ROC GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described m the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group m accordance with the Code of Professional Ethics for Certified Public
Accountants m the Republic of China (the “Code™), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities i accordance with the Code. We believe that the aundit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for ow opinion.

Key audit matters
Key andit matters are those matters that, i our professional jedgment, were of most sigmificance m our
andit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed m the
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context of owr auwdit of the consohdated financial statements as a whole and, in forming owr opinion
thereon, we do not provide a separate opiuuon on these nmtters.

Revenne recognition af export sales of motor division

Description

Please refer to Note 4(34) of the consolidated financial statements for the accounting policies on revenne
recognition and Note 14 for the segment financial information Teco Group disclosed the financial
mformation of motor division and home appliance division in the segment financial mformation Motor
division handles the mamifacturing and sales of varions machinery, equipment and motors. The sales
revemme of the motor division amounted to $30,413,219 000, representing 61% of the total sales revenme
for the year ended December 31, 2016. The clients of motor division are from China, America, South-
East Asia and Europe and the sales terms vary for different clients. Thus, we consider the revenue
recognition of motor division a key audit matter.

How ovr andit addressed the matter

We performed the followimng audit procedures on the above key andit matter:

1. Checking the mternal controls over sales revemne recognition of motor division to assess the
effectiveness of the internal control process.

2. Selected samples of export sales revemne tramsactions of motor division to examine whether the
export sales recognized actually existed.

Impairment assessment of goodwill generated from the acquisition of Motovario S.p.4.

Description

Motovario S.p.A is located m Italy, and is engaged in the mamfacturing and sales of gear redwvcers and
other power transfer equipment. Motovario S.p.A. is considered a muninmm cash-generating unit of Teco
group. As of December 31, 2016, the balance of goodwill was $5,012.878,000. Please refer to Wote 4(21)
of the consolidated financial statements for the accounting policy on the impairment assessment of
goodwill and Note 5(2) for the uncertainty of the accounting estimate regarding impairment of goodwill.
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Teco Group assesses the impamment of goodwill usmg the recoverable amonnt generated fom the cash
flow forecast discounted of reasonable discount rate.

The aforesaid recoverable amount inchudes several assumptions such as the discount rate used and the
preparation of financial projections to estimate the cash flows for the next five years. The discount rates
and financial projections relating to the fishure operations of Motovario S p A are subject to management
judgment which hawve a significant impact on the measurement of the recoverable amount, thus affecting
the resuliz of the impawrment assessment Accordingly, we consider management’s mpairment
assessment of goodwill a key audit matter.

How our andit addressed the matter

We performed the followmg andit procedures on the above key andit matter:
1. Inspecting whether the valuation model nsed by The Group s reasonable.

2. Inspectng whether the fiuture cash flows of valvation model 15 m accordance with Motovario
5.p.A%s operation plan, and reviewing the resulis of operation plan prepared by management in the
past.

3. Evaluating the reasonableness of major assumptions (mchliding the expected growth rate and
discount rate) vsed m the model

4. Assessing the sensitivity analysis of management's fivture cash flows for the above significant
assumptions and confirming whether management has adequately addressed the possible impact of
the estimated nncertainty of the impairment assessment.

Business combination - acquisition af Century Development Corperation

Description

Please refer to Note 4(36) for acconnting policies on business combination As stated i Note 6(32) of
the consolidated financial statements, the Group acquired 12.12% of the ordinary shares of Cenhuy
Development Corporation for cash of $462,233,000 in February 2016. Including the previously held
40.63% stake in the Group, the total holdings of the Group increased to 52.75% and accordingly, the
Group obtamed control over Cenfury Development Corporation. Century Development Corporation is
engaged m domestic and foreizn industrial areas and site investment and development mecluding of
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consulting, planning, development management and leasing usiness. In determining the fair valoe of
the real property and land right held from the business combination, management has commissioned a
valuation expert to evalnate the fair valoe and prepare a fair value allocation report, which is measured
and assessed on the acquisition The identifiable assets of the Group and the labilities assumed. which
will be completed within one vear affer the business combination. In addition the fransaction is a phased
merger of enterprises. The Group in accordance with the fair value of the acoquisition date to measure its
previonsly held by the acquirer's interest. As Cenfury Development Corporation’s comimon stock i3 not
quoted m active market, the management department of the Department of external experts to evaluate
the assessment of the fair value of the way. The evaluation of the fawr value of the comumnon stock in the
absence of the active market quotation mvolves the mdgment resulis and the evaluation resulis have a
significant effect on the valuation of the busmess combination. Thuos, we consider the valuation of said
acquisttion a key audit matter.

How our andit addressed the matter

We performed the following andit procedures on the above key andit matters:

1. Checking acquisition contract and certificate of proceeds paid to ascertain accuracy of counter
whether the party and cash amount details.

2. Checling the record process for the accuracy of accounting process of acquisition that divided mto
several steps.

3.  Assessing the accuracy of parameter and caleulation and the approach that management used in
evaluating the fair value of Century Development Corporation.

4. Assessing the qualifications of the management committee in appointing the valnation experts, and
evaluating the appropriateness of the parameters and models nsed.

Other matter — audit of other independent accounianis

As described in Notes 4(3) and 6(9) of the consolidated financial statements, we did not andit the
financial statements of certain subsidiaries and investments accounted for under the equity method. The
financial statements of these subsidiaries reflect total assets of $3.517.300,000 and $11.314.4158.000,
constituting 4% and 13% ofthe consolidated total assets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively,
and total operating revenmes of $2,0635,558,000 and $3,074.913,000, constituting 4% and 6% of
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consolidated total operating revemmes for the years then ended, respectively These investments
accounted for under the equity method amounted to $2.445 113,000 and $4. 040,747 000, constituting
5% and 13% of consolidated total assets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, the credit
balance of mvestments accounted for vnder equity method amounted for $55.400,000 and $28,270,000,
both constituting 0% of consolidated total assets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, and
the share of profit of associates and joint ventures accounted for under the equity method amounted to
$20,987,000 and $94 683,000, constituting 1% and 17% of the consolidated total comprehensive income
for the years then ended, respectively. Those financial statements were audited by other mdependent
accountants whose reports thereon have been furnished to vs, and our opinton expressed herein is based
solely on the audit reports of the other ndependent accountants.

Other matter —Parent company only financial reports

We have audited the parent company only financial statements of TECO Electric & Machinery Co., Ltd.
as of and for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, and have expressed a modified ungqualified

opunon on such financial statements.

Responsibilities of management and the Board of Direciors for the consolidated
Sfinancial statements

Management 15 responsible for the preparation and fawr presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the “Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers”™ and the International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards, [FRIC Interpretations. and SIC Interpretations as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory
Commussion and for such miernal confrol as management determunes 15 necessary to emable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to confinue as a going concern disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the gomg concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Duectors, inchuding audit commuttee, are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statemenis
Oy objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements

a3 a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's

report that nchides our opimon. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 1s not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ROC GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to mfluence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consohdated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ROC GAAS, we exercise professional judgment and mamtain
professional skepticism throughout the andit. We also:

1.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consclidated financial statements,
whether due to frand or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain andit evidence that 15 sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for owr opimion. The nisk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as frand may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations. or the
override of mternal control

Obtam an vnderstanding of mternal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the crcumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opimion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropnateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the aundit evidence obtained, whether a material nncertamty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
[ we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures mn the consohdated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
madeguate, to modify our opinton Our conchisions are based on the andit evidence obtained vp to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease

to continme as a going concern.
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3. Evalnpate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statememnts.
mchiding the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtam sufficient appropriate aundit evidence regarding the financial information of the enfities or
busmess activities within the Group to express an opimon on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction. supervision and performance of the growp audit. We remain
solely responsible for our andit opinion

We commmnicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audi findings, inclnding any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our andit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to commmnicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our mdependence, and where applicable, related safegnards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therelore the kev audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditor s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when in extremely rage circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be commmnicated in our report becanse the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such commumication.

PricewatethouseCoopers, Tatwan
March 24, 2017

The accompanying consolidated financial stafemments are not infended to present the fimaneial posibon and results of
operations and cash flows I acoordance wath accounting principles generally accepted n countnies and pnsdichions other
than the Fepubhc of Chma. The standards, procedures and practices m the Repubbic of Chima poverming the audit of such
finaneial statements may differ from those generally accepted In countries and jansdictions other than the Republic of China.
Accordmgly, the accompamying conselidated financial statements and report of independent accountants are not mbended for
use by those who are not mformed about the acoounting prmeiples or auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic
of China, and thesr applications in practice.

A the financial statements are the respensibility of the management, PricewaterhouselCoopers cannot accept any hability for
the use of or reliance on, the Englich translation ar for any erors @ msunderstandings that may derive from the tanslation.
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TECO FI ECTRIC & MACHINEEY CO. LTD. AND SUBSIDIARTES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31
(Expressed in thousands of Mew Taiwan dollars, except as otherwise indicated)

December 31, X116 Diecember 31, 2015
Aszzats Hiotes : : T
Carrent assets

1100 Cash and cazh equivalems (1) and & § 13,959,826 15 14,519,042 13
1110 Finamcial aszets at fair valos 4(2)

through profit or loss - curent 233,508 - 265,554
1125 Available-for-sale financial asz=tz &(3) and B

- parrent 1,584,009 1 1.462,871 2
1147 Hand mnvesments without active  6(4)

muarkets - Ccument 2,830,572 3 141,551
1150 HNotes receivable. net G(5)(f) and & 1,218,343 1 1,006,151
1160 HMotes receivable - related pardes 7 5,359 - 14,543
1170 Avcounes receivable. net (1) and B 10,424,905 11 9,329, 829 11
1180 Avcounts receivable - rlied 7

pardes 214,755 - 194 052
1184 Beceivables from costomers on 5]

constriction contmds 1,235,956 1 B3 458
1200 Oither receivables 242,304 - 323,881
210 Orther receivables - related parties 7 457, 7% 1 G932, 340 1
130X Iventories, net 6(7) and 8 11,177,041 12 11,755,227 14
1210 PBrepayments 471,200 1 333,568 1
1470 Other oxment assets 6(1) and 8 1,350,606 ) 147,045 1
1330 Total current assets 45,295,310 25 47,797,402 S

Total Non-current assets

1523 Asailable-for-sale financial assets G(3) and B

- DOm-CLITEn] 11,743,617 13 10, 5, S0 13
1550 Iowestments acoounted for mdsr (%) and 8

the equity method 5,871,259 4 5,464,797 fi
1500 Propenty, plant and equipment. (1, 7Tand 8

nef 18,463,450 20 15,018,217 18
1760 Investment property, net G(11) 5,073,386 3 2,561,442 3
1780 Infansmble assets SNEI 5,634,760 b 5,541,844
1840 Dieferred income fax assets G300 1,104, 243 1 1,183,247
1900 (Oither non-oxment assets G(13) and & 5,004 586 4 1,466,392 2
15300 Non-urrent assets 47,077,546 51 41,141,550 S
I350{  Total asseis § 2,373,956 LD a4, 434,152 108}

(Continued)
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TECO FLECTRIC & MACHINERY C0., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARTES
CONSOLIDATED BATAMCE SHEFTE

YEARS FMDFD DECEMBER 31
{Exprassed in thomsands of Mew Tarwan dollars, except as otherwise indicated)

Decambar 31, J016

December 31, 2015

Liahiitias and Fgeity Motes AMOUNT Y AMOTMNT "
Current iabilites
2100 Short-term borrowings §(14) and 8 3 3,078,361 4 § 6,619,012 #
2130 Financisl liabilifies at far value  6{175)
throegh proft or bows - camant - - L5.043 -
2150 Motes payahbla 163 . 16l - 112,058 -
2160 Motes payahbls - related partiss. 7 1,611 - L.313 -
2170 Arcounts payahle T.511,353 E: 6,628,882 #
2150 Accounts payable - related parties 7 90 117 - 05764 -
2150 Payables to cavtomen om LA ]
comstmLction comiracty 02,021 - J6T 447 -
2200 Otbsar payables 616 4 948 650 f 4,862,815 b
2230 Crurrunt inpome tx liabilides §(30) 550441 1 555.4M l
350 Pronisioms for lishilities - current MM - 256,970 -
2300 Otbsar corant Habiliies G{1T)(1E) 2,075,836 2 3,100, 186 4
21X Tatal current liabilites L3, 058 845 21 22, T15.038 27
MNom-current liabilices
2530 Corporate bonds payable §(17) 3000, 000 3 3000 00 3
2540 Long-term bormowings 6{18) and & 0.428,570 19 2,500, 50 3
2550 Provisioms for Liabilities - mom-
carrant 250,317 - 230,265 -
2570 Defarmed incoms tax liabilities  6(30) 1485 443 3 2,317.721 3
2600 Cibar noo-~coment liabilites G515 2,526,238 3 2,438 425 3
K Total nom-current Eaxbdisie: L7600 568 19 10, 286,710 12
TOY Tatal Habilicies 36,640 413 4 33,000,748 39
Eguiry ariributable to owners of
parent
Share capitsl 6209
3110 Commmom stock 10,006,524 22 20,026,929 24
Capiral surples 5(21)
3200 Capital surplas T.671, 880 E: 7,638,417 #
Eriamed sarning: 522330y
531 Lagal resarve 5. 730,071 ] 5,412,542 7
330 Special reserve 3.640,7T9 4 3,640,779 4
3350 Unapproprizted retaimed sarmings L, Bl6 G2 13 10,300,158 12
Ohtber equity imtenest §(23)
00 Crbar equify Inhamst L. 1&6,773 1 156,980 1
3500 Treanmy siccks 6(20) and & 3215630 - 331 .563) -
X Equity anribuiable to ewners
of the parent 49,731,567 54 47, 464,042 56
INH  Neo-controlling interest 5502 076 f ER 3
OO Total equiry 55,124,543 ] 51,450, 504 fi
Commirmenr: and coningent 9
Sehrequent evemis 11
BIX Toeal Babdlimes and equiry £ 81.373.8% 1§ 54,434 252 100

The accompenying notes ame an integral part of these comolidatd fnancial statements.
e ruport of independent accountants dated March 24, 2017,
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TECOELECTRIC & MACHINERY (0. LTD. AND SUBSITIARIES

O SOLIDAT EDY STAT EMENTS OF DMOOME
FUR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31

[Expa m U &l Hew T el il dek oleerweiie sl icated)
Visar endad Decemnber 31
DG 2015
lizms Mated AMCHITT T AMOLINT T
A Sales peves T4} and 7 5 45,913,836 100 4E. 594,573 100
ST Dperaling il BTN 9N KTV anl
T { 36,738, 3] o T 36,.203,.098) T
S50 St T AliSE i pis 13,135,532 1 12,395,534 26
3910 Unrsalised ok from sales I 6. 615) - ¥, 4E8) -
390) Rz read il Triem sales 5. 438 - 10, 265 -
SUND Mef aperaling diargin 13,134,305 15 12.400,311 26
Dperating eagumics B 19H2EN2)
&1 Selhing exponses | 4,495, 7310 o LI . 155, B57) | 0
E200 Gieneral s adiinistign & expenics [ 3,055,599 { 6 i 3.021,608) | 3]
&30 R b and desvelog i | 1,380, 6M ¢ 310 1,435, 2M4) | b
S Tl speraling cxjscnses { 2,94, 9040 ¢ LB} E.G12,634) | 1Eb
G600 Dperating praft 4,158,481 8 3. 787,627 i
i-neralisg income and eajenses
T (b pmcome G425 ) nd 7 1,160, 06 2 1,361, 206 3
TODY (Ehey gime mnd lossss BINIH1I NI INZEN3
I) { 43,05} - SILB0T) 0 b
TR Finance oosls &/ 10027} { 32,1311 - 2ETBE1) b
To6D Share of pralfil of assecsies and joind 67}
weniluied acvcounisd ke mda the
ity method | o, W0 - 153,934 -
TO0 Tital nos-sgerating income and
LRSS 743,810 1 75,644 1
TR Prafi before incame Lax 4,933,181 o 4.563, 271 g
THND I Ls expense &30 { 6, 293) o 2} 1 1.04%,155) | 1h
4200 Profi fr ihe pericd ¥ 4,03, 98 B 3514, 116 7
(Contmaed)
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TECOELECTRIC & BMACHINERY 01 LTD. AMND SLUBSITHARIES

O SCHUIDWAT ELY STAT EMENTS OF INCOBE

FUR THE YEARS EMDED DECEMBER 31

[Expressed m thousands ol Mew Tamwaa dellas, ewcepl o olksrwine snlicated)

lizms

Ve eadad Dexssnber 31

LG

2015

AMCHLINT

e

AMOLNT

a3mn

130y

a4

b k][]

236l

2362

23T

a3

1360

2300

A50n

D L]

7
T

ki
SR

Other com prolessive inosms
Other com prolessive inosms thal
will mid b reclassilfed o praf or
Fann

(Mhey comprehemive incame, belive  &19)

e, sfuarial ok on &finsd
Bensi pliss
Share of alher comprchenmive
moneme of aveocsabos and joist
el sevouniad e wang equily
methed, Sompomms ol ofhes
cmpercheno ve mones et wall sl
B feclasmled W pradil o liss
" e f
wlher compechensy e indamse et
walll mol bt Fedasdaficd b profil of
Toan
Compiasnts of Mbier
comprehie nsive soae thal will
nist be reclssilied 1o profilor
lisiii
her e el e oo thal
will he reclassilied to prafil or kas
0 datian difle ol
Ercign opaiaiang
Unrealied gan {lokk) on valeilion
ol arv inbible-fior -aile l dkicty
Share of alher comprchenmive
moneme of aveocsabos and joist
el eauniad ke mdar 1he

aquily methid - cther comprehensive

minime el will b sockiaafiod ta
ol of ke
lisazae Live felaling o the

ol athar 1

e

monie: it il s pechaified)
Composzats af other
conprehensive iscas: thal will
be rechissified o prafit or lios
Other comprelessie e (Lo
Far the perisd
Titad camgrehensive income for the
peerindd
Prafit antrilietabde mn:
Uhernazra ol e parent
Moen-goatielhng imleres

U osgsre hessive inioie arcribusilbe
LITH
Uhwnets ol e pasenl
Moen-goatielhng imleres

Edrniggs per share {in Sallars)
Basic carnings per ke
Dlwted carsisgs per ihare

T dcai sty iy Rl aoe o ialegeal i ol e

ol &[30)

&T3)

{ 11,532)

6L, Bl

5,113)

{ 51,241

65, 1431

B3 N23)

&T3)

&30}

631}

A

2540, 1510 1

2, 85)

3,52

Ih

3]

2,883, BLG)

50

2.953,958) |

&0

360,158

3177, 351
136 B15

3514, 116

359,066
201,053

560, 158

dudated i

See repoit ol independent acomnlanl daled Masch 24, 2017
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IECOFTLECTRIC & MACEINERY €0, LTI AND SUBSTOTARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOB. THE YEARS FNDFD DECEMBER 31
{Exprecsed n thonsands of Mow Taiwan dollam, except e othorodse indicated))

Hotas 2018 P
CASH FLOWS FROM OPFRATING ACTIVITIES
Profit bafors tax £ 4,933,201 § 4,563,271
Adpestmants
Adinstments o momols profit (bous)
Mt bows (gain) on fnancal assats at fir valne through profit 8 23(25)
o Jous { 12,007 » o 56,5300
Nt lows on Exancial Habdlitios af fair valee throngh prefitor 8 13(025)
loss { 1,214 ) 14,630
{Fewursal of) provisicn for allowancs for donbtfnl accounts &) | 11,72 ) 30, 08
Provision fir decline in value of inventories 5T 52,253 156, 665
Interest incoms B{2T) { L72,217 % o 178,084 b
Dividend incoms H2IN | 560,089 o 476,663 )
Infarest axpense 6{2T) 2,231 227,651
Cepreciation and amortzation S{10{1128) |, 540, 723 1.307,530
iZain om disposal of investmeats B{2h(285) { GI9, 104 5 177,504 b
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipmest 826 | G647 » 14, 233
Impairmeat loss L) LE? 277 413,155
Share of profit of associates and joint venreres accoumted for B{T)
endar the sguity method 91,2650 153,536 )
Forsign carmancy sxchangs bows (gain) of bonds payabla 1,620 o 20,100 )
Eha:ugn: in operating meets and Eabdlites
Chamge: in oparating assats
Financin] assets at fair valee fmoegh proft or boss - coment &4 4 108, 548
Motes recaivabls { 212,164 » 67,433
MNoiws recsivahls - relaied pariies 9,544 24, 180
Arcounts recaivable { Lo, 196 5 504,850
Accounts receivable - related partiss { 18,936 ) £
Bacenahble: from cavtorsers oo constructicn contracts | 414 111 » IR, 54T
Crthar receivables L78 066 o 63,257 )
Orthiar recedvalbles - ralated partiss 23,411 9,241
Imventoriss 525,033 G981, 140
Prepayments { LID 821 b o 82,185 )
Crther corent assets { LZ7 198 » 81,192
Champe: in operting Habilities
Tots payeble 4,506 T8 )
Motes paypals - related parties | 44 5 | 7,537 )
Arcomnts payabile g ,574 | L.857 814 3
Accounts paysble - related parties 3,351 2,178
Payahles bo cushomars on construction contracts { LET 304 » T, 126
Crthar payablas T2, B45 164,15
Provistoms for liabilitios 35,300 67, T4
Crther corrent Babilities { 372,607 0 {0,065 )
Orthar nos-cormnt Habilitios | 141 &TE b
Cash inflow generated Som oparations 4,925,765 5,784,748
Tntarest Tecaivad B{2T) 172,217 178, (84
Dividend recaived 62 TG 4l6 a5] 00
Intarest paid 6{2T) { 2,250 0 27,681 b
Income tax paid {30 | 671,738 ¥ o 244, TLE b
Hat cash flows from opemating activifies 4 250 430 554 48
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IECOFLECTRIC & MACEINERY €O, LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSCOLIMATED STATEMFNTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOE THE YEARS ENDEFD DECEMBFR 31
(Expressed in thomsands of Mew Taiwan dollam, except 2: otharndse indcated)

Hobes 2018 013
CASH FLOWS FROM INUESTING ACTIVITIES
Encrease in othar receivables-related partias 7 i 26,500 % -
{Imcreass) decreass in avadlable-for-sale fSnancial asset - oumat 11,067 142,407 5
(Bacareass) decreass i band imvestments without active markst 2,689,021 ) | 19,001
Eoezs in pledged demand and fixed dapasits ] 13,811 ¥ o ZED 50 b
Procesds from disposal of available-for-sale finamcial assets -

Dom-CurTet 025 473 G, 142
Acquisitiem of available-for-sale Emancial assets - nom-cumest 150,632 ¥ o Bl 440y
Inoease in myvestments accounted for mder the eqety method 1,83y 500, TE4 b
Ariuisitiom of proparty, plant and equipment 6{1H(33) 1464972 3 1 L6896 681 )
Procesds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 63,713 28,591
Acquisiticn of intangible assets 225,000) 167,084
Decreass i resimictad aswts 1 | FIL]
{Increase) decTeass in other non-coment assets 621,17 ) 57,50
Mot cash inflow [outflow) o acquisitions of sebuidiarias S35 266,268 | 3,894,036 )

Wik cash flows msed in imwsting activities 3. 779,570 0 5867046 0
CASH FLOWS FROM FIMANCTNG ACTIVITIES
Ioeese (Decuass) in short-term loans 3.540,650 » 3,726,661
Inoease (Seceass) in long-term loans 5588, 166 5. 193,015
Repaymant of bunds payablae 1,500,200 ) .
Procesds from issesnce of bonds payabls 6(1T) - 3,004, D00
Cash dividends paid 5023 1602154 5 1 2,202,962 b
Mat cash flows msed in financing activitios 1054, 839y 1 L. 269,526 )
Exchangs ramw afoct D5 256 ) ARG, 8 b
Mot dersase in cash and cash equivalemts L e L J2ED G648 )
Cath and cash squivaloms at baginming of yuar 14,919,042 17,201,690
Cash and cash squivalenss at und of year i [3.985 .84 % 14,900, 042

The accompamying notes are am integral part of these consolidated fizancial statemants.

S ruport of independent accountants dated March 24, 20017
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Yearsnded Dececiber 30, 2017
Balamcs af Fanmary 1, 2013
Appropritations of 2014 net income
Rammal of specal mesns
Leml mwrmw
Cash dnidends
e e o sgy s wd
mwthod
Difmace b o rice £ seqison
Changes @ mom-controling imsmsts
Crthar comprehamsive ncoms for the weer
Profst for the year
Balamcs 2t Docamber 31, 2013
E . i rariod Juna 30 7018
Balance at Fanuary 1, 2016
Appropritation of 2017 not incoms
Leml mwrm
Cash dridends
B g oy o i md
eathod
Changes I mom-controling iesmsts
Crihar comprehensive inconw for the period
Proft for the paried
Balancs at Faze 30, 2016

TECOELECTRIC & MACHMERY O [TD. AND SUBSIDIARTES
CONSOLIDATED STATRMEMTS OF CEANGES N EOUNTY
EORTHEVEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

-

{Expreased in thousamds of Mew Taiwan dollar, sxcept as otharwise mdicaed)

¥y a ttr i b mt ablae t o 0 W 0 & I & o f t h &

Retamod Famings Cthar pquity iméaret
Frzomcial
He st 3 Unmalized gain
tranzlation arloss oo
Umapprommiated — diferences of availzhis -for-

Capital Special moained fomign wals fmemcial Treasury

spls Lol msarm ey AT

ALEAE shocks

Total

HNoo-rontolling

Total aqity

623)
622)

623)
627)

§ 20,006, 929

57,600,552 $ 5,005,450 379778 § 9.M1.155 I v § 366,632 ($50

. A 7007 3 27007 - -
- 404, 692 - 5,692 ) - -

03 b

§ 49,7070,

(iE]

£ 4.018,540

§53

JZBR.TE2

- - - - 2,202,962 ) - - - 202, 62 - 3,202,962
- 10,005 - - - - - - 10,1005 - 0,005
. a7 B - - - - - - ITE60 - 7 B0
- - - - - - - - - 251,219
- - - - i 55,6411 o 330,902 y [ 2,422,682) - 2B18. 225 ) } 2,053 958
- - - - 3,171,201 - - - 3T 336,823 3.514.116
§ 20,006, 929 §7.,638,417 $ 5,412, 542 $ 3,640,770 § 10,310,158 i 13,030 ] 43,950 (3321,563 » 847 464,042 § 3,008 462 § 51,432, 504

¥ 20,006,929

§7.638417 F5a2.05a 53,540,779 § 10,310,158 o103 ] 43,950 ($321

- 37,729 -

- - - 1,602.154) - -

3341 - - - - -
- - - 35,066 ) 0 1.064.783 ) 1.474,5%

- - - 3,481,480 b z

o363 b

47 454,

1,602, 1

AT

AT

1.480

5 5.008,402

1500431

ILA433 )

535.518

AT

00431

33,2392

36,908

§ 20006, 29

57,671,680 5 5. 130.0M 5 3.0, 778 § 01,816,680 (51,081,789 § BI85 (3311

303 b

5 49. 731,

5 5.092.976

ST, M3

The acoompanying notes &% an inteemal part of these consclidaed finandal stbements.
Ses report of independsnt accountants dated March 24, 2017.
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TECD ELECTRIC & PIACHIMERY €300 LT[ AMD SUSSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDAT ED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2014
[ Expremed m thousands ol Mew Taiwen dolle)

Moz 23 2004 {Adjuial}
CASH FLOAAS FROM OPERATIMG ACTIVITIES
Profin befare Lax b4 4,563,271 i 5.600 971
Al juitmenis
Ay L] de: peadil (Lo}
el jpain on lnkecisl gmets ol Gir valee Grough profil of ke E2N2T) i 56,50 ) 69173 )
Mot o {jgam) on firsecea] Eabalitios 2 G value through profil or less S15NIT) 4,60 1.163 )
Peovisn for doubelsl BE} .8 3
Provizmn F {revaral of) doclins sn valus ol irvaalone &) ] 35,665 i 156,21 )
Intaet meoms &35 { 173,084 ) | 151 465 )
Divadend mosme B(2E) i 76,663 0 BLITT )
Intsiest eapense &21) 227 691 15,363
Diepracistion sd dmerlizslion (L1 I 1.307,538 1.325.53%
Cisin on duposl of secslments SIINIT) { 177,504 1 135044 )
Livicil [ g i3 dwigpei] ol prisperty, plaml and eguif &2T) w3 5 TR )
I prermeni ks SEANIOHETY 411,193 260 62
Share of profit ol ssscsisies md join d fior under e 69
ety methesd [ 153,936 ) o 180,315 )
Forcign cumency cachange {gam) loss of Bosals pavalic &IT i %100 ) 51,200
[hampsd in opaiainyg ssssli and hablilies
Champes in opeialng akasti
Frunezal aveets of fair value Ueough pealil o los - srent &2} 196, 45 w019
Males pecen able &5} 7,433 125,556
Maled pevervalble - Felibed partics T M08 60,267 )
Astnunls resavalile L] 5 E50 3TT.EID
Aol recaivahle - rolaial partees T B Q.897 )
Rowivabies om cutlomerns on constiuclion conlass &4} T H.OET
(e receivabiles { 63,25 ) .79 )
(b recavabiles - relalal partes T 9,242 { 105716 )
livenlinies (T} 9E1. 140 212,323 )
Propavmenis i ElL.B5 ) 115004
(Whe cufresd avet El,192 51.87
{hampes in operang kalekhliss
Ml paryabsle i TEM) O 133,038 )
Moted pary pule - related parmey T [ T35 0 2.073 )
Actunts prvalds { 1.B57,614 ) ¢ w0355 )
ool jervabls - reliled pEetie T 1.1m T.556
Payable e culleamia on coasliclion oonalradls &y %, 136 7. 305
(ke parvables L] 164, 156 Tl
Provasins For balubises &7, 46 20,859 )
(b current kalukizes i IMME ) IE64 )
(b pen-cusvent labilities i 141,ET8 ) E3.80%
sk inliow gensrstad e epaabons 5704, 748 5,801 663
Inbeest poia vl B2E) 178, (54 150 M55
Diiwademd pezived &) 651,005 558,510
Ircrest paid &(23) { 1T 0 136,734 )
Inzome ke pad &31) i BLTIBD O 1. 197 456 )
Pt cmsh Mires Bom operating sosvilbes 5541 418 5. L7 . 400
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DONSOLIDAT ED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2014

[Expreimed m thousgnds ol Mew Town dollis)

Hikzs 2015 2004 {Adjuial )}

LASH FLOPAG FRO INVESTING ACTIVITIES
- i oibice bl e-redaind partics H ] 1£3,.000
I in availahle- o -mle G | gamets - &3] 142,407 3 & 206612
I i Baad bl pitave markal &) 19.mly f 15910
{E ! m plelgad d ] sl el deg 1 IE1,558 ) T .41
Proocesds fom disposal of svailable-Tor-ale G al axacts - &(3) 73,142 950143
A ol availahle-lor-sales i al dicects - mn-Cuseenl &(3) R L I 164 TS
I i i I fior e et exuity bl %) I, T | BE, M1
Aerpmition of property, plnt sl cquipsen EC1N3) 1,606,681 5 & 1.545 BT
Ps & fo dispoasl of propeety, plast sl egquip &1 3, 5 1.21%.351
Arguaton of intangible ssscts 167,084 ) 50,2656
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TECO Electric & Machinery Co., Ltd.

Distribution of 2016 Profits
(In NT $)

Item

Amount

Accumulated undistributed profit as of the beginning of the period
Less: Retained earnings after adjustment in 2016

Accumulated undistributed earnings after adjustment

Add: Net Profit after tax in 2016

Less : Legal Reserve

8,390,274,224

(55,064,738)

8,335,209,486

3,481,479,502
(348,147,950)

Total distributable earnings

11,468,541,038

Profit available for distribution for the period:
Profit-sharing to shareholders

(Dividend per share)

1,762,369,740

0.88

Undistributed profit as of the end of 2016

9,706,171,298

Note :

1. Defined Pension Obligation actuarial gains and losses, and
recognized as Other comprehensive income including it into
retained earnings

Notes:

1. Dividend per share in 2016 is NT$0.88 and all dividends distributed this year shall be

cash dividend.

where there is a shortfall.

The profit distributed this period will be distributed from the distributable earnings
received in 2016 and from the accumulated undistributed profits from previous years

In the event of any change to the total number of outstanding shares as a result of the
issuance of convertible bond, Company’s buyback of its own shares, transfer, conversion
or deregistration of treasury shares, exercise of employees’ stock option and other
factors, it is proposed that the Shareholders’ Meeting grants the Chairman full authority

to handle all relevant matters subject to the fixed payout rate mentioned above.
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TECO Electric & Machinery Co., Ltd.

Comparison of Current Provision and Proposed Amendment to

Procedure for Acquisition or Disposal of Assets

Proposed Provision

Current Amendment

Note

Article 7

Procedure for acquisition or
disposal of real property or
other fixed assets

1. Evaluation and procedure of
operation

Acquisition or disposal of real
property and equipments by the
Company shall be in accordance
with the Company’'s internal
control policy pertaining to the
revolving of fixed assets.

2. Procedure for determining the
terms of transaction and approval
of transaction

2.1 The terms and transaction
price of the acquisition or
disposal of real property shall be
determined by reference to,
among others, the posted current
value, appraised value, and the
actual transaction price of other
real property located nearby.
Transactions with a value of less
than TWD50 million may precede
with the approval of the
President. Transactions with a
value of between TWD50 million
and TWD100 million each may
proceed with the approval of the
Chairman of the Board of
Directors and shall be reported to
the immediately subsequent
meeting of the Board of Directors.
Transactions with a value of over
TWD100 million must be
approved by the Board of
Directors in advance.

2.2 Acquisition or disposal of
equipments shall be conducted
by way of issuing request for
proposal, price competition under
restricted tendering, and price
negotiation under single

Article 7

Procedure for acquisition or
disposal of real property or
other fixed assets

1. Evaluation and procedure of
operation

Acquisition or disposal of real
property and equipments by the
Company shall be in accordance
with the Company’s internal
control policy pertaining to the
revolving of fixed assets.

2. Procedure for determining the
terms of transaction and approval
of transaction

2.1 The terms and transaction
price of the acquisition or
disposal of real property shall be
determined by reference to,
among others, the posted current
value, appraised value, and the
actual transaction price of other
real property located nearby.
Transactions with a value of less
than TWD50 million may precede
with the approval of the
President. Transactions with a
value of between TWD50 million
and TWD100 million each may
proceed with the approval of the
Chairman of the Board of
Directors and shall be reported to
the immediately subsequent

meeting of the Board of Directors.

Transactions with a value of over
TWD100 million must be
approved by the Board of
Directors in advance.

2.2 Acquisition or disposal of
equipments shall be conducted
by way of issuing request for
proposal, price competition under
restricted tendering, and price
negotiation under single
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tendering or bidding. The
approval thereof shall be in
accordance with the Schedule of
Functions and Authority compiled
pursuant to the relevant bylaws of
the Company.

2.3 Where the acquisition or
disposal of assets by the
Company in accordance with the
relevant procedure or other laws
must be approved by the Board
of Directors in advance, the
opposition expressed by the
Director with  written record
thereof taken or in writing shall be
submitted to Audit Committee.
On the acquisition or disposal of
assets duly proposed to the
Board of Directors for approval,
opinion  expressed by the
Independent Director shall be
sufficiently considered with their
concurrence or dissent
expressed and the reason
therefore duly recorded in the
meeting minutes.

3. Unit in charge of execution of
transaction

Upon approval of the proposed
acquisition or disposal of real
property or equipments pursuant
to the preceding paragraph, the
responsible department and the
Corporate Finance &
Management Division shall take
charge of the execution thereof.
4. Appraisal report on real
property or equipments

Where the transaction value of
the acquisition or disposal of real
property or equipments amounts
to 20% or more of the paid-in
capital of the Company or
TWD300 million or more, an
appraisal report produced by a
professional appraiser must be
obtained before the date the fact
happens in accordance with the
following, except in cases where
the transaction counterpart is a
government institutions, or the
transaction is an entrusted

tendering or bidding. The
approval thereof shall be in
accordance with the Schedule of
Functions and Authority compiled
pursuant to the relevant bylaws of
the Company.

2.3 Where the acquisition or
disposal of assets by the
Company in accordance with the
relevant procedure or other laws
must be approved by the Board
of Directors in advance, the
opposition expressed by the
Director with written record
thereof taken or in writing shall be
submitted to Audit Committee. On
the acquisition or disposal of
assets duly proposed to the
Board of Directors for approval,
opinion expressed by the
Independent Director shall be
sufficiently considered with their
concurrence or dissent expressed
and the reason therefore duly
recorded in the meeting minutes.

3. Unit in charge of execution of
transaction

Upon approval of the proposed
acquisition or disposal of real
property or equipments pursuant
to the preceding paragraph, the
responsible department and the
Corporate Finance &
Management Division shall take
charge of the execution thereof.

4. Appraisal report on real
property or equipments

Where the transaction value of
the acquisition or disposal of real
property or equipments amounts
to 20% or more of the paid-in
capital of the Company or
TWD300 million or more, an
appraisal report produced by a
professional appraiser must be
obtained before the date the fact
happens in accordance with the
following, except in cases where
the transaction counterpart is a
government agencies, or the
transaction is an entrusted
construction project on a

Change
government
agencies to
government
institutions, in
line with the
revision of the
statute by the
Financial
Supervisory
Commission
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construction  project on a
self-owned land or a leased land,
or the objects to be acquired or
disposed of is equipment for
business purpose.

4.1 Where the transaction price
shall be determined by reference
to any restricted, designated
price or special price for whatever
special reason, the transaction
and all subsequent changes to
the terms thereof (if any) must be
submitted to the Board of
Directors for approval in advance.

4.2 Where the transaction value
amounts to TWD21 billion or
more, the appraisal shall be
conducted by two or more
professional appraisers.

4.3 If the appraisal conducted by
the professional appraiser runs
into either of the following
conditions, except the appraisal
value of the acquired assets is
higher than the trading value or
the appraisal value of the
disposed assets is lower than
the trading value, subsequent
handling by certified public
accountant in accordance with
the No. 20 Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards
published by ARD Foundation
should be sought for as well as
its opinion with respect to the
reasons accounting for the price
difference and the acceptability
of the transaction price:

4.3.1 The amount difference
between the appraised value and
the transaction value amounts to
20% of the transaction value.

4.3.2 The amount difference
among the appraised values as
a result of the appraisals
conducted by two or more
professional appraiser's amounts
to 10% or more of the
transaction value.

self-owned land or a leased land,
or the objects to be acquired or
disposed of is equipment for
business purpose.

4.1 Where the transaction price
shall be determined by reference
to any restricted, designated price
or special price for whatever
special reason, the transaction
and all subsequent changes to
the terms thereof (if any) must be
submitted to the Board of
Directors for approval in advance.

4.2 Where the transaction value
amounts to TWD1 billion or more,
the appraisal shall be conducted
by two or more professional
appraisers.

4.3 If the appraisal conducted by
the professional appraiser runs
into either of the following
conditions, except the appraisal
value of the acquired assets is
higher than the trading value or
the appraisal value of the
disposed assets is lower than the
trading value, subsequent
handling by certified public
accountant in accordance with
the No. 20 Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards published
by ARD Foundation should be
sought for as well as its opinion
with respect to the reasons
accounting for the price
difference and the acceptability of
the transaction price:

4.3.1 The amount difference
between the appraised value and
the transaction value amounts to
20% of the transaction value.

4.3.2 The amount difference
among the appraised values as a
result of the appraisals conducted
by two or more professional
appraiser’'s amounts to 10% or
more of the transaction value.

4.4 The appraisal report date and

46




4.4 The appraisal report date and
the date of creation of the
transaction contract conducted by
professional appraiser must not
be apart for more than 3 months.
Notwithstanding, if the same
posted present value has been
adopted to calculate the value
and the above two dates are less
than 6 months apart, the written
opinion of the original
professional appraiser may be
sought.

4.5 Where the Company has
acquired or disposed of the asset
by auction by the court, the
relevant written evidence
document issued by the court
may operate in place of the
appraisal report or certified public
accountant’s opinion.

5. The aforementioned trading
value should be calculated
according to Article 15.1.5. The
period is the one year before the
occurrence of the trading. The
obtaining of appraisal report or
CPA’s opinions can not be
included.

the date of creation of the
transaction contract conducted by
professional appraiser must not
be apart for more than 3 months.
Notwithstanding, if the same
posted present value has been
adopted to calculate the value
and the above two dates are less
than 6 months apart, the written
opinion of the original
professional appraiser may be
sought.

4.5 Where the Company has
acquired or disposed of the asset
by auction by the court, the
relevant written evidence
document issued by the court
may operate in place of the
appraisal report or certified public
accountant’s opinion.

5. The aforementioned trading
value should be calculated
according to Article 15.1.5. The
period is the one year before the
occurrence of the trading. The
obtaining of appraisal report or
CPA’s opinions can not be
included.

Article 11
Procedure for acquisition or
disposal of intangible assets

1. Evaluation and procedure for
operation

The acquisition or disposal of
intangible  assets by the
Company shall be conducted in
accordance with the Company’s
internal control policy pertaining
to the revolving of fixed assets.

2. Terms of transaction and
procedure for approval of
transaction

2.1 The terms and transaction
price of the proposed acquisition
or disposal of intangible assets
shall be determined by reference

Article 11
Procedure for acquisition or
disposal of intangible assets

1. Evaluation and procedure for
operation

The acquisition or disposal of
intangible assets by the Company
shall be conducted in accordance
with the Company’s internal
control policy pertaining to the
revolving of fixed assets.

2. Terms of transaction and
procedure for approval of
transaction

2.1 The terms and transaction
price of the proposed acquisition
or disposal of intangible assets
shall be determined by reference
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to the evaluation report produced
by an expert or the fair market
value. Transactions with a
transaction value of less than
TWD30 milion each may
proceed with the approval of the
President. Transactions with a
value of between TWD30 million
and TWD60 million may proceed
with the approval of the Chairman
and shall be reported to the
immediate subsequent meeting
of the Board of Directors.
Transactions with a value of over
TWD60 million each must be
approved by the Board of
Directors in advance.

2.2 Where the acquisition or
disposal of assets by the
Company in accordance with the
relevant procedure or other laws
must be approved by the Board
of Directors in advance, the
opposition expressed by the
Director with  written  record
thereof taken or in writing shall be
submitted to Audit Committee.
On the acquisition or disposal of
assets duly proposed to the
Board of Directors for approval,
opinion  expressed by the
Independent Director shall be
sufficiently considered with their
concurrence or dissent
expressed and the reason
therefore duly recorded in the
meeting minutes.

3. Unit in charge of execution of
transaction

Upon approval of the proposed
acquisition  or  disposal  of
membership or intangible assets
or other fixed assets pursuant to
the preceding paragraph, the
responsible department and the
Corporate Finance &
Management Division shall take
charge of the execution thereof.

4. Expert evaluation report on
membership or intangible assets

Except the transaction with

to the evaluation report produced
by an expert or the fair market
value. Transactions with a
transaction value of less than
TWD30 million each may proceed
with the approval of the President.
Transactions with a value of
between TWD30 million and
TWD60 million may proceed with
the approval of the Chairman and
shall be reported to the immediate
subsequent meeting of the Board
of Directors. Transactions with a
value of over TWDG60 million each
must be approved by the Board of
Directors in advance.

2.2 Where the acquisition or
disposal of assets by the
Company in accordance with the
relevant procedure or other laws
must be approved by the Board of
Directors in advance, the
opposition expressed by the
Director with written record thereof
taken or in writing shall be
submitted to Audit Committee. On
the acquisition or disposal of
assets duly proposed to the Board
of Directors for approval, opinion
expressed by the Independent
Director shall be sufficiently
considered with their concurrence
or dissent expressed and the
reason therefore duly recorded in
the meeting minutes.

3. Unit in charge of execution of
transaction

Upon approval of the proposed
acquisition  or  disposal  of
membership or intangible assets
or other fixed assets pursuant to
the preceding paragraph, the
responsible department and the
Corporate Finance &
Management Division shall take
charge of the execution thereof.

4. Expert evaluation report on
membership or intangible assets

Except the transaction with
government agencies, where the

Change
government
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government institutions, where
the transaction value of the
acquisition or disposal of
membership or intangible asset
by the Company amounts to 20%
of the paid-in capital of the
Company or TWD300 million, the
opinion of a certified public
accountant on the acceptability of
the proposed transaction price
should be sought for before the
date the fact happens, who shall
act in accordance with the No. 20
Statement of Auditing Standards
published by the ARD
Foundation.

5. The aforementioned trading
value should be calculated
according to Article 15.1.5. The
period is the one year before the
occurrence of the trading. The
obtaining of appraisal report or
CPA's opinions can be excluded.

transaction value of the
acquisition  or  disposal  of
membership or intangible asset by
the Company amounts to 20% of
the paid-in capital of the Company
or TWD300 million, the opinion of
a certified public accountant on
the acceptability of the proposed
transaction price should be sought
for before the date the fact
happens, who shall act in
accordance with the No. 20
Statement of Auditing Standards
published by the ARD Foundation.

5. The aforementioned trading
value should be calculated
according to Article 15.1.5. The
period is the one year before the
occurrence of the trading. The
obtaining of appraisal report or
CPA’s opinions can be excluded.

agencies to
government
institutions, in
line with the
revision of the
statute by the
Financial
Supervisory
Commission

Article 14

Procedure for handling merger,
spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares

1. Evaluation and procedure of
operation

1.1 The Company shall, for the
purpose of a merger, spin-off,
acquisition or assignment of
shares, call a meeting of the legal
counsel, certified public
accountant and underwriter for
joint discussion to determine the
timetable of the legal proceeding
and organize a special group to
execute the legal proceeding.
The Company shall also seek the
opinion of the certified public
accountant, legal counsel or
underwriter with respect to the
acceptability of the proposed
swap ratio, acquisition price or,
cash or other property to be
distributed to the shareholders
and submit the same to the
meeting of the Board of Directors
for approval. The company need
not obtain reasonable opinions

Article 14

Procedure for handling merger,
spin-off, acquisition or assignment
of shares

1. Evaluation and procedure of
operation

1.1 The Company shall, for the
purpose of a merger, spin-off,
acquisition or assignment of
shares, call a meeting of the legal
counsel, certified public
accountant and underwriter for
joint discussion to determine the
timetable of the legal proceeding
and organize a special group to
execute the legal proceeding. The
Company shall also seek the
opinion of the certified public
accountant, legal counsel or
underwriter with respect to the
acceptability of the proposed
swap ratio, acquisition price or,
cash or other property to be
distributed to the shareholders
and submit the same to the
meeting of the Board of Directors
for approval.

There is no need
to solicit opinions
of experts on
reasonableness
of the ratio of
share swap, as,
according to the
FSC's

suggestion,
acquisition of
100% owned

subsidiaries or
merger of 100%
owned subsidies,
on the basis of
Enterprises
Mergers and
Acquisitions Act,
is tantamount in
essence to
corporate
restructuring of a
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from experts, as mentioned
above, for acquiring subsidies
100% owned, in terms of issued
shares or paid-in_capital, by the
company directly or indirectly or
merger _of subsidiaries 100%
owned, in terms of issued shares
or paid-in capital, by the company
directly.

1.2 The Company shall, prior to
the convention of the relevant
Shareholders Meeting, produce
the document on disclosure of
the material agreement and
relevant matters on the proposed
merge, spin-off or acquisition and
submit such document to all
shareholders together with the
expert opinion provided in
paragraph 1.1 of this Article and
the meeting minutes as reference
for the shareholders to determine
to or not to approve the proposed
merger, spin-off or acquisition,
except in case where a relevant
resolution adopted by the
Shareholders Meeting is not
legally required. If any of the
participant companies is unable
to convene the meeting, or to

obtain the resolution of its
shareholders meeting on the
proposed merger, spin-off or

acquisition because the number
of shares represented at the
meeting fell short of the quorum
for the meeting or the proposal is
denied by the meeting, the
participant ~ companies  shall
promptly give a public
explanation of the cause, the
subsequent handling and
reschedule a date for convening
the shareholders meeting.

2. Other matters for attention

2.1 Date of convention of the
relevant meeting of the Board of
Directors:

Except as otherwise provided by
law or there being any special
factor which has been approved

1.2 The Company shall, prior to
the convention of the relevant
Shareholders Meeting, produce
the document on disclosure of the
material agreement and relevant
matters on the proposed merge,
spin-off or acquisition and submit
such document to all shareholders
together with the expert opinion
provided in paragraph 1.1 of this
Article and the meeting minutes
as reference for the shareholders
to determine to or not to approve
the proposed merger, spin-off or
acquisition, except in case where
a relevant resolution adopted by
the Shareholders Meeting is not
legally required. If any of the
participant companies is unable to
convene the meeting, or to obtain
the resolution of its shareholders
meeting on the proposed merger,
spin-off or acquisition because the
number of shares represented at
the meeting fell short of the
quorum for the meeting or the
proposal is denied by the meeting,
the participant companies shall
promptly give a public explanation
of the cause, the subsequent
handling and reschedule a date
for convening the shareholders
meeting.

2. Other matters for attention

2.1 Date of convention of the
relevant meeting of the Board of
Directors:

Except as otherwise provided by
law or there being any special
factor which has been approved
by the FSC, companies
participating in the merger, spin-off

by the FSC, companies | or acquisition shall convene the
participating in the merger, | meeting of the board of directors
spin-off or acquisition shall | and the shareholders meeting on

business group.
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convene the meeting of the board
of directors and the shareholders
meeting on the same day to
adopt the resolution on the
matters in connection with the
proposed merger, spin-off or
acquisition. Except as otherwise
provided by law or there being
any special factor which has
been approved by the Financial

Supervisory Commission,
companies participating in the
assignment of shares shall

convene the meeting of the board
of directors on the same day.
Companies participating in the
merger, spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares whose
stocks are traded on the stock
exchange or the over-the-counter
market shall maintain complete
written record on the following
materials and keep the same for
a term of five years.

2.1.1 Basic personal information:
including all personnel who
participate in the execution of the
merger, spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares before the
relevant information was publicly
released, including their titles,
names, and identification card (or
passport) number.

2.1.2 Dates of important matters
including, among others,
execution of the relevant
memorandum of intent (MOI) or
memorandum of understanding
(MOU), engagement of financial
or legal counsel, execution of the
relevant contract(s) and the date
of the relevant meeting of the
Board of Directors.

2.1.3 Important documents and

meeting records on, among
others, the proposed merger,
spin-off, acquisition or

assignment of shares, and the
relevant MOI or MOU, important
contract(s) and minutes of the
relevant meeting of the Board of
Directors.

Companies participating in the
merger, spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares, whose

the same day to adopt the
resolution on the matters in
connection with the proposed
merger, spin-off or acquisition.
Except as otherwise provided by
law or there being any special
factor which has been approved
by the Financial Supervisory
Commission, companies
participating in the assignment of
shares shall convene the meeting
of the board of directors on the
same day.

Companies participating in the
merger, spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares whose
stocks are traded on the stock
exchange or the over-the-counter
market shall maintain complete
written record on the following
materials and keep the same for a
term of five years.

2.1.1 Basic personal information:
including all personnel who
participate in the execution of the
merger, spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares before the
relevant information was publicly
released, including their titles,
names, and identification card (or
passport) number.

2.1.2 Dates of important matters
including, among others,
execution of the relevant
memorandum of intent (MOI) or
memorandum of understanding
(MOU), engagement of financial
or legal counsel, execution of the
relevant contract(s) and the date
of the relevant meeting of the
Board of Directors.

2.1.3 Important documents and
meeting records on, among
others, the proposed merger,
spin-off, acquisition or assignment
of shares, and the relevant MOI or
MOU, important contract(s) and
minutes of the relevant meeting of
the Board of Directors.
Companies participating in the
merger, spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares, whose
stocks are traded on the stock
exchange or the over-the-counter
market shall each, within two days

51




stocks are traded on the stock
exchange or the over-the-counter
market shall each, within two
days from the date following the
adoption of the relevant
resolution by the meeting of their
Board of Directors, make a report
online of the information provided
in subparagraphs 1 and 2 of the
preceding paragraph in the
required form and substance to
the Financial Supervisory
Commission.

Companies participating in the
merger, spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares, whose
stocks are traded on the stock
exchange or the over-the-counter

market shall enter into the
relevant agreement with
companies participating in the

merger, spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares, whose
stocks are not traded on the
stock exchange or the
over-the-counter market (if any)
and make the report provided in
the two preceding paragraphs.
2.2 Prior non-disclosure
agreement:

All persons who patrticipate in or

have knowledge about the
Company’s project of merger,
spin-off, acquisition or

assignment of shares shall each
sign a non-disclosure agreement
to undertake that they will not
externally disclose the project
before the Company makes the
relevant public disclosure and
that they will not buy or sell any
stocks or equity securities of any
company involved in  the
proposed merger, spin-off,
acquisition or assignment of
shares, either in their own name
or using any other person’s name
to do so.

2.3 Determination and change of
the proposed swap ratio or
acquisition price:

Each participant company shall

from the date following the
adoption of the relevant resolution
by the meeting of their Board of
Directors, make a report online of
the information provided in
subparagraphs 1 and 2 of the
preceding paragraph in the
required form and substance to
the Financial Supervisory
Commission.

Companies participating in the
merger, spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares, whose
stocks are traded on the stock
exchange or the over-the-counter

market shall enter into the
relevant agreement with
companies participating in the

merger, spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares, whose
stocks are not traded on the stock
exchange or the over-the-counter
market (if any) and make the
report provided in the two
preceding paragraphs.

2.2 Prior non-disclosure
agreement:

All persons who participate in or
have knowledge about the
Company’s project of merger,
spin-off, acquisition or assignment
of shares shall each sign a
non-disclosure  agreement to
undertake that they will not
externally disclose the project
before the Company makes the
relevant public disclosure and that
they will not buy or sell any stocks
or equity securities of any
company involved in the proposed
merger, spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares, either in
their own name or using any other
person’s name to do so.

2.3 Determination and change of
the proposed swap ratio or
acquisition price:

Each participant company shall
seek the opinion of the certified
public accountant, legal counsel
or underwriter with respect to the
acceptability of the proposed
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seek the opinion of the certified
public accountant, legal counsel
or underwriter with respect to the
acceptability of the proposed
swap ratio, acquisition price, or
cash or other property to be
distributed to shareholders before
the meetings of Board of
Directors, then submit the same
to the Shareholders Meeting.
Basically, neither the swap ratio
nor the acquisition price shall be
changed except in case of the
conditions for a change provided
in the contract (if any) and such
conditions have been publicly
disclosed. The swap ratio or
acquisition price may be changed
in the event of any of the

following:
2.3.1 The subject securities are
issued for capital increase,

issuance of convertible bonds,
stock grant, and issuance of
corporate bond with stock option,
issuance of preferred shares with
stock option, issuance of share

warrant certificates or other
equity securities.
2.3.2 Any of the participant

companies has done any act that
may affect the financial operation
of the company such as disposal
of its material assets.

2.3.3 The shareholders’ equity or
securities price of any of the
participant companies has been
affected by, among others, a
major disaster or material
technical change.

2.3.4 Any of the participant
companies has adjusted legal
buy-back of treasury stocks.

2.3.5 The principal participant
companies or the number of
participant companies has
changed.

2.3.6 The contract has provided
the other conditions for changes
and such conditions have been
publicly disclosed.

2.4 Provision of the contract:

The contract on the proposed
merger, spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares shall

swap ratio, acquisition price, or
cash or other property to be
distributed to shareholders before
the meetings of Board of
Directors, then submit the same to
the Shareholders Meeting.
Basically, neither the swap ratio
nor the acquisition price shall be
changed except in case of the
conditions for a change provided
in the contract (if any) and such
conditions have been publicly
disclosed. The swap ratio or
acquisition price may be changed
in the event of any of the

following:
2.3.1 The subject securities are
issued for capital increase,

issuance of convertible bonds,
stock grant, and issuance of
corporate bond with stock option,
issuance of preferred shares with
stock option, issuance of share
warrant certificates or other equity
securities.

2.3.2 Any of the participant
companies has done any act that
may affect the financial operation
of the company such as disposal
of its material assets.

2.3.3 The shareholders’ equity or
securities price of any of the
participant companies has been
affected by, among others, a
major  disaster or  material
technical change.

2.3.4 Any of the participant

companies has adjusted legal
buy-back of treasury stocks.

2.3.5 The principal participant
companies or the number of
participant companies has
changed.

2.3.6 The contract has provided
the other conditions for changes
and such conditions have been
publicly disclosed.

2.4 Provision of the contract:

The contract on the proposed

merger, spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares shall
provide the matters set forth

below, except those in accordance
with the provision of Article 317-1
of the Company Act and Article 22
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provide the matters set forth
below, except those in
accordance with the provision of
Article 317-1 of the Company Act
and Article 22 of the Business
Merger Act:

2.4.1 Handling of defaults.

2.4.2 The procedure for issuance
of equity securities or buy-back of
treasury shares adopted by the
company to extinct as a result of
the proposed merger or to spin
off.

2.4.3 The amount of treasury
stocks the participant company
may legally buy back after the
swap ratio record date and such
company’s procedure therefore.
2.4.4 Ways to handle matters
arising from a change of the
principal participant company or
the number of participant
companies.

2.4.5 The schedule for executing
the project and the scheduled
date of completion.

2.4.6 Procedure for handling
relevant matters and the date to
duly convene the relevant
Shareholders Meeting in case the

project is not completed as
scheduled.

2.5 Change of the participant
companies:

Where, after any of the
companies participating in the
proposed merger, spin-off,

acquisition or assignment of
shares has publicly disclosed the

information, there is another
company to participate in the
proposed merger, spin-off,
acquisition or assignment of

shares, the original participant
companies each shall re-new all
relevant proceedings or legal acts
except in the case of there being
reduction in the number of the
original participant companies
and the Board of Directors is
authorized to act accordingly by
the resolution of the
Shareholders Meeting.

2.6 The Company shall enter into
an agreement with the participant

of the Business Merger Act:

2.4.1 Handling of defaults.

2.4.2 The procedure for issuance
of equity securities or buy-back of
treasury shares adopted by the
company to extinct as a result of
the proposed merger or to spin
off.

2.4.3 The amount of treasury
stocks the participant company
may legally buy back after the
swap ratio record date and such
company’s procedure therefore.
2.4.4 Ways to handle matters
arising from a change of the
principal participant company or
the number of participant
companies.

2.4.5 The schedule for executing
the project and the scheduled
date of completion.

2.4.6 Procedure for handling
relevant matters and the date to
duly convene the relevant
Shareholders Meeting in case the

project is not completed as
scheduled.
2.5 Change of the participant
companies:

Where, after any of the companies
participating in the proposed
merger, spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares has publicly
disclosed the information, there is
another company to participate in
the proposed merger, spin-off,
acquisition or assignment of
shares, the original participant
companies each shall re-new all
relevant proceedings or legal acts
except in the case of there being
reduction in the number of the
original participant companies and
the Board of Directors s
authorized to act accordingly by
the resolution of the Shareholders
Meeting.

2.6 The Company shall enter into
an agreement with the participant
company which is not a public
company and set the date to
convene the relevant meeting of
the Board of Directors, execute
the prior non-disclosure
agreement, and act accordingly in
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company which is not a public
company and set the date to
convene the relevant meeting of
the Board of Directors, execute
the prior non-disclosure
agreement, and act accordingly
in consideration of the change of
the participant companies in
accordance with paragraphs 2.1,
2.2 and 2.5 of this Article.

consideration of the change of the
participant companies in
accordance with paragraphs 2.1,
2.2 and 2.5 of this Article.

Article 15
Procedure for public disclosure
reports

1. Matters which should be
reported for public disclosure and
the relevant standards

1.1 Acquisition of real property, or
disposal of properties with,
related parties, or acquisition of
non-property assets from, or
disposal of non-property assets
with, related parties with the
trading value exceeding 20% of
the company’s paid-in capital or
10% of total assets, or NT$300
million. However, trading in
government bonds or bonds with
repurchase and resale
agreements, or subscription or
repurchase of money market
funds by domestic securities
investment trust enterprises and
subscription or redemption of
domestic money-market funds
issued by Securities Investment
Trust Enterprises are  not
included.

1.2 Merger, spin-off, acquisition
or assignment of shares.

1.3 The amount of loss incurred
from the derivatives transaction
exceeds the limit on loss from all
contracts or the relevant
individual contract provided in the
relevant handling procedure.

1.4 The subject asset to be
acquired or disposed of is

Article 15
Procedure for public disclosure
reports

1. Matters which should be
reported for public disclosure and
the relevant standards

1.1 Acquisition of real property, or
disposal of properties with, related
parties, or acquisition of
non-property assets from, or
disposal of non-property assets
with, related parties with the
trading value exceeding 20% of
the company’s paid-in capital or
10% of total assets, or NT$300
million. However, trading in
government bonds or bonds with
repurchase and resale
agreements, or subscription or
repurchase of money market
funds by domestic securities
investment trust enterprises and
subscription or redemption of
domestic money-market funds are
not included.

1.2 Merger, spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares.

1.3 The amount of loss incurred
from the derivatives transaction
exceeds the limit on loss from all
contracts or the relevant individual
contract provided in the relevant
handling procedure.

1.4 Assets transactions or
disposals of credit claims in

In line with
textual  revision
by the Financial
Supervisory
Commission
(FSC)
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equipment for business use and
the transaction counterpart is a
non-related party and the
transaction value is above TWD 1
billion.

1.5 The subject real property is to
be acquired or disposed of by the
construction business division of
the Company for construction use
and the transaction counterpart is
a non-related party and the
transaction value is above
TWD500 million.

1.6 The subject real property to
be acquired is a building is to be
constructed on a self-owned land,
leased land, jointly constructed
and shared by units, jointly
constructed and shared by
percentage, jointly constructed
and sold by units and the
anticipated transaction value is
above TWD500 million.

1.7 Assets transactions or
disposals of credit claims in
financial institutions or investment
in PRC other than those provided
in the preceding six
subparagraphs, the transaction
value of which amounts to 20% of
the paid-in capital of the
Company or TWD300 million
each, except for these
transactions:

1.7.1 The transaction is the
purchase or sale of government
bonds.

1.7.2 Professional investors, who
trade in securities at domestic or
overseas stock exchanges or
business outlets of securities
firms, or subscribe to common
corporate bonds and common
financial bonds without stock right
on the domestic primary market,
security brokers who subscribe to
securities out of the need for
underwriting business or in the
capacity as a assisting or
recommending security firm for
share listing on the Emerging

financial institutions or investment
in PRC other than those provided
in the preceding three
subparagraphs, the transaction
value of which amounts to 20% of
the paid-in capital of the Company
or TWD300 million each, except
for these transactions:

1.4.1 The transaction is the
purchase or sale of government
bonds.

1.4.2 The transaction is for
investment purposes only of
securities traded on local or
foreign stock exchange or
over-the-counter market or
obtaining of securities by
securities firms on the primary
market.

1.4.3 The subject asset to be
acquired or disposed of is bond
with re-purchase, re-sale
agreements. Subscription to and
redemption of domestic
money-market funds

1.4.4 The subject asset to be
acquired or disposed of is
equipment for business use and
the transaction counterpart is a
non-related party and the
transaction value is less than
TWD500 million.

1.4.5 The subject real property is
to be acquired or disposed of by
the construction business division
of the Company for construction
use and the transaction
counterpart is a non-related party
and the transaction value is less
than TWD500 million.

1.4.6 The subject real property to
be acquired is a building is to be
constructed on a self-owned land,
leased land, jointly constructed
and shared by units, jointly
constructed and shared by
percentage, jointly constructed
and sold by units and the
anticipated transaction value is
less than TWD500 million.

1.5 The transaction value
provided in previous paragraph

Based upon the
consideration of

FSC, to avoid
over frequent
declaration of
large scale
corporation
reducing
materiality of
information
disclosure,
disclosure
standard was
revised and

relocated to 1.4

Original 145
and 1.4.6 were
relocated to 1.5
and 1.6

Original
141,142 and
143 were

relocated to 1.7
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Stock Market, according to the
regulations of the ROC Gretai
Market (over-the-counter market)

1.7.3 The subject asset to be
acquired or disposed of is bond
with re-purchase, re-sale
agreements. Subscription to and
redemption of domestic
money-market funds issued by
Securities Investment Trust

Enterprises.

1.8 The transaction value
provided in previous paragraph
1.8 above shall be calculated as
follows, where within one year
means within the year
immediately preceding the date
of occurrence of the proposed
transaction, excluding the items
which have been publicly
disclosed.

1.8.1 The value of each
transaction.

1.8.2 The total value of the
property of the same nature
acquired from or transferred to
the same transaction counterpart
within one year.

1.8.3 The total value of the real
property under the same
development project acquired or
disposed of within one year (the
sum acquired and the sum
disposed of shall be calculated
separately).

1.8.4 The total value of the same
specific securities acquired or
disposed of within one year (the
sum acquired and the sum
disposed of shall be calculated
separately).

1.9 The calculation for 10% of
total assets, as referred in the
handling procedure, is based on
the sum of assets included in
recent alone-basis financial
reports, formulated according to
the “Regulations Governing the

1.5 above shall be calculated as
follows, where within one year
means within the year
immediately preceding the date of
occurrence of the proposed
transaction, excluding the items
which have been publicly
disclosed.

1.5.1 The value of each
transaction.

1.5.2 The total value of the
property of the same nature
acquired from or transferred to the
same transaction counterpart
within one year.

1.5.3 The total value of the real
property under the same
development project acquired or
disposed of within one year (the
sum acquired and the sum
disposed of shall be calculated
separately).

1.5.4 The total value of the same
specific securities acquired or
disposed of within one year (the
sum acquired and the sum
disposed of shall be calculated
separately).

1.6 The calculation for 10% of
total assets, as referred in the
handling procedure, is based on
the sum of assets included in
recent alone-basis financial
reports, formulated according to
the “Regulations Governing the
Preparation of Financial. For
stocks without par value or with
par value other than NT$10, the
calculation of 20% of paid-in
capital for transaction value, as
referred in the procedure, is based
on 10% of the owner’s equity of
the parent firm.

2. Time period for making public
disclosure

If the acquisition or disposal of
assets involves any item which
should be published pursuant to

In line with
textual  revision
by the Financial
Supervisory
Commission
(FSC)
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Preparation of Financial. For
stocks without par value or with
par value other than NT$10, the
calculation of 20% of paid-in
capital for transaction value, as
referred in the procedure, is
based on 10% of the owner’s
equity of the parent firm.

2. Time period for making public
disclosure

If the acquisition or disposal of
assets involves any item which
should be published pursuant to
paragraph 1 of this Article and the

transaction value meets the
public  disclosure  standards
provided in this Article, the

Company shall make a public
disclosure on such acquisition or
disposal of assets within two
days following the date of
occurrence of such transaction.

3. Procedure for making public
disclosure

3.1 The Company shall cause the
relevant information publicly
disclosed on the website
designated by the Financial
Supervisory Commission.

3.2 The Company shall on a
monthly basis make a report on
the  derivatives transactions
conducted in the month by itself
and its local subsidiaries which
are not public companies on the
website designated by the FSC in
the form and substance required
by the tenth day the following
month.

3.3 The Company shall renew the
entire public disclosure report in
case the public disclosure report
made contains any error or
omission within 2 days counting
inclusively from the date of

paragraph 1 of this Article and the
transaction value meets the public
disclosure standards provided in
this Article, the Company shall
make a public disclosure on such
acquisition or disposal of assets
within two days following the date
of occurrence of such transaction.

3. Procedure for making public
disclosure

3.1 The Company shall cause the
relevant information publicly
disclosed on the website
designated by the Financial
Supervisory Commission.

3.2 The Company shall on a
monthly basis make a report on
the derivatives transactions
conducted in the month by itself
and its local subsidiaries which
are not public companies on the
website designated by the FSC in
the form and substance required
by the tenth day the following
month.

3.3 The Company shall renew the
entire public disclosure report in
case the public disclosure report
made contains any error or
omission.

3.4 The Company shall keep all
agreements, meeting minutes,
reference record book, appraisal
report, opinions of the certified
public account, legal counsel or
underwriter in the Company
relating to the acquisition or
disposal of any asset for a term of
at least five years except as
otherwise provided by law.

3.5 In the event of any of the
following after submitting the
public disclosure report in
accordance with the preceding
paragraph, the Company shall,
within two days following the
occurrence of such event, publicly
disclose the relevant information
on the website designated by the

Additional
correction for
disclosure date,
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occurrence of the event.

3.4 The Company shall keep all
agreements, meeting minutes,
reference record book, appraisal
report, opinions of the certified
public account, legal counsel or
underwriter in the Company
relating to the acquisition or
disposal of any asset for a term
of at least five years except as
otherwise provided by law.

3.5 In the event of any of the
following after submitting the
public disclosure report in
accordance with the preceding
paragraph, the Company shall,
within two days following the

occurrence of such event,
publicly disclose the relevant
information on the website
designated by the Financial

Supervisory Commission:

3.5.1 There is change to the
relevant original signed
agreement(s) or the original
signed agreement(s) is
terminated or rescinded.

3.5.2 The proposed merger,
spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares is not
completed as scheduled under
the relevant agreement.

3.5.3 There are changes for the
original reporting.

Financial Supervisory
Commission:

3.5.1 There is change to the
relevant original signed
agreement(s) or the original
signed agreement(s) is terminated
or rescinded.

3.5.2 The proposed merger,
spin-off, acquisition or assignment
of shares is not completed as
scheduled under the relevant
agreement.

3.5.3 There are changes for the
original reporting.

in line with
revision by the
Financial
Supervisory
Commission
(FSC)

Article 19

This Procedure was established
on 11 August 1989 and
subsequently amended as
follows:

(omission)

and the tenth amendment on 16
June 2017.

Article 19
This Procedure was established
on 11 August 1989 and

subsequently amended as follows:

(omission)

Addition of the
date for the
current revision
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TECO Electric & Machinery Co., Ltd.

Articles of Incorporation

Chapter 1 General Provisions

Article 1
The Company is incorporated in accordance with the Company Act and is named TECO
Electric & Machinery Co., Ltd.

Article 2
The scope of business of this Company is as follows:

C805050 Manufacture of industrial plastic products;

C805070 Manufacture of reinforced plastic products;

CA01030 Steel casting;

CA01050 Secondary processing of steel materials;

CA02010 Manufacture of metal structure and building parts;

CB01010 Manufacture of machinery equipment;

CB01020 Manufacture of office machines;

CB01030 Manufacture of pollution-control equipment;

CB01071 Manufacture of refrigerating, air-conditioning equipment;
CC01010 Manufacture of generators, power dispatching, power distributing machinery;
CC01030 Manufacture of electrical appliance and audio-visual electronic products;
CC01060 Manufacture of cable telecommunication machinery and equipment;
CC01070 Manufacture of wireless telecommunication machinery and equipment;
CC01080 Manufacture of electrical parts and components;

CC01101 Manufacturing of controlled telecom radio-frequency products
CC01110 Manufacture of computers and the peripheral thereof;
CDO01010 Manufacture of boats and the parts thereof;

CDO01020 Manufacture of rail cars and the parts thereof;

CDO01030 Manufacture of automobiles and the parts thereof;

CD01040 Manufacture of motorbikes and the parts thereof;

CDO01060 Manufacture of aircrafts and the parts thereof;

CEO01010 Manufacture of general instruments;

CEO01030 Manufacture of optical instruments;

E501011 Services regarding water utilities as contractor;

E502010 Installation of fuel pipes;

E599010 Engineering of pipe lines;

E601010 Service regarding electrical appliance as contractor;

E601020 Installation of electrical appliance;

E602011 Engineering of refrigerating, air-conditioning equipment;
E603010 Installation of cables;

E603040 Installation of firefighting safety equipment;

E603050 Engineering of automatic control equipment;

E603080 Installation of traffic signs;

E603090 Installation of illuminating equipment;

E604010 Installation of machines;

E605010 Installation of computer equipment;

F106010 Wholesale of hardware;

F106030 Wholesale of tooling;

F108031 Wholesale of medical devices

F113070 Wholesale of telecom-products

F114080 Wholesale of rail cars and the parts thereof;

F117010 Wholesale of fire-fighting safety equipment;
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43. F119010 Wholesale of electrical materials;

44. F206010 Retail sale of hardware;

45. F206030 Retail sale of tooling;

46. F206040 Retail sale of water equipment and relevant materials;

47. F208031 Retail sale of medical devices;

48. F213040 Retail sale of precision instruments;

49. F213060 Retail of telecom products

50. F218010 Retail of information software

51. F401010 International Trade;

52. F401021 Import of controlled telecommunication radio-frequency devices;
53. F501060 Restaurant services;

54. G801010 Warehousing services;

55. H701010 Development and leasing of residential and business buildings;
56. 1103060 Management consulting services;

57. 1301010 Information application services;

58. 1301020 Data-processing services;

59. 1301030 Supply of electronic information services;

60. IF01010 Inspection and repair of firefighting safety equipment services;
61. I1F02010 Testing and inspection of electrical equipment services;

62. JEO01010 Leasing services;

63. ZZ99999 Other businesses not prohibited or restricted legally except those with special
permit.

Article 3
The Company may, for the purpose of meeting business needs, provide guarantees to
others.

Article 4

The Company may, for the purpose of meeting business needs, authorize the Board of
Directors to make investment in relevant businesses without regard to Article 13 of the
Company Act.

Article 5

The Company will have its head office located in Taipei and the Board of Directors may set
up branch offices and production facilities from time to time in consideration of the business
needs of the Company.
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Chapter 2 Capital stocks

Article 6

The total capital of the Company is NT$30,305,500,000 divided into 3,030,550,000 shares
with a par value of NT$10 each. The Board of Directors is authorized to issue the shares in
installment in consideration of the business needs of the Company.

A total of NT$1,000,000,000 of the above total capital will be reserved for issuance of
employee stock options for a total of 100,000,000 shares of stocks with a par value of NT$10
each, which may be issued in installments according to the resolution adopted by the
relevant meeting of the Board of Directors.

With the approval of two thirds of voting right owned by attending shareholders representing
over half of the total issued shares at a shareholders’ meeting, subscription price for the
issuance of employee warrants can be exempt from the restriction included in article 53 of
the “guidelines for the raising and issuance of securities” and the issuance can be carried out
in several batches within one year after the resolution is made by shareholders’ meeting.

Article 7

The company can buy back issued shares from the centralized securities market, according
to article 10-1 of “measures for buying back shares by listed firms.” With approval of two
thirds of voting right owned by attending shareholders representing over half of issued
shares, the company can transfer the bought-back shares to employees at price lower the
average purchase price.

Article 8
The Company may issue shares without printing share certificates. All of the stocks of the
Company will be duly issued as name-bearing stocks and duly registered.

Article 9

All transfer of stocks shall be suspended 60 days prior to the annual general shareholders
meeting date, 30 days prior the extraordinary shareholders meeting date, and five days prior
to the date of distribution of dividend, profit-sharing or other interests.
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Chapter 3 Shareholders’ Meeting

Article 10

The Company will have two types of shareholders meetings:

1. General shareholder meeting to be convened within six months after the end of each
fiscal year; and

2. Extraordinary shareholders meeting to be convened where necessary.

The convention of the above shareholders meetings will be notified to the shareholders 30
days prior to the meeting date of the general shareholders meeting and 15 days prior to the
meeting date of the extraordinary shareholders meeting.

Article 11
Each shareholder of this Company will have one vote on each share held except those
without voting right according to company law and related regulations.

Article 12

Where the shareholder is unable to attend the shareholders meeting in person, he/she may
appoint a proxy to act on his/her behalf at the meeting by signing the proxy form prepared by
the Company. The number of votes by a proxy acting on behalf of two or more
shareholders at the shareholders meeting shall not exceed the total number of votes
representing 3% of the total issued shares of the Company with all excess votes disregarded,
except where such proxy is a trust business or stock affairs agency institution approved by
the competent securities authority.

Article 13

Except as otherwise provided by the Company Act, the Shareholders’ Meeting may be called
to order on and only on the attendance by shareholders representing the majority of the total
issued shares. Resolutions of the shareholders meeting shall be adopted by the majority
votes at the meeting.

The resolutions of the shareholders meeting shall be recorded in the meeting minutes signed
or sealed with the chop of the chairperson and distributed to the shareholders each within 20
days after the meeting, provided that the service of the meeting minutes may be made by
public notice with respect to shareholders.

Article 14

The shareholders shall be presided by the person who is legally authorized to convene the
meeting. Where there are two or more conveners, they shall elect one from among
themselves to preside the meeting.
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Chapter 4 Board of Directors

Article 15

The Board of Directors of the Company will be formed by 15 Directors to be elected from
among the shareholders with disposing capacity. The Director each will serve a term of office
of three years and is eligible for re-election.

Three of the aforementioned directors are independent directors. Candidates for directors
are nominated, according article 192-1 of the Company Law.

Method for acceptance of the nomination for directors, its publication, and other related
affairs will be conducted according to the Company Law, the Securities and Exchange Act,
and other related law/regulation.

Article 16

The Directors shall elect five from among themselves to act as the Managing Directors who
shall then elect from among themselves the Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Company.
The Chairman will externally represent the Company and act as the chairperson of the
Shareholders’ Meetings, meetings of the Board of Directors and meetings of the Managing
Directors. If the Chairman is for any reason unable to perform his/her functions at the
meeting, the Vice Chairman shall act on his/her behalf If the Vice Chairman is also for any
reason unable to perform the chairperson’s functions at the meeting, the Chairman shall
appoint one from among the Managing Directors to act on his/her behalf. In the absence of
such appointment, the Managing Directors shall elect one from among themselves to act on
behalf.

At least one of the nominated Managing Directors shall be an independent director, and no
less than one fifth of the total number of Managing Directors.

Article 17

The Chairman will convene and preside the meetings of the Board of Directors except the
first meeting of every new term of offence which shall be convened by the Director who was
elected with the highest number of votes at the relevant election. Where the Chairman is for
whatever reason unable to perform his/her functions at the meeting, the Vice Chairman shall
act in his/her stead. If the Vice Chairman is for whatever reason unable to perform the
function at the meeting, the Chairman shall appoint one from among the Managing Directors
to act in his/her stead. Absent such appointment, the Managing Directors shall elect one
from among themselves to act instead of the Chairman at the meeting.

Article 18

Except as otherwise provided by the Company Act, the meeting of the Board of Directors
may be called to order on and only on attendance by the majority of the Directors. The
resolution of the meeting of the Board of Directors shall be adopted by the majority votes at
the meeting.

If the Director is for whatever reason unable to attend the meeting of the Board of Director in
person, he/she may appoint another Director to act in his/her stead by issuing a signed proxy.
The Managing Director may also appoint another Managing Director to act in his/her stead at
the meeting of the Managing Directors.

The board of directors should be convened every quarter. Notice, along with the description

of the meeting, will be given to every director seven days in advance. The notice can be
given in written form, fax, or e-mail.
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The meeting of the Board of Directors may be conducted via audio- or video-teleconference.
All Directors present at the meeting via teleconference will be deemed present at the
meeting in person.

Article 19
The function of the Board of Directors is to

examine and determine important bylaws and contracts;

determine business operation policy;

examine and determine budgets and final accounting;

propose capital increase (reduction);

propose profit distribution plan;

determine the organization of the business departments of the Company, appoint and
discharge managerial officers;

7. examine and approve purchase or disposal of important property and real estate;

8. examine and approve provision of guaranty and loan to external investments;
9.

1

ok wNE

examine and approve investment in relevant business at home or abroad; and
0. perform other functions conferred upon bylaw or the shareholders meeting.

Article 20

In case the vacancies on the Board of Directors exceed one third of the total number of
Directors, the Board of Directors shall convene an extraordinary shareholders meeting within
60 days to elect new Directors to fill the vacancies.

The new Directors shall serve the remaining term of office of the predecessors.

Article 21

Compensations for the chairpersons, vice chairpersons, and directors should be proposed by
“Compensation Committee”, according to their involvement in the company’s operation, the
value of their contribution, and reference of domestic and overseas level. The proposal will
be submitted to the board of directors for approval.
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Chapter 5 Audit Committee

Article 22

The company institutes audit committee, consisting of all the independent directors,
according to the law. Audit committee will take over the responsibilities and power of
supervisors, stipulated in the Company Law, Securities Trading Law, and other laws.
Organizational charter for the audit committee should be formulated to cover the number,
term, meeting rules, and provision of resources by the company for the exercise of its
duties.

Chapter 6 Managerial officers

Article 23

The Company will have presidents, vice presidents and assistant vice presidents to be
appointed and discharged in accordance with Article 29 of the Company Act. The president
will take general charge of the operation of the Company according to the instruction from
the Chairman.

Article 24

The presidents, vice presidents and assistant vice presidents shall be the responsible person
of the business they each take charge of with the powers and duties to operate and manage
such business.

67



Chapter 7 Accounting

Article 25

The Board of Directors shall after the end of each fiscal year produce the following reports
and statements and submit the same to the Audit Committee for inspection and, thereafter,
the Shareholders Meeting for ratification:

1. Business report.
2. Financial statement.
3. Proposed profit distribution or loss make-up plan.

Article 26

The company appropriates part of its annual profits, ranging from 1% to 10%, for distribution
of remuneration to employee. Remuneration to directors are capped at 5% of profits.
Employees of affiliated companies are also entitled to remuneration to employee. Profits
should be used, in priority, for making up accumulated loss, should it exist.

The shares of the aforementioned distribution of remuneration to employee and the directors,
as well as the choice of stock or cash should be resolved by the board of directors, with
approval of over half of attendees in a meeting attended by over two thirds of directors,
before being reported to shareholders' meeting.

The annual profit mentioned in item 1 refers to pre-tax profits of the year before deduction of
distribution of remuneration to employee and directors.

Article 27

Profit, should it appear in final account, should be used, in descending order, in paying tax,
making up for accumulated loss, and then appropriating 10% of the remainder for legal
reserve, on top of appropriation or reversal of special reserve, according to the regulation of
regulator. The balance, should it exist, should be combined with retained earnings of
previous year for the board of directions to formulate proposal of profit distribution for
approval by the shareholders' meeting.

The Company is in a stably growing industry with investment made in developing business.
In consideration of possible expansion of operation and investment, the earnings distributed
to the shareholders each year will basically be in an amount equal to 80% of the earnings
received in the period combined with the retained earnings from the previous year, net of the
legal reserve and special earning reserve. Basically 50% but not less than 5% of the
earnings distributed to the shareholders shall be distributed in cash.
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Chapter 8 Supplemental Provisions

Article 28
The rules governing the organization of the Company shall be prescribed by the Board of
Directors.

Article 29
Matters not provided herein shall be in accordance with the Company Act and the relevant
laws and regulations.

Article 30
These Articles of Incorporation was established on 12 April 1956 and subsequently amended
as follows:

The first amendment on 25 January 1957;

The second amendment on 1 September 1958;
The third amendment on 27 March 1960;

The fourth amendment on 31 March 1962;

The fifth amendment on 14 July 1962;

The sixth amendment on 25 April 1964;

The seventh amendment on 26 March 1966;

The eighth amendment on 27 May 1966;

The ninth amendment on 15 April 1967;

The tenth amendment on 23 March 1968;

The eleventh amendment on 30 May 1969;

The twelfth amendment on 24 October 1969;
The thirteenth amendment on 20 February 1971,
The fourteenth amendment on 10 May 1971;
The fifteenth amendment on 12 May 1972;

The sixteenth amendment on 16 April 1973;

The seventeenth amendment on 2 June 1973;
The eighteenth amendment on 14 April 1974;
The nineteenth amendment on 18 April 1975;
The twentieth amendment on 26 March 1976;
The twenty-first amendment on 16 April 1977;
The twenty-second amendment on 21 April 1978;
The twenty-third amendment on 20 October 1978;
The twenty-fourth amendment on 19 April 1979;
The twenty-fifth amendment on 28 March 1980;
The twenty-sixth amendment on 18 April 1981;
The twenty-seventh amendment on 27 March 1982;
The twenty-eighth amendment on 28 March 1983;
The twenty-ninth amendment on 28 March 1984;
The thirtieth amendment on 28 March 1985;

The thirty-first amendment on 28 March 1986;
The thirty-second amendment on 28 March 1987,
The thirty-third amendment on 28 March 1988;
The thirty-fourth amendment on 28 March 1989;
The thirty-fitth amendment on 28 March 1999;
The thirty-sixth amendment on 7 May 1991,

The thirty-seventh amendment on 8 May 1992;
The thirty-eighth amendment on 7 May 1993;
The thirty-ninth amendment on 28 April 1994;
The fortieth amendment on 6 May 1995;

The forty-first amendment on 11 May 1996;
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The forth-second amendment on 24 May 1997,
The forty-third amendment on 15 May 1998;

The forty-fourth amendment on 21 April 2000;
The forty-fifth amendment on 15 May 2001;

The forty-sixth amendment on 31 May 2002;
The forty-seventh amendment on 6 June 2003;
The forty-eighth amendment on 11 June 2004;
The forty-ninth amendment on 27 May 2005;
The fiftieth amendment on 15 June 2006;

The fifty-first amendment on 13 June 2008;

The fifty-second amendment on June 19, 2009;
The fifty-third amendment on June 10, 2011,
The fifty-fourth amendment was on June 15, 2012, and
The fifty-fifth amendment was on June 23, 2014
The fifty-sixth amendment was on June 16, 2016

It took effect after the approval of shareholders’ meeting.
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TECO Electric & Machinery Co., Ltd.
Rules Governing Shareholders’ Meetings

Article 1
Except as otherwise provided by law or the Articles of Incorporation of the Company, the
Shareholders’ Meetings of the Company shall be governed by these Rules.

Article 2
The shareholder shall register his/her attendance by handing in his/her signed attendance
card.

The number of shares present at the meeting will be counted according to the signed
attendance cards received, plus the shares for the exercise of voting right via written or
electronic method.

Article 3
The quorum and ballots at the Shareholders’ Meeting will be counted according to the
number of shares represented at the meeting.

Article 4

The shareholders meeting shall be convened at the place where the Company is located or
any other appropriate place convenient for the shareholders to attend and shall be called to
order no earlier than 9:00AM and no later than 3:00PM on the meeting date.

Article 5

Where the shareholders meeting is convened by the Board of Directors, the meeting shall
be presided by the Chairman of the Board of Directors. If the Chairman is for any reason
unable to perform his/her functions at the meeting, the Vice-Chairman shall act on his/her
behalf. If the Vice-Chairman is for any reason unable to perform the function at the meeting
as well, the Chairman shall appoint a Managing Director to act on his/her behalf at the
meeting. In the absence of such appointment, the Managing Directors shall elect one from
among themselves to preside the meeting. Where the Shareholders’ Meeting is convened
by any person legally authorized to do so other than the Board of Directors, the meeting
shall be presided by such person. Where there are two or more conveners, they shall elect
one from among themselves to preside the meeting.

Article 6
The Company may appoint legal counsel, certified public accountant or relevant personnel
to attend the Shareholders’ Meeting without the right to vote.

Personnel administering affairs at the Shareholders’ Meeting shall each wear a tag or badge
bearing their designation.

Article 7
The whole proceeding of the Shareholders’ Meeting shall be video- or tape-recorded and
such recording shall be kept for at least one year.

Article 8

The chairperson shall call the meeting to order as scheduled, provided that where the
number of shares represented at the meeting is less than the majority of the total issued
shares, the chairperson may announce to postpone calling the meeting to order twice and
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only twice for not more than one hour in total. If the quorum is still not met after the
postponement duration has expired with the number of shares represented at the meeting
exceeding one third of the total issued shares, temporary resolutions may be adopted in
accordance with the first paragraph of Article 175 of the Company Act.

If the number of shares represented at the meeting represents the majority of the total
issued shares before the meeting is adjourned, the chairperson shall present the temporary
resolutions made for voting pursuant to Article 174 of the Company Act.

Article 9

Where the Shareholders’ Meeting is convened by the Board of Directors, the agenda shall
be determined by the Board of Directors and the meeting shall proceed according to the
agenda except otherwise changed by the resolution adopted by the Shareholders’ Meeting.

Where the Shareholders’ Meeting is convened by any person legally authorized to do so
other than the Board of Director, the preceding paragraph shall operate with appropriate and
necessary alteration.

The chairperson shall not forthwith announce to adjourn the meeting before the agenda
provided in the two preceding paragraphs (including extempore motions) is duly completed,
except on the resolution adopted by the Shareholders’ Meeting for him/her to do so.

No shareholders shall elect a chairperson to continue the meeting at the same place or
elsewhere after the meeting is duly pronounced adjourned.

Article 10

The shareholder shall fill out the request for taking the floor before making statement at the
meeting and he/she will indicate the gist of his/her statement to make, shareholder account
number (or attendance card number) and shareholder name. The chairperson will decide
the order for the shareholders to make their statement. The statement made by any
shareholder acting in breach of the above shall be disregarded. The shareholder who has
only filled out the request for taking the floor without actually doing so shall be deemed not
having made any statement. In case of any discrepancy between the gist of statement
indicated in the shareholder’s request for taking the floor and the record of his/her statement
made, the record shall govern.

No shareholder may interrupt the statement being made by the shareholder taking the floor
without the consent of both the chairperson and the shareholder taking the floor. The
chairperson shall restrain any shareholder acting in breach of the above and the statement
made by such shareholder shall be disregarded.

Article 11
Each shareholder may make statement on the same issue not more than twice and not
more than five minutes unless the chairperson consents otherwise.

The statements made by any shareholder acting in breach of the preceding paragraph or
irrelevant to the issues will be disregarded and the chairperson may prevent him or her from
making statement.

Article 12

An institutional entity who is to attend the Shareholders’ Meeting in proxy may appoint one
and only one representative to attend the meeting
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Institutional shareholder who has appointed two more or representatives to attend the
Shareholders’ Meeting will have its statement (if any) on the same issue by only one of its
appointed representatives.

Article 13
The chairperson may personally respond to the statement made by the shareholder or
appoint the relevant personnel to do so.

Article 14
The chairperson may announce to conclude the discussion on a proposal as he/she sees fit
and submit the proposal to voting for resolution.

Article 15

The personnel supervising the voting and counting the ballots of voting shall be appointed
by the chairperson, provided that the personnel supervising the voting must be appointed
from among the shareholders. The outcome of the voting shall be announced on the spot
and taken down in the minutes.

Article 16
The chairperson may call the meeting to a break as he/she sees fit.

Article 17

Except as otherwise provided by the Company Law or the Articles of Incorporation of the
Company, a resolution shall be adopted by more than half of the votes represented by the
shareholders present at the Meeting. If shareholders exercising voting right in written or
electronic method don’t express objection and the chairperson doesn’t receive objection
from attending shareholders, the proposal will be regarded as receiving approval in entirety.
On the day after the holding of shareholders’ meeting, post the result of agreement,
objection, or no opinion on the Market Observation Post System.

Article 18
The chairperson shall combine the revision or substitute proposal (if any) on a proposal with
that proposal for the purpose of determining their order of voting. If one of the proposals is
adopted, the other proposals shall be deemed vetoed and no voting on them will be
necessary.

Article 19

The chairperson may direct the order-maintaining personnel (or security guard) to maintain
the order of the meeting. Each order-maintaining personnel (or security guard) shall wear a
badge bearing their designation when performing their function at the meeting.

Article 20
These Rules are amended pursuant to the Company Law and related law/regulation with
implemented after being approved by the Shareholders’ Meeting. Procedure for revision is
the same.

Article 21

These Rules were adopted by the extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting on June 2, 1973.
The first amendment to these Rules was adopted by the General Shareholders’ Meeting on
May 11, 1996.

The second amendment to these Rules was adopted by the General Shareholders’ Meeting
on May 15, 1998.

The third amendment to these Rules was adopted by the General Shareholders’ Meeting on
May 31, 2002.
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The fourth amendment to these Rules was adopted by the General Shareholders’ Meeting
on June 15, 2012.
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TECO Electric & Machinery Co., Ltd.
Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles

Chapter | General Provisions

Article 1

These Principles are established and an effective corporate governance system is erected
in accordance with the Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principles prescribed jointly
adopted by the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation ("TSEC") and the GreTai Securities
Market ("GTSM"). These Principles are disclosed on the Market Observation Post System.

Article 2

In addition to complying with relevant laws and regulations, as well as contracts signed with
the TSEC or GTSM and other relevant regulations, the Company shall follow the following
principles:

1. Protect shareholders' rights and interests;

2. Strengthen the powers of the Board of Directors;

3. Fulfill the function of supervisors;

4. Respect stakeholders' rights and interests; and

5. Enhance information transparency.

Article 3

The Company shall follow the “Criteria Governing the Establishment of Internal Control
System of Public Listed Company” and take into consideration the overall operational
activities of itself and its subsidiaries in designing and actually implementing an internal
control system, and review it at all times, in order to keep up with the dynamics of
environment inside and outside the company and ensure that the design and enforcement
of the system remain effective.

Except approved by the competent authority, the establishment or revision of internal control
should be made with over one half of the members of the audit committee before being
submitted to the board of directors for resolution.

In addition to faithfully performing voluntary evaluation of the internal control system, the
Board of Directors and the management shall review the result of the voluntary evaluation of
each department and the report of the internal audit department at least once each year
guarterly. The auditing committee should notice and supervise the report.

The evaluation of the efficiency of the internal control system shall be a made with over one
half of the members of the audit committee before being submitted to the board of directors
for resolution.

The management of the Company shall pay special attention to the internal audit department
and its personnel, fully empower them and urge them to conduct audits effectively, evaluate
problems of the internal control system and assess the efficiency of operations to ensure that
such a system can be carried out effectively on a continuous basis and can assist the board
of directors and the management to perform their duties effectively so as to ensure a sound
corporate governance system.

To materialize internal-control system, strengthen the expertise of deputies of internal
auditors, and enhance or uphold auditing quality or auditing result, the company should
institute deputies of internal auditors.

Qualifications for internal auditors, specified in Article 11-6 of the “Criteria for Establishment
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of Internal Control Systems by Public Companies”, and stipulations of Article 16, 17, and 18
are applicable to the aforementioned deputies of internal auditors.

Article 3-1

The company can institute unit or staffer(s) in charge of corporate governance, in a

dedicated or part-time manner, and appoint ranking manager for supervision, who should

have the qualification of lawyer or certified public accountant, or over three years of

managerial experience for legal affairs, finance, or stock affairs at a company with public

share offering.

The aforementioned corporate governance-related affairs should at least include:

1. Registration or revision of registration for incorporation

2. Holding of meeting of the board of directors and shareholders' meeting according to law
and assistance for the company in legal compliance for the board of directors and
shareholders' meeting

3. Production of minutes for meeting of the board of directors or shareholders' meeting

4. Provide directors materials they need in executing their business duties and information
on new laws/regulations related to corporate management, thereby facilitating legal
compliance by directors.

5. Affairs regarding investor relationship

6. Other items specified by corporate charter or contracts

Chapter Il Protection of Shareholders' Rights and Interests

Subchapter 1

Encouraging Shareholders to Participate in Corporate Governance

Article 4

When implementing the corporate governance system, the Company shall take the
protection of shareholders' rights and interests and treat all shareholders fairly.

The Company shall establish a corporate governance system which ensures shareholders'
rights of being fully informed of, participating in and making decisions over important matters
of the company.

Article 5

The Company shall convene shareholders' meetings in accordance with the Company Act
and relevant laws and regulations and provide comprehensive rules for such meetings. The
Company shall faithfully implement resolutions adopted by shareholders’ meetings in
accordance with the rules for the meetings.

Resolutions adopted by shareholders' meetings of the Company shall comply with laws,
regulations and articles of incorporation.
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Article 6

The Board of Directors shall properly arrange the proposals and agenda of shareholders'
meetings. Formulate principles and workflow for nomination of directors and proposal
of motions for shareholders’ meeting and properly address motions put forth by
shareholders legally. Shareholders' meeting should be held at venue with convenient
location and should set aside sufficient time and appoint proper receptionists for
reporting by attending shareholders, who shouldn't be required to produce additional
identity proofs. Shareholders shall be granted reasonable time to deliberate each proposal
and afforded an appropriate opportunity to make statements.

For the shareholders' meetings that are convened by the Board of Directors, the chairman
should preside over the meeting in person, and it would be advisable for a majority of the
directors (at least one independent director) and one member each of various functional
committees should attend the meeting to attend the meeting in person. The state of their
attendance should be recorded in the minutes of shareholders’ meeting.

Article 7

The Company shall encourage its shareholders to actively participate in its corporate
governance, entrust professional stock-affairs institutions to handle the holding of
shareholders’ meeting and hold shareholders' meetings on the premise of legal, effective
and safe proceedings. The Company shall seek all ways and means, including fully
exploiting technologies for information disclosure, and meeting notice, meeting agenda, and
supplementary information should be uploaded at the same time, so as to enhance the
attendance rate of shareholders at the shareholders' meeting and ensure the exercise of
shareholders' rights by shareholders at the shareholders’ meeting in accordance with laws.

When shareholders’ meeting adopts electronic voting, extempore motions and amendment
to original motion should be avoided.

Shareholders should be arranged to vote case by case in shareholders’ meeting, outcome
of agreement, objection, and abstention of shareholders should be put into the Market
Observation Post System on the day after the completion of the meeting.

The Company will adopt no discriminatory treatment or discrimination of any kind with
respect to the distribution of souvenirs of the shareholders’ meeting to the shareholders.

Article 8

In accordance with Company Law and other related laws/regulations, the company should
put the date, venue, name of chairperson, resolution method, as well as summary and
outcome of the meeting process in meeting minute. For election of directors, it is necessary
to specify voting method and the votes obtained by elected directors.

The minutes of the shareholders' meeting shall be properly and perpetually kept by the
company during its legal existence. It would be advisable for the Company to fully disclose
such meeting minutes on its website, if any.

Article 9

The chairperson at the shareholders' meetings shall be fully familiar and comply with the
rules governing the proceedings of the shareholders' meetings established by the company.
The chairperson shall ensure the proper progress of the proceedings of the meetings and
may not adjourn the meetings at will.

In order to protect the interests of most shareholders, if the chairman declares the
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adjournment of the meeting in a manner in violation of rules governing the proceedings of the
shareholders' meetings, it would be advisable for the members of the Board of Directors
other than the chairman of the shareholders' meeting to promptly assist the attending
shareholders at the shareholders' meeting in electing a new chairman of the shareholders’
meeting to continue the proceedings of the meeting, by a resolution to be adopted by a
majority of the votes represented by the shareholders attending the said meeting in
accordance with the legal procedures.

Article 10

The Company shall respect the shareholders' rights to know and faithfully comply with the
applicable regulations regarding the information disclosure to provide, regularly and timely,
the shareholders with information relating to the financial conditions and operations, the
insiders' shareholdings, and corporate governance status in the company by utilizing the
Market Observatory Post System or the website established by the company. In order to
equally treat shareholders, major messages should be publicized in both Chinese and
English. In order to equally treat shareholders, major messages should be publicized in both
Chinese and English.

To safeguard the interests of shareholders and provide them equal treatment, the company
should formulate regulations forbidding insider trading.

Article 11

The shareholders shall be entitled to profit distributions by the company. In order to ensure
the shareholders' investment interests, the shareholders' meeting may, according to Article
184 of the Company Act, examine the statements and books prepared and submitted by the
Board of Directors and the inspection reports submitted by the audit committee, and may
decide, by resolution, profit distributions and deficit off-setting plans. In order to proceed with
the above examination, the shareholders' meeting may appoint an inspector.

The shareholders may, according to Article 245 of the Company Act, apply with the court to
select an inspector in examining the accounting records and assets of the company.

The Board of Directors, audit committee and managers of the Company shall fully cooperate
in the examination conducted by the inspectors in the aforesaid two paragraphs without any
obstruction, rejection or circumvention.

Article 12

In entering into material financial and business transactions such as acquisition or disposal
of assets, lending funds, and making endorsements or providing guarantees, the Company
shall proceed in accordance with the applicable laws and/or regulations. The Company shall
further establish the operating procedures in relation to these material financial and business
transactions and have the same report to and approved by the shareholders' meeting so as
to protect the interests of the shareholders.

In case the company engages in merger or public acquisition, the transaction should be
carried out according to related laws and regulations and attention should be made to assure
the fairness and reasonableness of the dealing, as well as transparency of information and
continuation of a sound financial structure.

In case of management buyout, pay attention to the regulation on information publication.

Staffers handling the aforementioned item should notice conflict of interest and need for
avoidance.
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Article 13

In order to protect the interests of the shareholders, it would be advisable for the Company to
designate personnel exclusively dedicated to handling shareholders' proposals, inquiries and
disputes.

The Company shall properly deal with matters arising from any action instituted by
shareholders pursuant to the applicable laws claiming damage to such shareholders'
interests caused by the resolution adopted in its shareholders' meetings or the Board of
Directors meetings in violation of the applicable laws, regulations or its articles of
incorporation, or claiming a breach by its directors or managers of applicable laws,
regulations or the company's articles of incorporation in performing their duties.

The company should formulate internal workflow to address the two aforementioned items
properly, a process should be recorded in written form for reference and put under the
oversight of the internal-control system.

Subchapter 2
Erect a System to Interact with Shareholders

Article 13-1
The board of directors is responsible for establishing a mechanism for interaction with
shareholders, in order to boost mutual understanding of the company's development goal.

Article 13-2

In addition to encouraging shareholders attending shareholders' meeting for better
communication, the board of directors should contact shareholders in an efficient manner
and join hands with managerial staffers and independent directors for better grasp of the
opinions of and issues concerned by shareholders and clear explanation of the company's
policy, so as to win their support.

Subchapter 3

Corporate Governance Relationships between the Company and Its Affiliated
Enterprise

Article 14

The Company shall clearly identify the allocation of its management target, authorities and
responsibilities over personnel, assets and financial matters of its affiliated enterprises, and
shall implement risk evaluation and establish appropriate firewalls.

Article 15

Unless otherwise provided by the laws and regulations, a manager of the Company may not
serve as a manager of its affiliated enterprises.

A director, who engages in any transaction for himself or on behalf of another person that is
within the scope of the company's business, shall disclose to the shareholders' meeting the
material terms of such transaction and obtain its consent.

Article 16

The Company shall establish a sound management target and system for finance,
operations and accounting in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations. It shall
further, together with its affiliated enterprises, properly conduct an overall risk evaluation of
the major banks they are dealing with, their customers and their suppliers, and implement
the necessary control mechanism to reduce credit risks.
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Article 17

Where the Company and its affiliated enterprises enter into inter-company business
transactions, a written agreement governing the relevant financial and business operations
between each other shall be made in accordance with the principle of fair dealing and
reasonableness. Both parties shall definitively stipulate the terms and conditions of the price
and payment terms mechanism, and desist from any transactions that are other than at
arm's length.

All transactions or contracts made by and between the Company and its affiliated persons
and shareholders shall follow the principles set forth in the proceeding paragraph and
tunneling of profits is strictly prohibited.

Article 18

A corporate shareholder having controlling power over the Company shall comply with the
following provisions:

1. It shall bear a duty of good faith to other shareholders and shall not directly or indirectly
cause the company to be engaged in transactions at other than arm's length or involved in a
management conduct for illegal profit.

2. Its representative shall follow the rules implemented by its company with respect to the
exercise of rights and participation of resolution, so that at a shareholders' meeting, the
representative shall exercise his/her voting right for the best interest of all shareholders and
in good faith and faithfully carry out the fiduciary duty and duty of care of a director.

3. It shall comply with relevant laws, regulations and the articles of incorporation of the
company in nominating directors or supervisors and shall not act beyond the authority
granted by the shareholders meeting or board meeting.

4. It shall not improperly intervene in corporate policy making or obstruct corporate
management activities.

5. It shall not restrict or impede the management or production of the Company by methods
of unfair competition such as monopolizing corporate procurement or foreclosing sales
channels.

6. Representatives of legal entities on the board of directors should possess qualifications
needed by the company and should not be replaced randomly.

Article 19

The Company shall ensure the command at any time of information on the identity of major
shareholders, who own a higher percentage of shares and have an actual control over the
company, and its ultimate control persons.

The Company shall disclose periodically important information about its shareholders holding
more than ten percent of the outstanding shares of the Company relating to the pledge,
increase or decrease of share ownership, or other matters that may possibly trigger a
change in the ownership of their shares.

The major shareholders indicated in the first paragraph refers to those who own five percent
or more of the outstanding shares of the Company or the shareholding stake thereof is on
the top ten list, provided, however, that the company may set up a lower shareholding
threshold according to the shareholding of its actual controlling companies.
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Chapter Il Enhancing the Function of Board of Directors

Subchapter 1 Structure of Board of Directors

Article 20
The Board of Directors of the Company shall guide company strategy, supervise
management team, and be responsible for the shareholders' meetings.

Procedures and arrangement relating to corporate governance shall ensure that, in
exercising its authority, the Board of Directors will comply with laws, regulations, articles of
incorporation, and the resolutions of shareholders' meetings of the company.

Regarding the structure of the Board of Directors of the Company, the number of board
members shall be properly determined by reviewing the scale of corporate management and
operation and the shareholding of the major shareholders and taking into consideration of
the practical needs for operation. While installing independent directors, it shall take into
account the reasonable professional composition of the directors and the objective
requirements for their duties independently.

Makeup of the membership of the board of directors should be diversified. In addition to limit
capping the seats on the board of directors filled by the company's managerial staffers at
one third of the total, proper diversification guidelines should be formulated, considering the
company's operation, business type, and development need, which should contain, but not
limited to, the following two criteria:

Basic conditions and values: gender, age, nationality, and culture, among others
Professional knowledge and skill: professional background (such as law, accounting,
industry, finance, marketing, and technology), professional skill, and industrial experience,
among others.

The board of directors should evaluate cautiously the aforementioned qualifications and
conditions, as well as willingness of nominees, before putting forth the list of candidates for
directors.

For the makeup of the board of directors, attention should be paid to gender equality and
knowledge, skills, and specialties needed for the fulfillment of their duties. In order to achieve
the target of corporate governance, the board of directors as a whole should possess the
following capabilities:

. Ability to make operational judgment;

. Ability to perform accounting and financial analysis;

. Ability to conduct management administration;

. Ability to conduct crisis management;

. Possession of industrial knowledge;

. Possession of perspective of international market;

. Ability to lead; and

. Ability to make decisions.

cO~NOOT A WNPEF

Article 21

Based upon the principles to safeguard shareholders’ right and treat shareholders with
fairness, the Company shall incorporate a fair, just, and open procedure for the election of
directors, and adopt the cumulative voting mechanism in order to fully reflect shareholders'
views, according to the Company Law.
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Except as otherwise approved by the competent authority, one half of the directors of the
Company shall not be the spouse or a relative within the second degree to any of the other
directors.

Where the number of directors of the Company falls below five, new directors shall be
elected at the immediate following shareholders meeting. However, if the number of
vacancies on the Board of Directors amount to one third of the total seats, an extraordinary
shareholders meeting shall be convened within 60 days to elect new directors.

The aggregate shareholding percentage of all of the directors of the Company shall comply
with the laws and regulations. Restrictions on the share transfer of each director and the
creation, release, or changes of any pledges over the shares held by each director shall be
subject to the relevant laws and regulations, and the relevant information shall be fully
disclosed.

Article 22

The company specifies that election of directors shall adopt the nomination system in Articles
in incorporation in accordance with the Company Law, the qualifications, education, working
experience, background and the existence of any other matters set forth in Article 30 of the
Company Act with respect to the candidates recommended by shareholders or directors
shall be reviewed in advance and the result thereof be provided to shareholders for their
reference, so that qualified directors will be elected.

Article 23

Clear distinctions shall be drawn between the responsibilities and duties of the chairman of
the board of the Company and those of its general manager.

It would be inappropriate for the chairman of the Board of Directors to also act as the general
manager. If the chairman also acts as the general manager or they are spouses or relatives
within one degree of consanguinity, it would be advisable that the number of independent
directors be increased.

The company should delineate clearly the responsibilities of the functional committees it sets
up.

Subchapter 2 Independent Directors

Article 24

The Company may establish independent directors who each shall have necessary special
knowledge, in accordance with Articles of Incorporation. In addition to complying with related
laws/regulations, there shouldn't be anyone serving as director (or independent director) or
supervisor for more than five companies listed on the centralized market or over-the-counter
market. Limitations shall be prescribed with respect to the shareholding and taking of
concurrent jobs by the independent directors who shall maintain their independency in the
course of performing their duties and functions and shall in no way act in direct or indirect
conflict of interests against the Company.

The independent directors shall be elected by the shareholders in accordance with Article
192-1 of the Company Act from among the candidates determined by nomination. The
election of independent directors shall be provided in the Articles of Incorporation. Directors
and independent directors of the Company shall be elected at the same election in
accordance with Article 198 of the Company Act with the director elects and independent
directors elects calculated separately.
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In case the company, affiliates, and organizations nominate directors, supervisors, or
managers of other company, its group affiliates, and organizations as candidates for
independent directors on a reciprocal basis, specify the status and explain the qualifications
of the candidates. If they are elected, specify their votes.

The aforementioned affiliates and organizations cover subsidiaries of companies listed on
the stock exchange or over-the-counter markets, legal entities with 50% of funds coming
from direct or indirect donations by those companies, or institutions or judicial persons in
which those companies have actual control.

No independent director may exchange his or her capacity of the independent director of the
Company with any non-independent director of the Company during their term of office.

Where the number of independent directors of the Company falls below the number provided
in the first paragraph or the Articles of Incorporation, new independent directors shall be
elected at the immediate following shareholders meeting to fill the vacancies. However, if all
of the independent directors are dismissed, an extraordinary shareholders meeting shall be
convened within 60 days to elect new independent directors.

The special qualification, independency of, and the limitations on the shareholding and
taking of concurrent jobs by and the nomination of candidates of independent directors an
other matters for compliance shall be in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Act,
Regulations Governing Appointment of Independent Directors and Compliance Matters for
Public Companies, and the relevant rules established by the TSEC or the GTSM.

Article 25

The Company (if any) shall submit the following matters to the meeting of the Board of
Directors for approval in line with the requirement of the Securities & Exchange Act. Any
opposition or qualified opinion expressed by the independent directors shall be indicated in
the minutes of the relevant meeting of the Board of Directors.

1. Establishment of or amendment to the internal control system proposed pursuant to Article
14-1 of the Securities and Exchange Act;

2. Establishment of or amendment to the procedures for major financial and business
transactions such as acquisition or disposal of assets, derivatives transaction, lending, and
endorsements or providing guarantees;

3. Matters involving personal interests of the directors;

4. Major assets or derivatives transactions;

5. Major lending, endorsement or guarantee proposed;

6. Raising of capital fund by fund-taking, public offering or private placement of equity
securities.

7. Engagement, discharge of or consideration paid to the certified public accountant;

8. Appointment and discharge of financial, accounting or internal auditing officers;

9. Other important matters of the Company or required by the competent authority

Article 26

The Company shall clearly establish the scope of functions and duties of the independent
directors and empower them with support of human and logistics resources to them to
facilitate their exercise of their power and functions. Neither the Company nor any of the
other members of the Board of Directors shall restrain or in any way obstruct the
performance of functions and duties by the independent director.

The Company shall stipulate expressly the compensation of the directors based upon related
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regulation. Different but reasonable compensation from that of other directors may be set
forth for the independent directors.

Subchapter 3 Functional Committees
Article 27

For the purpose of developing healthy monitoring functions and strengthening management
mechanisms, the Board of Directors of the Company may, taking into account the basis of
the size and business nature of the corporate, board size and the number of the independent
directors, set up audit, salary, nomination, compensation or any other functional committees
and have them stipulated in the Articles of

Incorporation.

Functional committees shall be responsible to the Board of Directors and submit the
proposals to the meeting of the Board of Directors for approval. Exercise of the duties of
supervisor by the audit committee according to item 4-4 of article 14, Securities and
Exchange Act, is excluded.

Functional committees shall adopt regulations governing the exercise of their power and duty
to be approved by the Board of Directors. The regulations governing the exercise of their
power and duty shall provide the number of members of each committee, their term of office,
functions and duties, meeting rules, resources to be provided by the Company to facilitate
the performance of their functions and duties.

Article 28

The Company shall set up the audit committee or supervisors. The audit committee shall be
formed by all of the independent directors, whose number shall be no less than three with
one of them to act as the convener and at least one of them shall have professional
expertise in accounting and finance.

The Securities and Exchange Act, Company Act, other laws and regulations and these
Principles applicable to supervisors shall operate to the audit committee with necessary and
appropriate alteration.

The following matters shall be approved by the majority of the entire body of the audit
committee and then submitted to the meeting of the Board of Directors for resolution, in
which case Article 25 of these Principles shall not apply:

1. Establishment of or amendment to the internal control system proposed pursuant to Article
14-1 of the Securities and Exchange Act;

2. Evaluation of the efficiency of the internal control system;

3. Establishment of or amendment to the procedures for major financial and business
transactions such as acquisition or disposal of assets, derivatives transaction, lending, and
endorsements or providing guarantees;

4. Matters involving personal interests of the directors;

5. Major assets or derivatives transactions;

6. Major lending, endorsement or guarantee proposed;

7. Raising of capital fund by fund-taking, public offering or private placement of equity
securities.

8. Engagement, discharge of or consideration paid to the certified public accountant;

9. Appointment and discharge of financial, accounting or internal auditing officers;

10. Annual and semi-annual financial reports; and

11. Other important matters of the Company or required by the competent authority

The audit committee and its independent director members shall act in accordance with the
Securities and Exchange Act, Regulations Governing the Exercise of Powers by Audit
Committees of Public Companies and the requirements of the TSEC and the GTSM.
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Article 28-1

The company should establish compensations committee, with qualifications of its members,
exercise of power, and the formulation of organizational charter conforming to “Regulations
Governing the Appointment and Exercise of Powers by the Remuneration Committee of a
Company Whose Stock is listed on the Stock Exchange or Traded Over the Counter”.
Compensations committee should exercise the following powers faithfully in the role of a
prudent administrator and submit its proposals to the board of directors for discussion:

1. Formulate and regularly review the policy, system, standards and structure of the
performance evaluation and compensations of directors and managerial staffers.

2. Regularly evaluate and determine the compensations of directors and managerial staffers.
In exercising the aforementioned powers, compensations committee should follow the
following principles:

1. Performance evaluation and compensations of directors and managerial staffers should
refer to the general payment levels of peers and take into account individual performance,
the company’s business performance, and future risks.

2. Avoid inducing directors and managerial staffers to undertake risky behaviors beyond the
limit of the company for the pursuit of compensations.

3. Inissuing bonus for short-term performance of directors and ranking managers and paying
some variable compensation, industry features and the company’s business nature should
be taken into account.

Article 28-1

The company should set up and publicize a reporting channel, for both in-house staffers and
outsiders, on top of a system protecting whistleblowers. The complaints should be received
and handled by an independent unit, which should keep the materials provided by informants
confidential and restrict access to them, according to internal operating procedure and put
under the monitoring of internal control system.

Article 29

In order to improve the quality of financial report, the company should institute deputy for
accounting chief.

The deputy should undergo advanced study annually, similar to the accounting chief, for
betterment of his/her expertise.

Accounting staffers involved in the compilation of financial report should also take over six
hours of related courses, as part of the company’s education and training program or held by
institutions specializing in advanced study for accounting chiefs.

The Company shall select a professional, responsible and independent certified public
accountant to be its external auditor who shall perform regular reviews of the financial
conditions and internal control measures of the company. With regard to the irregularity or
deficiency timely discovered and disclosed by the auditor during the review, and the concrete
measures for improvement or prevention suggested by the auditor, the Company shall
faithfully implement improvement actions, as well as should install communications channel
or mechanism for independent directors, members of the auditing committee, and certified
public accountants.

The Company shall evaluate the independence and competence of the auditor engaged by
the company regularly and no less frequently than once annually. In the event that the
Company has engaged the same auditor without replacement for seven years consecutively,
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or if the auditor is subject to disciplinary actions or other circumstances prejudicial to the
independence of the auditor, the Company shall evaluate the necessity of replacing the
auditor, and shall submit the evaluation to the board the conclusion of such review.

Article 30

It is advisable that the Company engage a professional and competent legal counsel to
provide adequate legal consultation services to the company, or to assist the directors and
the management to improve their knowledge of the law, for the purposes of preventing any
infraction by the Company or its staff of laws or regulations, and ensuring the corporate
governance matters will proceed pursuant to the relevant legal framework and the prescribed
procedures.

In the event that the directors or the management are involved in litigation as a result of
performing his or her duties as provided by the law or arising from shareholders disputes, the
Company shall retain a legal counsel to provide assistance depending on the circumstances.
The audit committee or the independent director member thereof may retain the legal
counsel, certified public account or other professional personnel on behalf of the Company to
perform necessary audit or provide consultation with respect to the matters concerning the
exercise of powers and duties.

Subchapter 4 Rules for the Proceedings of Board Meetings and the Decision- Making
Procedures

Article 31

The Board of Directors shall meet no less frequently than once every quarter and at any time
in case of emergency. The notice of meeting shall indicate the agenda of the meeting and be
sent to all directors and supervisors seven days prior to the scheduled meeting date.

The Company shall adopt the rules for proceedings of board meetings and the agenda,
relevant operational procedure, meeting minutes, public notice and other matters for
compliance shall be in accordance with the Regulations Governing Procedure for Board of
Directors Meetings of Public Companies.

Article 32

A director shall exercise a high degree of self-discipline. In cases involving interests of
himself/herself or of the legal entities he/she represents, should explain key contents of the
involvement at the next meeting of the board of directors. And shall voluntarily abstain from
discussion and voting as well as evade during discussion and voting, for himself or herself or
as proxy for another director, on a proposal submitted to the Board of Directors that risks the
involvement of the director's own interest to the detriment of the interest of the company. The
directors shall practice self-discipline as to their internal relationship and must not support
each other in an inappropriate manner.

The matters that a director shall voluntarily abstain from voting shall be clearly set forth in the
rules for the proceedings of board meetings.

Article 33

The independent director shall personally attend the meeting of the Board of Directors to
express his/her opinion with respect to the matter which should be submitted to the Board of
Directors pursuant to Article 14-3 of the Securities and Exchange Act and he/she shall not
entrust a non-independent director to act on his/her behalf at the meeting. Any opposition or
gualified opinion expressed by the independent director at the meeting of the Board of

Directors shall be indicated in the minutes of the meeting. Except with a good cause given,
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the independent director shall, produce his/her opinion in writing in advance if he/she is
unable to express his/her opinion at the meeting of the Board of Directors in person, and
such written opinion shall be indicated in the minutes of the meeting.

In either of the following cases, the resolution adopted by the meeting of the Board of
Directors shall be indicated in the minutes of the meeting and reported for public disclosure
on the Market Observation Post System before the start of next trading session from the
meeting date on the website designated by the competent authority.

1. There is opposition or qualified opinion from the independent directors, which has been
recorded or made with a written statement.

2. There is any matter which has not been approved by the audit committee of the Company
but has been approved by two thirds of all directors.

During the proceeding of the board meetings, managers from the relevant departments who
are not directors shall sit in at the meetings, make report on the current business conditions
of the Company and respond to inquiries raised by the directors. Where necessary, the
Company may invite certified public accountants, legal counsels or other professional
personnel to sit in at the meetings so as to assist the directors in understanding the
conditions of the Company for the purpose of adopting an appropriate resolution.

Article 34

Staff personnel of the Company attending board meetings shall collect and correctly record
the meeting minutes in detail, and the summary, method of resolution, and voting results of
all the proposals submitted to the board meeting in accordance with relevant regulations.
The board meeting minutes shall be signed or sealed by the chairman and secretary of the
meeting and distributed to each of the directors of the Company within 20 days after the
meeting. The directors’ attendance record constitutes an integral part of the meeting minutes
and shall be treated as important corporate records and kept safely through the life of the
Company.

The meeting minutes may be produced, distributed and kept electronically.

The entire process of each board meeting shall be taped or video-recorded with the tape or
video recording kept for a term of at least five years. The tape or video recording may be
kept electronically.

In case of any lawsuit arising from the resolution adopted by the Board of Directors, the
keeping of the tape or video recording of the relevant board meeting shall continue without
regard to the expiration of the time period of record keeping provided in the preceding
paragraph.

The tape- or video-recording of the board meeting held by teleconference constitutes an
integral part of the meeting minutes and shall be kept permanently.

Where a resolution of the Board of Directors is held in contravention of laws, regulations,
Articles of Incorporation, or resolutions adopted in the shareholders' meeting, and thus
causes an injury to the Company, dissenting directors whose dissent can be proven by
meeting minutes or written statements will not be liable for damages.

Article 35
The Company shall submit these matters to the meeting of the Board of Directors for
discussion:

1. Business plan.
2. Annual and semi-annual financial reports. The requirement doesn’t apply to semiannual
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financial report which needs not auditing and certification by certified public accountants
according to the law.

3. Establishment of internal control policy and the revision thereof proposed pursuant to
Article 14-1 of the Securities and Exchange Act.

4. Procedures for handling major financial matters including the acquisition or disposal of
assets, financial derivatives transactions, provision of loans, endorsement or guaranty to
other persons, which should be prescribed and amended pursuant to Article 36-1 of the
Securities and Exchange Act.

5. Raising of capital fund by fund-taking, public offering or private placement of securities.

6. Structure and system of remuneration for managers and directors

7. Appointment and discharge of financial, accounting or internal auditing officers.

8. Donations to stakeholders or major donations to non-stakeholders. However,
public-benefit donations for emergent relief for major natural disasters should be submitted to
the next meeting of the board of directors for acknowledgement.

9. Important matters which should be resolved or reported to the Board of Directors pursuant
to Article 14-3 of the Securities and Exchange Act, other laws and regulations or the

Articles of Incorporation of the Company or the requirement of the competent authority.

Except for the matters provided in the foregoing paragraph which should be submitted to the
meeting of the Board of Directors for discussion, the level, content or scope of authorization
conferred upon the designate of the Board of Directors pursuant to the laws and regulations
or the Articles of Incorporation of the Company to exercise the functions of the Board of
Directors during the recess of the meeting of the Board of Directors shall be clearly specified
and no general authorization is allowed during the recess.

Article 36

The Company shall ask the appropriate corporate department or personnel to handle matters
and implement actions pursuant to the Board of Directors' resolutions in a way consistent
with the program schedule and objectives. It shall also follow up on these matters and
faithfully review their implementation.

The Board of Directors shall ensure full control of the implementation and progress of these
matters and make a report in subsequent meetings so as to ensure that the board's
management decisions are faithfully implemented.

Subchapter 5 Fiduciary Duty, Duty of Care and Responsibility of Directors
Article 37

Members of the board shall faithfully conduct corporate affairs and exercise the due care of a
good administrator. In conducting the affairs of the Company, they shall exercise their power
with a heightened level of self-discipline and prudential attitude in accordance with the
resolution adopted by the Board of Directors except those matters which must be adopted by
the shareholders meeting pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations or the Articles of
Incorporation of the Company.

Where the resolution to be adopted by the Board of Directors involves major policy directions
and the corporate management, the Board of Directors shall carefully consider with no
adverse effect of any kind on the implementation and effectiveness of corporate governance.
Independent directors shall perform their duties in accordance with relevant laws, regulations
and the company's articles of incorporation so as to protect the interest of the company and
shareholders.

The company should formulate measures and procedure for evaluating the performance of
the board of directors. The board of directors should evaluate regularly the annual
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performances of the board of directors, functional committees, and individual directors.
Article 38

If a resolution of the Board of Directors violates law, regulations or the company's articles of
incorporation, at the request of shareholders holding shares continuously for a year or an
independent director to discontinue the implementation of the resolution, members of the
board shall take appropriate measures or discontinue the implementation of such resolution
as soon as possible.

Upon discovering any threat of the company suffering material injury, members of the board
shall immediately report to the audit committee or the independent directors of the audit
committee in accordance with the foregoing paragraph.

Article 39

According to the Articles of Incorporation or resolution adopted in the shareholders' meeting,
the Company may take out liability insurance for directors with respect to their liabilities
resulting from exercising their duties during their terms of office so as to reduce and disperse
the risk of material harm to the Company and shareholders arising from the fault or negligent
conduct of the directors.

After taking out or extending liability insurance for directors, the company should report the
insured amount, coverage, premium, and other important contents of the insurance policy to
the next meeting of the board of directors.

Article 40

Members of the board are advised to participate in training courses of finance, business,
commerce, accounting or law which cover subjects relating to corporate governance upon
becoming directors and throughout their terms of occupancy. They shall also ensure that
company employees will enhance their professionalism and knowledge of the law at all
levels.

Chapter IV Respecting Stakeholders' Rights
Article 41

The Company shall maintain channels of communication with its banks, other creditors,
employees, consumers, suppliers, community or other stakeholders and shall respect and
safeguard their legal rights. It would be advisable to install dedicated section for stakeholders
on the company’s website. When any of a stakeholder's legal rights is harmed upon, the
Company shall handle such matter in a proper manner and in good faith.

Article 42

The Company shall provide sufficient information to banks and its other creditors to facilitate
their evaluation of the operational and financial conditions of the company and
decision-making process. When any of their legal rights or interest is harmed upon, the
company shall respond with a responsible attitude and assist creditors in obtaining
compensation through proper means.

Article 43

The Company shall establish channels of communication with employees and encourage

89



employees to communicate directly with the management, directors or the audit committee
so as to reflect employees' opinions about the management, financial conditions and
material decisions of the company concerning employee welfare.

Article 44

In developing its normal business and maximizing the shareholders' interest, the Company
shall pay attention to consumers' interests, environmental protection of community and
public interest issues, and shall have high regard for the social responsibility of the company.

Chapter V Improving Information Transparency
Subchapter 1 Enhancing Information Disclosure

Article 45

Publication of information is the major responsibility of the Company. The Company shall
perform its obligations faithfully in accordance with the relevant laws, and related TSEC and
GTSM rules.

The Company shall establish an internet-based reporting system for public information,
appoint personnel responsible for gathering and disclosing the information, and establish a
spokesperson system so as to ensure the proper and timely disclosure of information about
policies that might affect the decisions of shareholders and stakeholders.

Article 46

In order to enhance the accuracy and timeliness of the material information disclosed, the
Company shall appoint a spokesperson and acting spokesperson(s) who understand
thoroughly the company's financial and business conditions and who are capable of
coordinating among departments for gathering relevant information and representing the
company in making statements independently.

The Company shall appoint one or more acting spokesperson who shall represent the
company, when the spokesperson cannot perform his/her duties, in making statements
independently, provided that the order of authority is established to avoid any confusion.

In order to implement the spokesperson system, the Company shall unify the process of
making external statements and require the management and employees to maintain the
confidentialities of financial and operational secrets and prohibit disclosure thereof by them
at will.

The Company shall disclose the relevant information regarding any change to the position of
a spokesperson or acting spokesperson upon such change.

Article 47

In order to keep shareholders and stakeholders fully informed, it is advisable that the
Company utilizes the convenience of the Internet and set up a website containing the
information regarding the company's finance, operation and corporate governance. It is also
advisable to contain the finance, corporate governance, and other information in English as
well.

To avoid misleading information, the aforesaid website shall be maintained by specified
personnel, and the recorded information shall be accurate, in detail and updated timely.
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Article 48

The Company shall hold an institutional investor meeting in compliance with the regulations
of the TSEC and GTSM, and it should make audio or video record the meeting. The financial
and business information disclosed in the institutional investor meeting shall be disclosed on
Market Observation Post System and provided for inquiry through the website established by
the company or other channels according to the TSEC or GTSM rules.

Subchapter 2 Disclosure of Information on Corporate Governance
Article 49

The Company shall disclose the following information regarding corporate governance in the
fiscal year in accordance with laws and regulations of the TSEC and GTSM.

. Corporate governance framework and rules;

. Ownership structure and shareholders' equity (including clear dividend payout policy);

. Structure, professionalism and independence of the Board of Directors;

. Responsibility of the Board of Directors and managerial personnel;

. Composition, duties and independence of audit committee;

. Composition, duties and operating status of compensations committee

. Compensation paid to chairman, president and vice president, analysis of ratio between
total compensation and net profit of individual financial statement, compensation policy,
standard and combination, the procedure of compensation decision, and relation between
performance and future risk. Compensation of individual director should be disclosed under
particular situation.

8. The progress of training of directors;

9. Stakeholders' rights, relationships, complaint system, concerning issue and appropriate
feedback mechanism;

10. Details of the events subject to information disclosure required by law and regulations;
11. The enforcement of corporate governance, deficiency between the corporate governance
principles implemented by the company and the Principles, and the reason for the deficiency;
and

12. Other information regarding corporate governance

The Company is advised, according to the actual performance of the corporate governance
system, to disclose the plans and measures to improve its corporate governance system
through appropriate mechanisms.
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Chapter VI Ancillary Rules

Article 50

The Company shall at all times monitor domestic and international development of corporate
governance and thereby review and improve the company's corporate governance
mechanism so as to enhance the performance of corporate governance.

Article 51

The establishment of these Principles and all subsequent amendments thereto shall be
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and reported to the shareholders’
meeting.

Article 52

These Rules were approved by Board of Directors and came into force on 25 March 2008.
The first amendment of the Rule on 26 March 2013.
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The second amendment of the Rule on 22 December 2014.
The third amendment of the Rule on 20 March 2015.
The fourth amendment of the Rule on 23 December 2016
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TECO Electric & Machinery Co., Ltd.

Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles

Article 1 (objective, application targets, and scope)

For the company’s sustainable development and establishment of a corporate culture
featuring ethical corporate management, the company formulates the guidelines, patterned
after the “Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles for TWSE/GTSM Listed
Companies” The principles are also applicable to subsidiaries, corporate bodies with over
50% of funds coming from the donations of the company, and other institutions, corporations,
and organizations under actual control of the company.

Article 2 (ban on unethical behaviors)

When conducting business acts, the company’s directors, managements, or persons
exercising actual control (“company staffers” in short, in the following), should not directly or
indirectly provide, pledge, request, to accept any irregular benefit or conduct unethical acts,
including those violating the ethical principle, the law, or the obligations of trust, in order to
secure or retain interests (“‘unethical acts” in short, in the following).

Targets of the aforementioned acts include public functionaries, political candidates, party
staffers or cadres, and any enterprise or institution, owned by government or private parties,
and their directors, managers, persons exercising actual control, or other stake holders.

Article 3 (types of interests)

Interests mentioned in the principles refer to any valuable object in various forms or names,
including money, gift, commission, position, service, preferential treatment, or kickback,
excluding, however, those associated with normal social activities or customs, carried out
occasionally without involving specific right or obligation.

Article 4 (legal compliance)

As a prerequisite for ethical corporate management, the company should abide by Company
Law, Securities Transaction Law, Business Accounting Law, Political Donation Law, Statute
on Incrimination of Corruption,” “Government Procurement Law,” “Law on Avoiding Conflict
of Interest by Public Functionaries,” and other laws/regulations on listed firms and other
business acts.

” o«

Article 5 (policy)

Based on the concept of clean, transparent, and accountable management, the company
has formulated the basic policy of ethical management, on top of establishing good corporate
governance and risk-management system, so as to create a management environment
conducive to sustainable development.

Article 6 (precautionary program)

Formulating integrity-oriented management policy and clearly institute in detail concrete
integrity-oriented management methods and program preventing dishonest behaviors,
including operating procedure, behavioral guidelines, and education/training.

In formulating the precautionary program, the company should comply with the

93



laws/regulations of the localities hosing the operations of the company and the enterprises
and organizations under the auspices of the group.

Article 7 (scope for Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles)

The company’s precautionary program should contain precautionary measures against the
following behaviors:

1. Bribing and reception of bribes;

2. Providing illegal political donations;

3. Improper charitable donations or sponsorship;

4. Providing or receiving improper gifts, treatment, or other improper benefits.

Article 8 (commitments and implementation)

The board of directors and the management should commit to actively implementing the
commitment of policy of ethical corporate management, as demonstrated in the company’s
regulations and external documents, in internal management and external business
activities.

Article 9 (business activities based on ethical corporate management)

The company conducts business activities in a fair and transparent manner based upon
Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles.

Prior to business dealings, the company will take into account the legality and record of
unethical behaviors of agents, suppliers, clients, or other business partners, avoiding dealing
with those with record of unethical behaviors.

Major contracts signed by the company with agents, suppliers, clients, or other business
partners should contain the policy of ethical corporate management and a clause warranting
termination or revocation of the contracts whenever the transaction party is proved to have
involved in unethical behaviors.

Article 10 (forbidding bribing and bribe taking)

When exercising their duties, the company’s staffers should not directly or indirectly provide,
pledge, request, or accept any form of irregular benefit, including bribe, kickback,
commission, smoothing-over fee, or other means, in dealing with customers, agents,
contractors, suppliers, public functionaries, or other stake holders, unless the acts comply
with local laws.

Article 11 (ban on provision of illegal political donations)

Direct or indirect donation by the company and company staffers to political parties or
organizations or individuals partaking political activities should comply with the Political
Donations Act and should not be made in exchange with business interests or trading
advantages.

Article 12 (ban on improper charitable donation or sponsorship)

The company’s staffers should comply with laws/regulations and internal operating

procedure when making charitable donation or sponsorship and should not use such
donation/sponsorship as guise for bribery.
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Article 13 (ban on improper gifts, improper treatment, or other irregular benefits)

The company and company’s staffers should not directly or indirectly provide or accept any
improper gift, improper treatment, or other irregular benefits, as a means for establishing
business relationship or affecting business dealings.

Article 14 (Forbid infringement on intellectual properties)

The company and its staff should abide by intellectual property-related laws/regulations,
internal operating procedure of the company, and contracts. Without the consent of IP
owners, behaviors should be forbidden concerning the usage, leakage, disposal, damage, or
other forms of infringement on, of IP.

Article 15 (Forbid engagement in unfair competition)

When undertaking business activities, the company should abide by competition-related
laws/regulations, without fixing prices, manipulating bidding, restricting output and quota, or
sharing or dividing market via allocation of customers, suppliers, business areas, or business
category.

Article 16 (Prevent products or services harming stakeholders)

The company and its staff should abide by related law/regulation and international criteria in
R&D, procurement, manufacturing, provision, and sale of merchandises and services; assure
information transparency and safety of merchandises and services, formulate and publicize
policy safeguarding the interests of consumers and other stakeholders, as well as its
enforcement in business activities, so as to prevent merchandises or services harming
directly or indirectly the interests, health, and safety of consumers and other stakeholders.
Merchandises should be recalled and services suspended, should there be facts proving
their threat, either directly or indirectly, on the safety and health of consumers and other
stakeholders.

Article 17 (organizations and duties)

In fulfilling the obligation of notice as a good manager, the company’s board of directors
should push the company in preventing unethical behaviors and constantly review the result
of implementation for constant improvement, so as to assure the materialization of the
company’s policy of ethical corporate management.

To assure sound management, Legal &Compliance Division should jointly formulate policy of
ethical corporate management, with the auditing unit responsible for supervising and
reporting to the board of directors regularly.

1. Assist in the incorporation of integrity and ethnic value into the company's management
strategy and formulate measures preventing irregularities, to assure integrity-oriented
management, in line with the stipulations of laws/regulations.

2. Formulate programs preventing dishonest behaviors, which include standard operating
procedures and behavioral guidelines for works and businesses.

3. Plan internal organization, personnel structure, and responsibilities, including mechanism

of mutual supervision and check-and-balance for business activities involving higher risk for
dishonest behaviors.
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4. Pushing and coordinating the promotion and training of integrity-oriented policy
5. Plan the setup of a reporting system, to assure effective enforcement.

6. Assist the board of directors and management in checking and evaluating the
effectiveness for the operation of the precautionary measures, meant to assure the
enforcement of integrity-oriented management policy, on top of periodic evaluation of the
abidance of related workflow before reporting the finding.

Article 18 (legal compliance in business activities)

When conducting business activities, the company’s staffers should comply with laws,
regulations and the precautionary program.

Article 19 (avoidance of conflict of interests)

The company should formulates the policy of preventing conflict of interests, so that the
company can identify, supervise and manage the risk of dishonest behavior resulted from
interest conflict, and provides proper channels for the company’s staffers and other
stakeholders related to the attendee of Board of Director to explain potential conflict of
interests with the company on their own.

Out of high extent of self discipline, the company’s directors can express opinions and reply
inquiries but should not participate in discussion and voting on items, while absenting
themselves from the discussion and voting, on the agenda of the board of directors which
involve their own interests or the interests of the legal entities which they represent. Directors
should not exercise voting rights on behalf of involved directors on such items. For self
discipline, they should not give improper support to each other.

The company’s staffers should not take advantage of their positions or influence in helping
themselves, spouses, parents, offspring, or any other party obtain improper benefits.

Article 20 (accounting and internal control)

The company should establish effective accounting system and internal-control system,
meant to prevent business activities with higher risk of ethical behaviors, so as to assure
continuing effectiveness in the design and execution of the systems.

The company’s in-house auditors should regularly check the compliance of the
aforementioned systems with laws/regulations and produce auditing reports for submission
to the board of directors, and appoint CPA to certify. The professional should be appointed to
assist if necessary.

Article 21 (operational procedure and behavioral guide)

In line with the operational procedure and behavioral norm in the program for preventing
unethical behaviors stipulated in article 6, the company formulates items of notice for staffers
in conducting business activities as the following:

1. Criteria in determining provision or acceptance of improper bengfits;

2. Procedure for provision of legal political donations;

3. Procedure and value criteria for rightful charitable donation or sponsorship;

4. Regulations on avoiding job-related conflict of interest, procedure for the reporting and
handling of such cases;

5. Regulations on the confidentiality of job-related secrets and sensitive business
information;
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6. Regulations and handling procedure on suppliers, customers, business partners with
unethical behaviors;

7. Procedure for handling violation of the ethical corporate management principles;

8. Discipline and penalties on offenders of the ethical corporate management principles.

Article 22 (education, training, and evaluation)

The company's chairman, president, or ranking managers should convey the importance of
integrity to directors, employees, and agents regularly.

The company holds education, training, and promotion for staffers regularly. And invite the
counterparty of commercial activity to attend, so that they can fully understand the
determination company’s ethical corporate, policy, precautionary and the consequences of
violation of honest behavior.

To materialize the policy of ethical corporate management, the company has listed the policy
as a criterion in evaluating staffers’ performance at end of year

Article 23 (informing)

The company should institute a concrete reporting system for substantive enforcement, with
its contents covering:

1. Set up and publicize independent internal mailbox and dedicated line, or entrust an
independent body to do so, for use by in-house staffers or outsiders.

2. Appoint specialized staffer(s) or unit for receiving complaints and submit complaints
involving directors or ranking managers to independent directors, on top of categorizing
complaints and instituting standard investigative procedure.

3. The reception, investigation, and findings, as well as production of related literature, of
complaints, should be put on record and kept.

4. The identify of informants and contents of complaints should be kept in confidentiality.

5. Protect informants from improper treatments for their complaints.

6. Incentives for whistleblowers

The company's auditing unit is in charge of receiving complaints and would produce report
for informing independent director(s) in written form after discovering major offenses or
potential damage for the company.

Article 24 (Penalty and complaint system)

The company should set up clear-cut punitive and complaining system and penalize those
violating the integrity-oriented policy according to the company's regulations, on top of
disclosing timely the title/name of the offender, date and contents of the offense, and
handling of the case on the company's website. The identify of informants and contents of
their complaints should be kept secret.

Article 25 (information disclosure)

The company establish and push quantification of integrity-oriented management and

continuously analyze and evaluate performance for the enforcement of the policy, publicizes
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the status in executing the principles on its website and in its annual report and public
statement, on top of posting contents of guidelines for integrity-oriented management on the
Market Observation Post System.

Article 26 (review of ethical corporate management and measures)

The company should constantly notice the development of the norms on ethical corporate
management, both abroad and on the domestic front, and encourage staffers to put forth
suggestions for review and improvement of the principles, so as the boost the effect of the
company’s ethical management.

Article 27 (implementation)

The principles are put into practice after approval by the board of directors before being
submitted to the audit committee for reference and reported to the shareholders’ meeting.
The same procedure applies to the revision of the principles.

When the board of directors discusses the guidelines for integrity-oriented management, in
line with the aforementioned regulation, it should take into account the opinions of
independent directors and put opposing opinions or reservation on record in the minutes of
the meeting. When independent directors cannot attend the meeting of the board of directors
to express their opposition or reservation, due to some justified reason, they should put forth
their opinions in written form, which should put on record in the minutes of the meeting.

Article 28 (supplement)

The principles were formulated on August 14, 2014.
The principles were amended on December 23, 2016

98



TECO Electric & Machinery Co., Ltd.
Corporate Social Responsibility Best Practice Principles

Chapter one General rules

Article 1

For fulfilling corporate social responsibility and prod the progress of economy, environment,
and society, as a means of achieving sustainable development, the company formulates the
practical principles for compliance by staffers.

Article 2

The principles are applicable to overall business activities of the company and other
enterprises of the group.

Alongside engagement in corporate management, the company should actively fulfill
corporate social responsibility, in line with the international trend, thereby contributing, as a
corporate citizen, to the nation’s economic development and improvement of the life quality
of staffers, community, and society, in addition to creating an edge based on corporate
responsibility.

Article 3

In fulfilling corporate social responsibility, the company should notice the interests of
stakeholders and in quest of sustainable development and profits, it should keep an eye on
the factors of environment, social needs, and corporate governance, incorporating them into
the company’s management objective and business activities.

Article 4

In fulfilling corporate social responsibility, the company should abide by the following
principles:

1. materialization of corporate governance;

2. creating sustainable environment;

3. upholding public benefits of the society;

4. intensifying information disclosure on corporate social responsibility.

Article 5

The company should take into account relationship between development trend for corporate
social responsibility, both abroad and on domestic front, and its core businesses, as well as
the effect of the business activities of the company and the group’s other enterprises on
stakeholders, in formulating the policy, system, and management objects and action plan on
corporate social responsibility, which should be reported to shareholders’ meeting following
approval by the board of directors.

The board of directors should review proposals on corporate social responsibility raised by
shareholders and consider putting them on the agenda of shareholders’ meeting.

Chapter two Materialization of corporate governance
Article 6

For the sake of sound corporate governance, the company should abide by “Corporate

Governance Best Practice Principles”, “Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice
Principles”, as well as “Rules of Ethical Conduct to Directors and Managers”
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Article 7

In line with the obligation of notice for a good manager, the company’s directors should push
the company in pushing the fulfillment of social responsibility and constantly review the effect
of execution for continuing improvement, so as to assure materialization of the policy on
corporate social responsibility.

In fulfilling the corporate social responsibility for the company, the board of directors should
consider about stakeholder’s benefits adequately, and carry out the following affairs:

1. putting forth mission or vision for corporate social responsibility and formulating policy,
system, or management objective for corporate social responsibility;

2. incorporating corporate social responsibility into the company’s business activities and
development direction, and formulating action plan on corporate social responsibility;

3. assuring current and accurate disclosure of information on corporate social responsibility;
The board of directors authorizes ranking management to handle the economic,
environmental, and social issues arising from business activities. The management should
designate specific staffers to handle the issues according to specific flow and report the
results to the board of directors.

Article 8

The company should regularly hold education and training on fulfilment of corporate social
responsibility, including affairs related to item 2 of the previous article.

Article 9

For sound management of corporate social responsibility, the company should designate unit,
either on dedicated or part-time basis, for pushing corporate social responsibility, and
formulating and executing policy, system, related management objective, and action plan on
corporate social responsibility. The unit should report to the board of directors regularly.

The company should formulate reasonable compensation policy, conforming to the
organization’s strategic objective and the interests of stakeholders.

Performance-evaluation system for staffers should blend with corporate social responsibility
and a clear and effective rewarding and penalty system should be put in place.

Article 10

To uphold the interests of stakeholders, the company should identify stakeholders and set up
a section for stakeholders on its website. It should understand reasonable aspiration and
demand of stakeholders via proper communications channel and properly address key
issues on corporate social responsibility which concern stakeholders.

Chapter three Creating a sustainable environment

Article 11

The company should abide by related laws/regulations and international norms in properly
protecting natural environment and should dedicate to upholding a sustainable environment
in carrying out business activities and internal management.

Article 12

The company should dedicate to boosting the efficiency in utilizing various resources and

using renewable materials to lessen impact on the environment and assure sustainable
usage of the earth’s resources.
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Article 13

The company should establish environment-management system conforming to its industry
nature, which should include the following items:

1. collecting and evaluating sufficient and current information on the effect of business
activities on natural environment;

2. establishing measurable objective for sustainable environment and regularly review its
continuity and relevance;

3. formulating implementation measures, including concrete plan or action plan, and
regularly reviewing the effect of implementation.

Article 14

The company should install dedicated environment-management unit or staffers, in charge of
formulating, pushing, and upholding environment-management system and action plan, in
addition to regularly holding environmental education courses for managers and
rank-and-filers.

Article 15

The company should consider the effect of corporate operation on ecological benefits, and
push and promote the concept of sustainable consumption, in addition to carrying out various
business activities, including R&D, procurement, production, operation, and service,
according to the following principles, so as to lessen the impact of corporate operation on
natural environment and humanity:

1. reducing consumption of resources and energy caused by products and services;

2. reducing discharge of pollutants, toxins, and wastes, as well as properly disposing

wastes;

3. enhancing recyclability and reusability of materials or products;

4. attaining maximum sustainable utilization of renewable resources;

5. increasing endurance of products; boosting the efficacy of products and services.

Article 16

In order to enhance the utilization efficiency of water resources, the company should properly
utilize water resources on a sustainable basis and formulate related management measures.
The company should construct and strengthen treatment facilities for environmental
protection, so as to avoid polluting water, air, and soil, and should make utmost efforts in
lessening adverse effect on human health and environment by embracing optimal feasible
technologies for combating and containing pollution.

Article 17

The company should embrace universal standards or guidance, applicable both abroad and
on domestic front, in carrying out and disclosing corporate greenhouse gases, with the scope
covering:

1. direct emission of greenhouse gases: greenhouse-gas emission sources are owned or
controlled by the company;

2. indirect emission of greenhouse gases: greenhouse gases result from energy utilization,
including procured power supply, heat, or steam.

The company should notice the effect of climate change on business activities and, based on
business status and check on greenhouse-gas emission, formulates strategy for energy
conservation and carbon/greenhouse-gas abatement, in addition to incorporate carbon right
into the company’s strategic planning for carbon abatement, so as to lessen the effect of the
company’s business activities on climate change.
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Chapter four Upholding public benefits of the society
Article 18

The company should abide by related laws/regulations and international covenant on human
rights, including gender equality, working right, and ban on discrimination.

In order to fulfill its responsibility in protecting human rights, the company should formulate
related management policies and procedures, including:

1. putting forth corporate human-right policy or statement;

2. evaluating the effect of corporate business activities and internal management on human
rights and formulating corresponding handling procedure;

3. regularly reviewing corporate human-right policy or statement;

4. disclosing handling procedure for related stakeholders, in case of infringement of human
rights.

The company should uphold labor rights acknowledged internationally, including freedom for
association, right of group consultation, care for underprivileged groups, ban on child labor,
removal of forced labor in various forms, and removal of management-labor and employment
discrimination, in addition to assuring absence of discriminatory treatment in policy of
human-resources utilization, in terms of gender, ethnicity, social and economic class, age,
marriage, and family, so as to achieve equality and fairness in employment conditions,
compensation, fringe benefits, training, performance evaluation, and promotion.

For infringement of labor rights, the company should provide effective and proper
mechanism for filing complaints and assure equality and transparency in the process of
petition. The petition channel should be clear, simple, convenient, and unblocked. The
company should respond properly to the petitions of staffers.

Article 19

The company should provide staffers information, helping them understand labor law and
labor rights in the host country of their works.

Article 20

The company should provide staffers a safe and healthy working environment, including the
provision of necessary health and first-aid facilities, and dedicate to removing potential
hazards to the safety and health of staffers, so as to prevent vocational accidents.

The company should conduct regularly safety and health education and training for staffers.

Article 21

The company should create a good environment for the career development of staffers and
establish an effective plan for fostering the capabilities of staffers for career development.
The company should embrace a policy reflecting the fruits of its management in staffers’
compensations, so as to facilitate the recruitment, retention, and motivation of staffers,
thereby achieving the company’s sustainable development.

Article 22

The company should set up channels for communications with staffers regularly, thereby
keeping them posted on the company’s management and decision making and enabling
them to express opinions accordingly.

The company should respect the right of labor representatives in consultation for working

conditions and provide staffers necessary information and hardware facilities, to facilitate
consultation and cooperation among employers, staffers, and labor representatives.
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The company should inform via reasonable manner staffers material changes in the
company’s operation.

Article 22-1

The company should treat customers or consumers in a fair and reasonable manner, in line
with the features of its products, services, and industry, in addition to formulating strategy
and measures for enforcement.

Examples for the aforementioned fair and reasonable treatment follow:

1. Enter into contracts on the principles of mutual benefit, fairness, and integrity.
2. Fulfill the commission of customers carefully and faithfully.

3. Avoid exaggerated and false ads.

4. Assure provision of merchandises or services which are suited to customers or
consumers.

5. Fully explain major contents, as well as potential risks, of the merchandises or services
provided.

6. Consider in balance the interests of customers or consumers and the achievement of
business goal when formulating commission system for salespersons.

7. Offer customers or consumers unobstructed channel for complaints and make substantive
responses.

8. Professional businesses should be undertaken by staffers with professional qualifications
or professional certificates.

Article 23

The company should be accountable for its products and services and have ethical
consideration in marketing. In the flow of R&D, procurement, production, operation, and
service, it should assure the transparency and safety of information on products and services,
to prevent products and services from jeopardizing the interests, health, and safety of
consumers.

Article 24

The company should abide by laws/regulations on industries in assuring the quality of
products and services.

The company should abide by related laws/regulations and international criteria in the
marketing and labeling of products and services and should abstain from deception,
misleading, fraud, or any other behavior which betrays consumers’ trust and jeopardize their
rights and interests.

Article 25

The company should evaluate and manage various risks which could disrupt its operation
and lessen the latter’s effect on consumers and the society, should it happen.

The company should set up transparent and effective channel for consumers to file
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complaints on products and services and address such complaints instantly in a fair manner,
in addition to upholding consumers’ privacy by protecting the secrecy of their personal data,
according to law for production of personal data and other related laws/regulations.

Article 26

The company should evaluate the environmental and social effect of its procurements on the
supplying communities and should cooperate with suppliers in fulfilling corporate
responsibility concertedly.

Prior to business dealings, the company should ascertain whether the suppliers have record
adversely affecting environment and society and should avoid dealings which run counter to
its policy on corporate social responsibility.

Article 27

The company should take part in the activities of civil organizations, charities, and municipal
governments in communal development and education, via stock investment, business
activities, physical donations, corporate voluntary services, or other professional services for
public benefits, invest resources in organizations which employ business model in solving
social or environmental issues, so as to bolster communal development.

Chapter five Strengthen information disclosure on corporate social responsibility
Article 28

The company should publicize information according to related laws/regulations and practical
principles on corporate governance, in addition to fully disclosing critical and reliable
information on corporate social responsibility, so as to enhance information transparency.
The company should disclose the following information related to corporate social
responsibility:

1. policy, system, or management objective and action plan related to corporate social
responsibility, approved by the board of directors;

2. risk and effect on the company’s operation and finance caused by materializing corporate
governance, creating sustainable environment, and upholding public benefits of the society.
3. objective and measures formulated by the company for fulfilling corporate social
responsibility, as well as the result of performance;

4. major stakeholders and issues of their concern;

5. management and performance of major suppliers on environment and key social issues;
6. other information related to corporate social responsibility.

Article 29

The company should embrace criteria or principles with universal acknowledgement
internationally in compiling report on corporate social responsibility, so as to disclose
progress in pushing corporate social responsibility, and should attain confirmation or
guarantee from third party, to enhance information reliability. The report should contain:
1. policy, system, or related management objective and action plan on corporate social
responsibility;

2. major stakeholders and issues of their concern;

3. result and review of the company’s performance in materializing corporate governance,
developing sustainable environment, upholding public benefits of society, and boosting
economic development.

4. improvement direction and objective.

Chapter six Supplements
Article 30

The company should constantly notice development in related principles on corporate social
responsibility, both abroad and on domestic front, and changes in business environment, for
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reviewing and improving the company’s system on corporate social responsibility, so as to
enhance the performance in fulfilling corporate social responsibility.

Article 31
Formulation and revision of the principles should be approved by the board of directors and
reported to shareholders’ meeting.

Article 32

The principles have been put into practice following approval by the board of directors on
March 20, 2015 for implementation.

The first amendment of the principle on 23 December 2016.
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TECO Electric & Machinery Co., Ltd.
Procedure for Acquisition or Disposal of Assets

Article 1 Purpose

This Procedure is established for the purpose of protecting the rights and interests of
shareholders and the interests of investors.

Article 2 Legal authority

This Procedure is established pursuant to Article 36-1 of the Securities And Exchange Act
and the relevant provision and subsequent revision there of the “Regulations Governing the
Acquisition or Disposal of Assets by Public Companies” established by the Financial
Supervisory Commission, Executive Yuan (hereinafter “FSC”).

Article 3 Scope of assets

1. The term marketable securities include investments in stocks, government bond,
corporate bond, financial debenture, mutual fund securities, depository receipts, share
warrant certificates, beneficiary securities, asset-back securities and so on.

2. Real property (including land, house & construction, investment real assets, land utilization
right and inventory of construction business) and equipments.

3. Membership.
4. Intangible assets, including, patent, copyright, trademark, franchise and so on.

5. Credit claims in financial institutions (including accounts receivable, foreign exchange
discount, lending, overdue receivables).

6. Derivatives.

7. Assets acquired or disposed of as a result of legal merger, spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares.

8. Other important assets.
Article 4 Definition

1. Derivatives means the forward contracts, options contracts, futures contracts, hedge
margin contracts, swaps contracts, and compound contracts of the combination of the above
the value of which is derived from assets, interest rates, exchange rate, indices or other
interests. Forward contracts do not include insurance contracts, performance guaranty
contracts, after-sale service contracts, long-term leases and long-term purchase (sale)
contracts.

2. Assets acquired or disposed of as a result of legal merger, spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares means the assets acquired from or disposed of as a result of a merger,
spin-off or acquisition conducted in accordance with the Business Merger and Acquisition Act,
Financial Holding Company Act, Financial Institutions Merger Act or other laws, or the stocks
of another company acquired by issuing new shares pursuant to the eighth paragraph of
Article 156 of the Company Act.
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3. A related party & subsidiary means the party defined in accordance with Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers.

4. A professional appraiser means real property appraisers or any other service which is
legally authorized to appraise real property and equipments for business.

5. Date of occurrence means the transaction contracting date, payment date, the entrusted
transaction closing date, transfer date, board resolution date or other date on which the
transaction counterpart and the transaction value may be sufficiently ascertained, whichever
is earlier. Notwithstanding, where the investment must be approved by the competent
authority in advance, the date of occurrence shall mean the earlier of the above date
applicable and the date of approval by the competent authority.

6. PRC investment means the investment made in the People’s Republic of China in
accordance with the Regulations Governing Approval of Investments or Technical
Cooperation Conducted in the People’s Republic of China prescribed by the Investment
Commission, Ministry of Economic Affairs.

7. Within one year means the year counted backward from the date of acquisition of disposal
of the asset in issue, excluding the items which have been publicly disclosed.

8. The most recent certified financial statements means the latest financial statements
certified or audited by a certified public accountant and duly published immediately before
the acquisition or disposal of assets in issue.

Article 5

Limit on investment in non-business purpose real property and marketable securities

The limits on the above assets acquired by the Company are as follows:

1. Non-business purpose real property: The total investment amount shall not exceed 30% of
the amount of shareholders’ equity represented in the most recent certified financial
statements. The total amount of investment in any specific short-term securities shall not
exceed 5% of the amount of the above shareholders’ equity.

2. Long- and short-term securities: The total investment amount (means the original
investment amount) shall not exceed the amount of shareholders’ equity represented in the
most recent certified financial statements.

3. The total amount of investment in any specific marketable securities (means the original
investment amount) shall not exceed 30% of the amount of shareholders’ equity represented
in the most recent certified financial statements.

The limits on the total amount of the above asset acquired by a subsidiary of the Company
are as follows:

1. Non-business purpose real property: The total amount shall not exceed 20% of the
amount of shareholders’ equity represented in the most recent certified financial statements
of the subsidiary concerned. The total amount of investment in any specific short-term
securities shall not exceed 5% of the amount of the above shareholders’ equity.

2. Long- and short-term securities: The total investment amount (means the original

investment amount) shall not exceed the amount of shareholders’ equity represented in the
most recent certified financial statements of the subsidiary concerned.
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3. The total amount of investment in any specific marketable securities (means the original
investment amount) shall not exceed 30% of the amount of shareholders’ equity represented
in the most recent certified financial statements of the subsidiary concerned.

Article 6

No appraiser, certified public account, legal counsel or securities underwriter who has
provided the Company with the appraisal report or opinion may involve in the transaction in
issue as a related party. Nor shall the transaction counterpart be a related party in the
transaction.

Article 7 Procedure for acquisition or disposal of real property or equipments
1. Evaluation and procedure of operation

Acquisition or disposal of real property and equipments by the Company shall be in
accordance with the Company’s internal control policy pertaining to the revolving of fixed
assets.

2. Procedure for determining the terms of transaction and approval of transaction

2.1 The terms and transaction price of the acquisition or disposal of real property shall be
determined by reference to, among others, the posted current value, appraised value, and
the actual transaction price of other real property located nearby. Transactions with a value
of less than TWD50 million may precede with the approval of the President. Transactions
with a value of between TWD50 million and TWD100 million each may proceed with the
approval of the Chairman of the Board of Directors and shall be reported to the immediately
subsequent meeting of the Board of Directors. Transactions with a value of over TWD100
million must be approved by the Board of Directors in advance.

2.2 Acquisition or disposal of equipments shall be conducted by way of issuing request for
proposal, price competition under restricted tendering, and price negotiation under single
tendering or bidding. The approval thereof shall be in accordance with the Schedule of
Functions and Authority compiled pursuant to the relevant bylaws of the Company.

2.3 Where the acquisition or disposal of assets by the Company in accordance with the
relevant procedure or other laws must be approved by the Board of Directors in advance, the
opposition expressed by the Director with written record thereof taken or in writing shall be
submitted to Audit Committee. On the acquisition or disposal of assets duly proposed to the
Board of Directors for approval, opinion expressed by the Independent Director shall be
sufficiently considered with their concurrence or dissent expressed and the reason therefore
duly recorded in the meeting minutes.

3 Unit in charge of execution of transaction

Upon approval of the proposed acquisition or disposal of real property or equipments
pursuant to the preceding paragraph, the responsible department and the Corporate Finance
& Management Division shall take charge of the execution thereof.

4. Appraisal report on real property or other fixed asset

Where the transaction value of the acquisition or disposal of real property or equipments
amounts to 20% or more of the paid-in capital of the Company or TWD300 million or more,

an appraisal report produced by a professional appraiser must be obtained before the date
the fact happens in accordance with the following, except in cases where the transaction
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counterpart is a government institutions, or the transaction is an entrusted construction
project on a self-owned land or a leased land, or the objects to be acquired or disposed of is
equipment for business purpose.

4.1 Where the transaction price shall be determined by reference to any restricted,
designated price or special price for whatever special reason, the transaction and all
subsequent changes to the terms thereof (if any) must be submitted to the Board of Directors
for approval in advance.

4.2 Where the transaction value amounts to TWDL1 billion or more, the appraisal shall be
conducted by two or more professional appraisers.

4.3 If the appraisal conducted by the professional appraiser runs into either of the following
conditions, except the appraisal value of the acquired assets is higher than the trading value
or the appraisal value of the disposed assets is lower than the trading value, subsequent
handling by certified public accountant in accordance with the No. 20 Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards published by Accounting Research and Development Foundation
(ARD Foundation) should be sought for as well as its opinion with respect to the reasons
accounting for the price difference and the acceptability of the transaction price:

4.3.1 The amount difference between the appraised value and the transaction value
amounts to 20% of the transaction value.

4.3.2 The amount difference among the appraised values as a result of the appraisals
conducted by two or more professional appraisers amounts to 10% or more of the
transaction value.

4.4 The appraisal report date and the date of creation of the transaction contract conducted
by professional appraiser must not be apart for more than 3 months. Notwithstanding, if the
same posted present value has been adopted to calculate the value and the above two
dates are less than 6 months apart, the written opinion of the original professional appraiser
may be sought.

4.5 Where the Company has acquired or disposed of the asset by auction by the court, the
relevant written evidence document issued by the court may operate in place of the appraisal
report or certified public accountant’s opinion.

5. The aforementioned trading value should be calculated according to Article 15.1.5. The
period is the one year before the occurrence of the trading. The obtaining of appraisal report
or CPA’s opinions can not be included.

Article 8
Procedure for acquisition or disposal of marketable securities

1. Evaluation and procedure of operation

Trading of long- or short-term securities by the Company shall be in accordance with the
Company’s internal control policy pertaining to the revolving of investments. Acquisition or
disposal of long-term securities mentioned in the procedure refers to the holding of over 20%
stake or long-term equity investment. Acquisition or disposal of long-term securities
mentioned in the procedure refers to the holding of over 20% stake or long-term equity
investment in a company.

2. Procedure for determining the terms of transaction and approval of transaction
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2.1 For acquisition and disposal of long-term securities, the execution unit should evaluate
transaction conditions and authorized quota before submitting its proposal to the board of
directors for approval.

2.2 For acquisition and disposal of short-term securities, the execution unit should evaluate
the transaction conditions and authorization quota before carrying out the move according to
“‘Measures for the Management of Short-term Investment.”

2.2.1 Purchasing and selling short-term marketable securities traded on the stock exchange
or over-the-counter market shall be judged and determined by the responsible financial unit
according to the market. The limits on the total investment amount and the amount of
investment in any specific securities are as follows:

Securities Limit Limit on spemflc
securities

Domestic finance bills TWD600 million
Foreign finance bills TWD600 million
Negotiable certificates of deposit TWD600 million
Time deposit TWD600 million
Open-end bonds funds TWD2 billion TWD500 million
Mutual funds (excluding open-end - .
bonds mutual funds) TWDL1 billion TWD100 million
Stocks traded on stock exchanges,
over-the-counter market and TWDL1 billion TWD100 million
relevant securities
Share warrant certificates TWD1 billion TWD5 million

2.2.2 For purchase or sale of short-term marketable securities not traded on the stock
exchange or over-the-counter market, the most recent certified financial statements of the
target company must be obtained for an as reference for evaluating the transaction price for
an analysis on, among others, the per share net value, profitability and potentiality of the
objective company. The above proposed purchase or sale proposed must be submitted
transaction conditions and authorization quota to the board of directors for approval in
advance.

2.3 Where the acquisition or disposal of assets by the Company in accordance with the
relevant procedure or other laws must be approved by the Board of Directors in advance, the
opposition expressed by the Director with written record thereof taken or in writing shall be
submitted to all Supervisors. On the acquisition or disposal of assets duly proposed to the
Board of Directors for approval, opinion expressed by the Independent Director (if any) shall
be sufficiently considered with their concurrence or dissent expressed and the reason
therefore duly recorded in the meeting minutes.

3. Unit in charge of execution
Upon approval of the proposed acquisition or disposal of long- or short-term investment in

securities by the Company pursuant to the preceding paragraph, the Corporate Finance &
Management Division shall take charge of the execution thereof.

4. Expert opinion
4.1 For acquisition or disposal of marketable securities, the company should obtain the

audited or reviewed financial statement of the target companies as the reference for
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transaction price, the transaction value of which amounts to 20% of the paid-in capital of the
Company or TWD300 million, certified public accountant’s opinion shall be sought for with
respect to the acceptability of the transaction price before the date the fact happens. In case
CPA needs to adopt the report of experts, auditing criteria No. 20 publicized by Accounting
Research and Development Foundation should be followed, except in cases where there is
an active public quote on the subject securities or where the subject securities belongs to
any of the following:

4.1.1 securities obtained on contribution of cash capital to the establishment of an entity by
promoters or by placement.

4.1.2 securities issued at par value on the legal capital increase of an invested company.
4.1.3 securities issued on the cash capital increase of a 100%-owned invested company.

4.1.4 securities traded on the stock exchange, Over-the-Counter Market or on the GreTai
Securities Market.

4.1.5 government bonds or bonds with re-purchase, re-sale agreements.
4.1.6 domestic or offshore mutual funds

4.1.7 corporate securities listed on the stock exchange or traded on the GreTai Securities
Market to be acquired or disposed off pursuant to the Regulations Governing Purchase of
Listed Securities by Tender Offer or by Auction of the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation
or the GreTai Securities Market.

4.1.8 stocks of public companies issued on cash capital increase but not under private
placement

4.1.9 the request for purchase of which was submitted prior to the establishment of the
mutual fund as provided in the first paragraph of Article 11 of the Securities Investment Trust
and Consulting Act and the Order of 1 November 2004 issued by the Financial Supervisory
Commission (ref. Jin-Guan-Si-Tze No. 0930005249).

4.1.10 newly purchased or re-purchased domestic private equity, the scope of investment of
which is identical with that of publicly raised mutual funds except the investment strategy with
respect to securities credit trading and position of the un-covered products relating to the
securities as indicated in the relevant trust agreement

4.2 Where the subject asset is acquired or disposed of by auction in the court, the appraisal
report or certified public accountant’s opinion may be replaced by the relevant certifying
document issued by the court.

5. The aforementioned trading value should be calculated according to Article 15.1.5. The
period is the one year before the occurrence of the trading. The obtaining of appraisal report
or CPA’s opinions can be excluded.

Article 9

Transaction with related parties

1. In addition to the procedure for acquisition or disposal of assets from a related party
provided in Article 7-11, requirements with respect to the procedure of approval and
evaluation of the acceptability of the terms of transaction. According the stipulations of article
7-11 of the handling procedure, when the trading value exceeds 10% of the company’s total
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assets, the appraisal report of professional appraisers or the opinions of CPA should be
obtained. The substance of the relationship other than the formation as a legal matter must
be considered when determining whether the transaction counterpart is a related party

2. Evaluation and procedure of operation

Acquisition or disposal of real property from a related party, or acquires r disposes
non-property assets with related parties and the trading value exceeds 20% of the
company’s paid-in capital, 10% of total assets, or NT$300 million, must be approved by the
Board of Directors based on the materials on the following matters and ratified by the Audit
Committee in advance to sign the transaction contract and make payment:

2.1 The purpose, necessity and anticipated efficacy of the proposed acquisition or disposal
of assets.

2.2 The reason for selecting the related party in issue as the transaction counterpart.

2.3 Acquiring real property from related parties, the evaluation materials regarding the
acceptability of the proposed terms of transaction produced pursuant to paragraphs .1 and
3.4 of this Article.

2.4 The acquisition date and the transaction price at which the related party acquired the
subject real property and the related party’s transaction counterpart in that transaction and
the relationship between them.

2.5 Forecast on the statement of receipts and disbursements of cash within one year from
the month of the proposed contract signing date, and an evaluation of the necessity of the
proposed transaction and the acceptability of the application of the relevant funds.

2.6 Obtain the appraisal report of professional appraisers or the opinions of CPA according
to item 1 of the Article9.

2.7 The restrictions and other important arrangements on the transaction.

The aforementioned trading value should be calculated according to item 1-5 of Article 15.
The one-year period refers to the one year before the date for the implementation of the
trading. The trading which has been submitted to the board of directors for approval and the
auditing committee for acknowledgement can be excluded.

The opinion expressed by the Independent Directors each at the relevant meeting of the
Board of Directors convened for discussing according to the previous two items, transaction
proposed pursuant to the preceding paragraph shall be sufficiently considered. Opposition or
gualified opinion expressed by the Independent Director shall be clearly indicated in the
minutes of the relevant meeting of the Board of Directors.

The board of directors could authorize the chairperson to make decision for acquiring from,
or disposing with, related parties equipment whose value falls within a certain scope.

3. Evaluation of acceptability of the transaction cost

3.1 The acceptability of transaction cost of the proposed acquisition of real property by the
Company from a related party shall be evaluated in accordance with the following:

3.1.1 The transaction cost shall be the sum of the proposed transaction price plus the
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necessary capital interest and the legal cost to be incurred by the buyer. Necessary capital
interest shall be calculated according to the weighted average interest rate on loans
extended to the Company in the year of the purchase of the real property, provided that the
said interest rate shall not exceed the maximum non-financing borrowing interest rate
announced by the Ministry of Finance.

3.1.2 Where the related party has mortgaged the subject real property to any financial
institution, the total value adopted by the financial institution to determine the line of credit
shall be taken into account, provided that the accumulated amount of the actual advanced
credit on the subject real property has amounted to 70% or more of the line of credit for over
one year except in cases where the financial institution is a related party to the related party
in issue or vice versa.

3.2 Where the subject real property comprises the land and the building thereon, the
transaction cost of the land and the building may be evaluated separately according to any of
the methods provided in the preceding paragraph

3.3 The cost of the real property to be acquired by the Company from a related party shall be
evaluated in accordance with paragraph 3.1 and 3.2 of this Article and review and workable
opinion by a certified public accountant on such evaluation should be sought for.

3.4 Where the values of the real property to be acquired by the Company from a related
party in conclusion of the evaluation pursuant to paragraphs 3.1 and 3.2 of this Article
respectively both are lower than the proposed transaction price, paragraph 3.5 of this Article
shall apply except in the following cases where objective evidence has been produced and
workable opinion has been sought for from the professional appraiser and a certified public
on the acceptability of the transaction price:

3.4.1 The related party has acquired or leased a vacant land to build the building and
evidence has been produced to prove fulfillment of any of the following:

3.4.1(1) The sum of the value of the vacant land appraised according to the method provided
in the preceding Article and the value of the building appraised as the total of the
construction cost incurred by the related party plus reasonable construction profit exceeds
the actual transaction price. Reasonable construction profit shall be determined based on the
average gross margin ratio of the construction department of the related party in the past
three years or the gross margin ratio applicable to the construction industry published by the
Ministry of Finance, whichever is lower.

3.4.1(2) The terms of the proposed transaction are considered acceptable by reference to
the successful transactions of the other floors of the same building or nearby buildings
concluded by non-related parties, each of which is of similar square measure to that of the
subject real property, and the term of such successful transactions are considered
comparable to the relevant terms of the proposed transaction according to the common
practice of real property transaction applicable to the area.

3.4.1(3) The terms of the proposed transaction are considered acceptable by reference to
the successful leases of the other floors of the same building or nearby buildings concluded
by non-related parties within one year and the terms of such successful leases are
considered comparable to the relevant terms of the proposed transaction according to the
common practice of real property leases applicable to the area.

3.4.2 The Company has produced evidence to prove the terms of the proposed purchase of

real property from a related party are comparable to the terms of successful transactions of
nearby real property of similar square measure which were concluded by non-related parties
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within one year. Successful transaction of nearby real property means the successful
transaction of a real property which is located in the same block as the subject real property
and within a radius of 500 meters from the subject real property or the posted present value
of which is similar to that of the subject real property. Of similar square measure means,
basically, the square measure of the real property in the successful transaction concluded by
a non-related party being referred to is no less than 50% of the square measure of the
subject real property. Within one year means within the year immediately preceding the date
of occurrence of the proposed transaction.

3.5 Where the values of the real property to be acquired by the Company from a related
party appraised in conclusion of the evaluation pursuant to paragraphs 3.1 and 3.2 of this
Article respectively both are lower than the proposed transaction price, the Company shall
act in accordance with the following:

3.5.1 The Company shall appropriate an amount equal to the difference between the
transaction price and the appraised cost of the real property for special earnings reserve
pursuant to the first paragraph of Article 41 of the Securities and Exchange Act, which shall
be set aside from distribution or new issues of shares for capital increase. Investors who
recognize their investment in the Company on equity method and who are public listed
companies shall also appropriate an amount equal to the recognized value according to the
shareholding percentage for special earnings reserve pursuant to the first paragraph of
Article 41 of the Securities and Exchange Act.

3.5.2 Audit Committee shall act in accordance Article 218 of the Company Act.

3.5.3 The result of handling pursuant to paragraphs 3.5.1 and 3.5.2 of this Article shall be
reported to the Shareholders Meeting and the particulars of the transaction shall be
disclosed in the relevant annual report and the prospectus.

The special earnings reserve set aside pursuant to the above shall not be applied for use
without the prior approval by the Financial Supervisory Commission until the loss from
depreciation arising from the purchase of the asset by paying a high premium price is duly
recognized, disposed of, appropriately made up, restored or there being no other evidence
challenging the acceptability issue.

3.6 Acquisition of real property by the Company from a related party will be forthwith handled
in accordance with paragraphs 1 and 2 of this Article in any of the following cases, in which
case paragraphs 3.1, 3.2 and 3.3 of this Article regarding evaluation of acceptability of the
transaction cost shall not operate:

3.6.1 The related party has acquired the subject real property by inheritance or as a gift.
3.6.2 Over five years has lapsed since the related party signed the contract on acquisition of

the subject real property.

3.6.3 The related party acquired the subject real property under a signed joint construction
contract with its related party or entrustment of related parties for realty constructions, either
on own land or leased land.

3.7 In case there is any evidence proving any irregularity of the proposed transaction for the
Company to acquire the subject real property from a related party, the Company shall still act
in accordance with paragraph 3.5 of this Article.

Article 10 Procedure for acquisition or disposal of membership
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The Company will, in principle, not conduct acquisition or disposal of memberships. Should
any such transaction be proposed in the future, the Company shall submit the proposal to
the meeting of the Board of Directors for approval and, thereafter, lay down the procedure for
the evaluation and operation thereof.

Article 11
Procedure for acquisition or disposal of intangible assets
1. Evaluation and procedure for operation

The acquisition or disposal of intangible assets by the Company shall be conducted in
accordance with the Company’s internal control policy pertaining to the revolving of fixed
assets.

2. Terms of transaction and procedure for approval of transaction

2.1 The terms and transaction price of the proposed acquisition or disposal of intangible
assets shall be determined by reference to the evaluation report produced by an expert or
the fair market value. Transactions with a transaction value of less than TWD30 million each
may proceed with the approval of the President. Transactions with a value of between
TWD30 million and TWD60 million may proceed with the approval of the Chairman and shall
be reported to the immediate subsequent meeting of the Board of Directors. Transactions
with a value of over TWD60 million each must be approved by the Board of Directors in
advance.

2.2 Where the acquisition or disposal of assets by the Company in accordance with the
relevant procedure or other laws must be approved by the Board of Directors in advance, the
opposition expressed by the Director with written record thereof taken or in writing shall be
submitted to Audit Committee. On the acquisition or disposal of assets duly proposed to the
Board of Directors for approval, opinion expressed by the Independent Director shall be
sufficiently considered with their concurrence or dissent expressed and the reason therefore
duly recorded in the meeting minutes.

3 Unit in charge of execution of transaction

Upon approval of the proposed acquisition or disposal of membership or intangible assets or
other fixed assets pursuant to the preceding paragraph, the responsible department and the
Corporate Finance & Management Division shall take charge of the execution thereof.

4 Expert evaluation report on membership or intangible assets

Except the transaction with government institutions, where the transaction value of the
acquisition or disposal of membership or intangible asset by the Company amounts to 20%
of the paid-in capital of the Company or TWD300 million, the opinion of a certified public
accountant on the acceptability of the proposed transaction price should be sought for before
the date the fact happens, who shall act in accordance with the No. 20 Statement of Auditing
Standards published by the ARD Foundation.

5. The aforementioned trading value should be calculated according to Article 15.1.5. The

period is the one year before the occurrence of the trading. The obtaining of appraisal report
or CPA’s opinions can be excluded.
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Article 12

Procedure for acquisition or disposal of credit claims in financial institutions
The Company will, basically, not conduct the transaction of acquiring or disposing of credit
claims in financial institutions. Should any such transaction be proposed in the future, the
Company shall submit the proposal to the meeting of the Board of Directors for approval and,
thereafter, lay down the procedure for the evaluation and operation thereof.

Article 13
Procedure for acquisition or disposal of financial derivates
1. Principle and policy of transaction

All derivatives transactions by the Company shall basically be conducted with a view to
prevent possible risks arising from business operation of the Company. The responsible
personnel of a derivatives transaction shall conduct a detailed analysis of the possible risks
in advance, conduct the hedge transaction with care, and get hold of all possible risks that
may arise from the transaction.

1.1 Derivatives transactions:

Derivatives means the transaction contracts the value of which is derived from assets,
interest rates, exchange rates, indices or the interests in any of the above (such as forward
contracts, options contracts, futures, swap and compound contracts of a combination of the
above). For purposes of this Procedure, forward contracts exclude insurance contracts,
performance guaranty, after-sale services warranty, long-term leases and long-term
purchase (sale) contracts.

1.2 Operational or hedging strategy:

The Company’s demand for foreign currency to meet the calls for purchases of imported
materials and equipment shall be hedged by buying forward foreign exchange and receipts
of foreign currency from exports shall be hedged by selling forward foreign exchange.

1.3 Division of powers and duties:

1.3.1 Only the personnel approved by the Chairman authorized to do so by the relevant
meeting of the Board of Directors may conduct foreign exchange transactions. Necessary
increase or reduction in the staff of such personnel, if any, must also be approved by the
Chairman.

1.3.2 The accounting department shall be responsible for administering foreign exchange
transactions.

1.3.3 The relevant financial managerial office shall act as the supervisor of the foreign
exchange transaction within the scope of their power of authority with respect to the
transaction amount.

1.4 Key points of performance evaluation:

1.4.1 Transaction part shall be evaluated according to the accumulated realized amount of
net foreign exchange gain (loss) of the year.

1.4.2 Non-transaction part shall be evaluated according to their compliance with the relevant
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policy and rules for operation of forward foreign exchange of the Company.

1.5 Total contractual transaction amount shall be the Company’s total authorized transaction
amount on forward foreign exchange contracts.

1.5.1 Limit of hedging transactions: The total hedging transaction amount of the Company as
a whole shall basically be determined according to the Company’s call for imports and
exports both for a term of six month of the year. Any position call beyond the 6-month term
must be approved by the Chairman authorized to do so by the relevant meeting of the Board
of Directors.

1.5.2 Limit of non-hedging transactions: The total non-hedging transaction amount of the
Company as a whole shall be within the range of the amount equal to 15% of the Company’s
call for imports and exports both for a term of six month of the year.

1.5.3 The maximum uncovered position of the Company as a whole shall not exceed 150%
of the Company’s call for imports and exports both for a term of six month of the year and the
sum of the position of hedging transactions and that of non-hedging transactions combined
shall not exceed the maximum uncovered position of the Company.

1.6 Limits on total loss from all transaction contracts and the loss from each individual
transaction contract

The uncovered position of derivative transactions by the Company as a whole shall be
calculated according to the closing price of TWD at the current day on and that of the New
York foreign exchange market of the previous day. When the loss incurred amounts to
TWD2.5 million, 25% thereof shall be covered and the trader shall be instructed to suspend
all transactions. When the loss incurred amounts to TWD5 million, 50% of the uncovered
position must be covered with a relevant report submitted to the President. If the loss
incurred amounts to TWD10 million, all positions shall be closed with a relevant report
submitted to the President and the Chairman.

Please see the Trader Authorization and Stop-Loss Points Schedule attached hereto (1, 2)
for the stop-loss point applicable to foreign exchange transactions. Each trader shall act
according to the stop-loss point for each individual transaction and for accumulated loss
respectively which are fixed according to the limit on his/her authorization and the foreign
currency traded. The trader will be suspended from conducting transactions for a term of
three months on his/her initial breach in conducting closing of position at the relevant
stop-loss point and he/she will be disqualified on a second non-compliance, in which case,
he/she will be reported to the President for determining the disciplinary action against
him/her.

2. Risk management

2.1 Credit risk management:

In consideration of the changing market, risks management in connection with the operation
of derivatives transactions shall be administered in accordance with the following principles:
The transaction counterparts shall mainly be well known local or foreign financial institutions
The commodity transacted shall be among those offered by local or foreign financial
institutions.

The total uncovered transaction amount with respect to the same transaction counterpart

shall not exceed 10% of the total authorized amount except as otherwise approved by the
President.
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2.2 Market risk management:
The operation shall focus on the public foreign exchange transaction provided by banks
without regard to the futures market.

2.3 Liquidity risk management:

In consideration of liquidity, the derivative commaodities transacted by the Company shall be
selected from among those with high liquidity (i.e. those which may be covered at any time
on the market). The financial institution entrusted to conduct the transaction must be able to
get hold of the relevant information and is able to conduct transactions on any market at any
time.

2.4 Cash flow risk management:

In consideration of stable working capital, the Company shall basically conduct derivatives
transactions by using self-owned fund and take into account the capital calls forecast for the
next three months when deciding the amount to be applied to conduct derivatives
transactions.

2.5 Operational risk management

The transactions shall be conducted within the relevant authorized amount in full compliance
with the procedure for operation and put under internal control to prevent operational risks.
The personnel conducting derivatives must not act concurrently as the personnel responsible
for making the relevant verification and delivery and vice versa.

The personnel responsible for weighing, monitoring and controlling the risks and the
personnel provided in the preceding subparagraph must be serving in different departments
of the Company and they must report to the Board of Directors or a high-ranking managerial
officer who is not in charge of the transaction or decision-making on the positions to be
taken.

The positions taken by derivatives transaction shall be evaluated at least once a week
except hedging transactions which have been conducted to meet business needs and which
shall be evaluated twice a month. The evaluation report shall be submitted to the relevant
high-ranking managerial officer authorized to do so by the Board of Directors.

2.6 Commodities risk management

Internal trading personnel must have complete and accurate special knowledge with respect
to derivatives and shall request the bank for full disclosure of risks in order to prevent the risk
of utilizing inappropriate commodities.

2.7 Legal risk management

In consideration of prevention of possible legal risks, documents to be entered into by and
between the Company and financial institutions must be examined in advance by personnel
with special knowledge in foreign exchange and the legal compliance personnel or by the
legal counsel.

3. Internal audit policy

3.1 Internal audit personnel must conduct periodical audit of the acceptability of the internal
control with respect to derivatives transactions and, on a monthly basis, audit the compliance
with the procedure for derivatives transactions by the departments responsible for the
transactions and evaluate the transaction cycle, produce the relevant internal reports, and
give a written notice of any material breach to the Audit Committee.

3.2 The internal audit personnel shall, by the end of February the following year, submit the

internal audit report and the annual internal audit inspection report to the Financial
Supervisory Commission and report the correction of irregularities (if any) to the Financial
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Supervisory Commission by the end of May the following year.
4. Periodical evaluation

4.1 The Board of Directors shall authorize high-ranking managerial officers to supervise and
evaluate, on a regular basis, the compliance of the procedure for derivatives transactions
and the acceptability limits on risks, as well as report to the Board of Directors upon finding
of any irregularity in the market value evaluation report (e.g. a position taken having
exceeded the limit of loss), and take proper measures in response.

4.2 The positions taken by derivatives transaction shall be evaluated at least once a week
except hedging transactions which have been conducted to meet business needs and which
shall be evaluated twice a month. The evaluation report shall be submitted to the relevant
high-ranking managerial officer authorized by the Board of Directors.

5. Principles of supervision and control of derivatives transactions by the Board of Directors

5.1 The Board of Directors shall appoint high-ranking managerial officers to oversee and
control the risks from derivatives transactions from time to time according to the following
principles:

5.1.1 Suitability of the current risk management measures and the compliance of the
Company’s procedure for derivatives transactions should be evaluated on a regular basis.

5.1.2 Necessary measures shall be taken upon finding of any irregularity with respect to the
transaction and profit (loss) from the transaction. Such finding must be reported to the Board
of Directors immediately and the relevant opinion expressed by the Independent Director
shall be heard at the relevant meeting.

5.1 Performance consistency of derivatives transactions with the relevant operation policy
and the acceptability limit of risks must be evaluated on a regular basis.

5.3 Where the relevant personnel have been authorized pursuant to the procedure for
derivatives transactions to handle the transaction, the transaction shall be reported to the
Board of Directors up to date after the transaction.

5.4 The Company shall maintain a derivatives transactions record book in which the type,
value, date of the relevant resolution adopted by the meeting of the Board of Directors, and
the matters subject to evaluation provided in paragraphs 4.2, 5.1 and 5.2 of this Article of
each transaction shall be indicated in detail for reference.

Article 14

Procedure for handling merger, spin-off, acquisition or assignment of shares
1. Evaluation and procedure of operation

1.1 The Company shall, for the purpose of a merger, spin-off, acquisition or assignment of
shares, call a meeting of the legal counsel, certified public accountant and underwriter for
joint discussion to determine the timetable of the legal proceeding and organize a special
group to execute the legal proceeding. The Company shall also seek the opinion of the
certified public accountant, legal counsel or underwriter with respect to the acceptability of
the proposed swap ratio, acquisition price or, cash or other property to be distributed to the
shareholders and submit the same to the meeting of the Board of Directors for approval.

1.2 The Company shall, prior to the convention of the relevant Shareholders Meeting,
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produce the document on disclosure of the material agreement and relevant matters on the
proposed merge, spin-off or acquisition and submit such document to all shareholders
together with the expert opinion provided in paragraph 1.1 of this Article and the meeting
minutes as reference for the shareholders to determine to or not to approve the proposed
merger, spin-off or acquisition, except in case where a relevant resolution adopted by the
Shareholders Meeting is not legally required. If any of the participant companies is unable to
convene the meeting, or to obtain the resolution of its shareholders meeting on the proposed
merger, spin-off or acquisition because the number of shares represented at the meeting fell
short of the quorum for the meeting or the proposal is denied by the meeting, the participant
companies shall promptly give a public explanation of the cause, the subsequent handling
and reschedule a date for convening the shareholders meeting.

2. Other matters for attention

2.1 Date of convention of the relevant meeting of the Board of Directors:

Except as otherwise provided by law or there being any special factor which has been
approved by the FSC, companies participating in the merger, spin-off or acquisition shall
convene the meeting of the board of directors and the shareholders meeting on the same
day to adopt the resolution on the matters in connection with the proposed merger, spin-off
or acquisition. Except as otherwise provided by law or there being any special factor which
has been approved by the Financial Supervisory Commission, companies participating in the
assignment of shares shall convene the meeting of the board of directors on the same day.

Companies participating in the merger, spin-off, acquisition or assignment of shares whose
stocks are traded on the stock exchange or the over-the-counter market shall maintain
complete written record on the following materials and keep the same for a term of five
years.

2.1.1 Basic personal information: including all personnel who participate in the execution of
the merger, spin-off, acquisition or assignment of shares before the relevant information was
publicly released, including their titles, names, and identification card (or passport) number.

2.1.2 Dates of important matters including, among others, execution of the relevant
memorandum of intent (MOI) or memorandum of understanding (MOU), engagement of
financial or legal counsel, execution of the relevant contract(s) and the date of the relevant
meeting of the Board of Directors.

2.1.3 Important documents and meeting records on, among others, the proposed merger,
spin-off, acquisition or assignment of shares, and the relevant MOI or MOU, important
contract(s) and minutes of the relevant meeting of the Board of Directors.

Companies participating in the merger, spin-off, acquisition or assignment of shares, whose
stocks are traded on the stock exchange or the over-the-counter market shall each, within
two days from the date following the adoption of the relevant resolution by the meeting of
their Board of Directors, make a report online of the information provided in subparagraphs 1
and 2 of the preceding paragraph in the required form and substance to the Financial
Supervisory Commission.

Companies participating in the merger, spin-off, acquisition or assignment of shares, whose
stocks are traded on the stock exchange or the over-the-counter market shall enter into the
relevant agreement with companies participating in the merger, spin-off, acquisition or
assignment of shares, whose stocks are not traded on the stock exchange or the
over-the-counter market (if any) and make the report provided in the two preceding
paragraphs.
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2.2 Prior non-disclosure agreement:

All persons who participate in or have knowledge about the Company’s project of merger,
spin-off, acquisition or assignment of shares shall each sign a non-disclosure agreement to
undertake that they will not externally disclose the project before the Company makes the
relevant public disclosure and that they will not buy or sell any stocks or equity securities of
any company involved in the proposed merger, spin-off, acquisition or assignment of shares,
either in their own name or using any other person’s name to do so.

2.3 Determination and change of the proposed swap ratio or acquisition price:

Each participant company shall seek the opinion of the certified public accountant, legal
counsel or underwriter with respect to the acceptability of the proposed swap ratio,
acquisition price, or cash or other property to be distributed to shareholders before the
meetings of Board of Directors, then submit the same to the Shareholders Meeting. Basically,
neither the swap ratio nor the acquisition price shall be changed except in case of the
conditions for a change provided in the contract (if any) and such conditions have been
publicly disclosed. The swap ratio or acquisition price may be changed in the event of any of
the following:

2.3.1 The subject securities are issued for capital increase, issuance of convertible bonds,
stock grant, and issuance of corporate bond with stock option, issuance of preferred shares
with stock option, issuance of share warrant certificates or other equity securities.

2.3.2 Any of the participant companies has done any act that may affect the financial
operation of the company such as disposal of its material assets.

2.3.3 The shareholders’ equity or securities price of any of the participant companies has
been affected by, among others, a major disaster or material technical change.

2.3.4 Any of the participant companies has adjusted legal buy-back of treasury stocks.

2.3.5 The principal participant companies or the number of participant companies has
changed.

2.3.6 The contract has provided the other conditions for changes and such conditions have
been publicly disclosed.

2.4 Provision of the contract:

The contract on the proposed merger, spin-off, acquisition or assignment of shares shall
provide the matters set forth below, except those in accordance with the provision of Article
317-1 of the Company Act and Article 22 of the Business Merger Act:

2.4.1 Handling of defaults.

2.4.2 The procedure for issuance of equity securities or buy-back of treasury shares adopted
by the company to extinct as a result of the proposed merger or to spin off.

2.4.3 The amount of treasury stocks the participant company may legally buy back after the
swap ratio record date and such company’s procedure therefore.

2.4.4 Ways to handle matters arising from a change of the principal participant company or
the number of participant companies.

2.4.5 The schedule for executing the project and the scheduled date of completion.
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2.4.6 Procedure for handling relevant matters and the date to duly convene the relevant
Shareholders Meeting in case the project is not completed as scheduled.

2.5 Change of the participant companies:

Where, after any of the companies participating in the proposed merger, spin-off, acquisition
or assignment of shares has publicly disclosed the information, there is another company to
participate in the proposed merger, spin-off, acquisition or assignment of shares, the original
participant companies each shall re-new all relevant proceedings or legal acts except in the
case of there being reduction in the number of the original participant companies and the
Board of Directors is authorized to act accordingly by the resolution of the Shareholders
Meeting.

2.6 The Company shall enter into an agreement with the participant company which is not a
public company and set the date to convene the relevant meeting of the Board of Directors,
execute the prior non-disclosure agreement, and act accordingly in consideration of the
change of the participant companies in accordance with paragraphs 2.1, 2.2 and 2.5 of this
Article.

Article 15 Procedure for public disclosure reports
1. Matters which should be reported for public disclosure and the relevant standards

1.1 Acquisition of real property, or disposal of properties with, related parties, or acquisition
of non-property assets from, or disposal of non-property assets with, related parties with the
trading value exceeding 20% of the company’s paid-in capital or 10% of total assets, or
NT$300 million. However, trading in government bonds or bonds with repurchase and resale
agreements, or subscription or repurchase of money market funds by domestic securities
investment trust enterprises and subscription or redemption of domestic money-market funds
are not included.

1.2 Merger, spin-off, acquisition or assignment of shares.

1.3 The amount of loss incurred from the derivatives transaction exceeds the limit on loss
from all contracts or the relevant individual contract provided in the relevant handling
procedure.

1.4 Assets transactions or disposals of credit claims in financial institutions or investment in
PRC other than those provided in the preceding three subparagraphs, the transaction value
of which amounts to 20% of the paid-in capital of the Company or TWD300 million each,
except for these transactions:

1.4.1 The transaction is the purchase or sale of government bonds.
1.4.2 The transaction is for investment purposes only of securities traded on local or foreign
stock exchange or over-the-counter market or obtaining of securities by securities firms on

the primary market.

1.4.3 The subject asset to be acquired or disposed of is bond with re-purchase, re-sale
agreements. Subscription to and redemption of domestic money-market funds

1.4.4 The subject asset to be acquired or disposed of is equipment for business use and the
transaction counterpart is a non-related party and the transaction value is less than TWD500
million.

1.4.5 The subject real property is to be acquired or disposed of by the construction business
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division of the Company for construction use and the transaction counterpart is a non-related
party and the transaction value is less than TWD500 million.

1.4.6 The subject real property to be acquired is a building is to be constructed on a
self-owned land, leased land, jointly constructed and shared by units, jointly constructed and
shared by percentage, jointly constructed and sold by units and the anticipated transaction
value is less than TWD500 million.

1.5 The transaction value provided in previous paragraph 1.5 above shall be calculated as
follows, where within one year means within the year immediately preceding the date of
occurrence of the proposed transaction, excluding the items which have been publicly
disclosed.

1.5.1 The value of each transaction.

1.5.2 The total value of the property of the same nature acquired from or transferred to the
same transaction counterpart within one year.

1.5.3 The total value of the real property under the same development project acquired or
disposed of within one year (the sum acquired and the sum disposed of shall be calculated
separately).

1.5.4 The total value of the same specific securities acquired or disposed of within one year
(the sum acquired and the sum disposed of shall be calculated separately).

1.6 The calculation for 10% of total assets, as referred in the handling procedure, is based
on the sum of assets included in recent alone-basis financial reports, formulated according to
the “Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial. For stocks without par value or with
par value other than NT$10, the calculation of 20% of paid-in capital for transaction value, as
referred in the procedure, is based on 10% of the owner’s equity of the parent firm.

2. Time period for making public disclosure

If the acquisition or disposal of assets involves any item which should be published pursuant
to paragraph 1 of this Article and the transaction value meets the public disclosure standards
provided in this Article, the Company shall make a public disclosure on such acquisition or
disposal of assets within two days following the date of occurrence of such transaction.

3. Procedure for making public disclosure

3.1 The Company shall cause the relevant information publicly disclosed on the website
designated by the Financial Supervisory Commission.

3.2 The Company shall on a monthly basis make a report on the derivatives transactions
conducted in the month by itself and its local subsidiaries which are not public companies on
the website designated by the FSC in the form and substance required by the tenth day the
following month.

3.3 The Company shall renew the entire public disclosure report in case the public disclosure
report made contains any error or omission.

3.4 The Company shall keep all agreements, meeting minutes, reference record book,
appraisal report, opinions of the certified public account, legal counsel or underwriter in the
Company relating to the acquisition or disposal of any asset for a term of at least five years
except as otherwise provided by law.
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3.5 In the event of any of the following after submitting the public disclosure report in
accordance with the preceding paragraph, the Company shall, within two days following the
occurrence of such event, publicly disclose the relevant information on the website
designated by the Financial Supervisory Commission:

3.5.1 There is change to the relevant original signed agreement(s) or the original signed
agreement(s) is terminated or rescinded.

3.5.2 The proposed merger, spin-off, acquisition or assignment of shares is not completed as
scheduled under the relevant agreement.

3.5.3 There are changes for the original reporting.
Article 16

The Company shall cause all subsidiaries to act in accordance with the following:

1. The subsidiaries of the Company each shall prescribe their own rules for acquisition or
disposal of assets pursuant to the Regulations Governing the Acquisition or Disposal of
Assets by Public Companies.

2. For a subsidiary of the Company which is not a public company, if the acquisition or
disposal of asset by such subsidiary meets the public disclosure standards provided in the
paragraph 1 of Article 15, the Company shall make the relevant public disclosure report for
such subsidiary.

3. The “amounts to 20% of the paid-in capital of the company or 10% of the total assets”
provided in the public disclosure standards applicable to the subsidiaries of the Company
means the paid-in capital of the Company.

Article 17 Penalty

Any employee of the Company who has handled acquisition or disposal of asset for the
Company in breach of these Rules shall be subject to periodical evaluation according to the
personnel administration rules and employees handbook and punished according to the
degree of severity of the breach.

Article 18 Implementation and amendment

Subject to the approval by the meeting of the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors shall
submit the Procedure for Acquisition or Disposal of Assets and all subsequent amendment
thereto to Audit Committee and to the Shareholders Meeting for approval. Opposition
expressed by the Director with written record thereof taken or in writing shall be submitted to
Audit Committee. Opinion expressed by the Independent Director (if any) at the relevant
meeting of the Board of Directors on the Procedure for Acquisition or Disposal of Assets
shall be sufficiently considered. Opposition or qualified opinion expressed by Independent
Directors shall be clearly indicated in the minutes of the Board of Directors.

Article 19

This Procedure was established on 11 August 1989 and subsequently amended as follows:
the first amendment on 30 September 1991;

the second amendment on 26 June 1995;

the third amendment on 28 April 1997,

the fourth amendment on 28 October 1999;
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the fifth amendment on 6 June 2003;

the sixth amendment on 13 June 2007;
the seventh amendment on 15 June 2012.
the eighth amendment on 21 June 2013.

and the ninth amendment on 23 June 2014.
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TECO Electric & Machinery Co., Ltd.

whh e

Shareholding of All Directors

Committee)

Period of suspension of share transfer: April 18 2017 ~ June 16 2017

Types and number of issued shares: common stocks, 2,002,692,886 shares in total.
Minimum required shareholding by all Directors: 48,064,629 shares (Note)
Minimum required shareholding by all Supervisors: Not Applicable (Already set up Audit

The total shareholding of all Directors meets the minimum shareholding requirement.

Shareholding when

Number of shares held
recorded in the
shareholders roster as of

Title Name I?aten?rfc(:jtg)d Tgfrfrizeof elected the date of suspension of
Yy ’ share transfer
Number of % Number of %
shares held shares held
. Tung Kuang Investment Co., Ltd.. o o
Chairman Representative: Chwen-Jy, Chiu 20150611 3yrs 30,341,364 1.52% 30,341,364 1.52%
. ) Tong Ho Gloabl Investment Co., Ltd o 0
Managing Director Representative: Chao-Kai, Liu 20150611 3yrs 2,240,262 0.11%) 2,240,262 0.11%|
Managing Director | Cheng-Tsung, Huang 20150611 3yrs 15,279,849 0.76%) 15,279,849 0.76%)
) h Creative Sensor Inc. o o
Managing Director Representative: Yu-Ren, Huang 20150611 3yrs 10,000,000 0.50%) 10,000,000 0.50%)
Managing &
Independent Chien-Yuan, Lin (note) 20150611 3yrs 0 0 0 0
Director
Independent .
Director Jing-Shown, Wu 20150611 3yrs 0 0 0 0
Independent ]
Director Ting-Wong, Cheng (note) 20150611 2yrs 0 0 0 0
Director Mao-Hsiung, Huang 20150611 3yrs 18,486,633] 0.92%| 18,486,633] 0.92%
Director Po-chih,Huang 20150611 3yrs 21,614,831 1.08% 21,614,831 1.08%
Director Hsien-Sheng Kuo 20150611 3yrs 9,126,238, 0.46%) 9,126,238 0.46%)
Director Yaskawa Electric Corporation 20150611 3yrs 20,541,089|  1.48% 29,541,089  1.48%
Representative: Hiroyuki Ougi
. Kuang Yuan Industrial Co., Ltd. o o
Director Representative: Shih-Chien, Yang 20150611 3yrs 22,033,919 1.10% 22,033,919 1.10%
Director Tong Kuang Investment Co., Ltd. 20150611 3y1s 30,341,364 15206 30,341,364  1.52]
Representative: Hong-Hsiang, Lin
. Lien Chang Electronic Co., Ltd. o o
Director Representative: Ming-Feng, Yeh 20150611 3yrs 4,173,000 0.21%) 4,173,000 0.21%)
; Mao Yang Co., Ltd. o o
Director Representative: Yung-Hsiang, Chang 20150611 3yrs 5,000,893 0.25%) 5,000,893 0.25%)
Total number of shares held by all Directors 167,838,078 8.38%| 167,838,078 8.38%)

Note: According to Article 2 of “Rules and Review Procedures for Director and Supervisor Share Ownership Ratios at Public
Companies”, if there are two or more independent directors elected, the minimum shareholding of all directors and supervisors,

excluding independent directors, could drop to 80% of original requirement.

Note: Managing & Independent Director Tian-Jy, Chen resigned on May 12 2016, and Ting-Wong, Cheng was elected as
Independent Director in by-election in Annual General Meeting on June 16, 2016. Independent Director Chien-Yuan, Lin was
put forward as Managing Director on June 16, 2016.
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TECO Electric & Machinery Co., Ltd.

Notes

1. Impact on Company’s business performance, EPS and ROI from the stock grant proposed
by Shareholders Meeting: Not applicable.

2. Information on proposals submitted to the shareholders’ meeting

a. According to article 172-1 of the Company Law, shareholders with over 1% holding of
total shares issued can submit only one written proposal, containing up to 300 words,
to shareholders’ meeting.

b. Shareholders can put forth proposals to the shareholders’ meeting during April 7-18,
2017, which had been posted on the Market Observation Post System of the Taiwan
Stock Exchange, according to law.

c. The company didn’t receive any proposal from shareholders during the period

3. Information on nomination submitted to the shareholders’ meeting: Not applicable.
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